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hear that poor Gentleman being related to this
unfortunate noble Lord, was at the firlt time
very much under Surprize, (being in fuch great
Affli¢tion as one Brother muit needs be for
another, Nature obliges People to a great Con-
cern for fuch Accidents) and he fays, he is not
able to give an account what he fud or cid
at that ume, or what Braddoir did particularly
fay to him. But when he came the fecond time
to him, he was a little more ledate and calm,
and then (he does remember) he told him, If
you have any thing of this nature to fay, go to
a Secretaiy of State, 1t 15 his Bufinels to inquire
into this Afair, and ’us not the Bulinels of eve-
ry particular private Man, becanfe thefe are
Maiters that concern the Government. But
Braddon pretended (forfooth) it was his Zeal
and his great Confcience that made him to be
thus traniported, and to be o cager for carrying
on this Profecution.

The next Witnels, Gentlemen, that you hear
of, is the Gentleman that {feized upon M. Biad-
don In the Country; and that is Mr. Beech, who
brought him before a Juftice of Peace (one Alires
that it feems 15 fince dead,) and in his Pocket
he found a Letter from the other Defendant
Speke, which 15 the only thing indeed 1n the
Evidence that does affeét that Gentleman s and
what that Letter is, you have heard it read, and
for your better Satisfaction, becaufe the Lan-
guage of the Letter 15 pretty extraordinary, if
you have amnd to have it to perufe while you
arc here in Court, you may have it with you. I
fuppole you remember the Subftance of 1r, com-
mending  the great Integrity, Courage, and
Magnanimity of this Gentleman Mr. Braddoi,
thanking the Perfon to whom it was wrir, for
his great Kindnels to him and his Frieads, how
they did hope to be able 1o ger the Murder of
my Lord of £jfex tried before any in the Towe
could come to their Trialy Thar the Tide ran
ftrong againlt them: And, pray, you mule take
notice, | have given him a hint he muft go by
another Name, by the Name of Fedifea, and
not by the Name of Braddsi 2 tor alack-a-day
he would be flabbed in thefe dangerous Times,
or knocked on the Head, if he be known by his
own Name. Mi, Biedicr would be thought a
Man fo confiderable n the World for his Zeal
for Truth, cnd the Prosefizit Religion, that chere
was very great Huzard of his bang murdered,
we live in foch perilous Times.

Gentlemen, This 15 to amufe and  affright
People, and to put odd Thoughts and Jealou-
fics and Fears into the Minds of the King’s
Subjects, which was the Buginning and Riie
of the late Rebellion, which w2 have all rea-
fon to remember with Horrory that Rebellion
that 1 the Hlue of it brought the late King of
Blefled Memory to the Scaifold: And there-
fore we muft have a great care of fuch things
OroWINg UPON US NOW.

And pray, Gentlemen, mind the Style of the
Letter: /72 have many Thanks to give you,
for your Cuare of Us, and Countenance you have
civen to Us, and /72 dow’t doubt /¢ thall ke
able to carry on the Buimels of the Euarl of
Lffex, notwinllanding that the Tide runs firong
agunit Us; We nope this, and 27 hope
that, and tother, and o makes himfelf a Pariy.
And he recommends him in purticular to Sir
Rebert iyis, to whom the Letter was swrit-
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ten, to adwvife him in the matter he went aboyr
(which by the way, you fee, was to pick up
falfe Evidence) to carry on this wicked De-
Dgn. And I muft tell you, Gentlemen, 1f 3y,
Speke was given to believe a Lye, and did write
that Letter, with a Defign to have that Lye
fpread abroad, he makes humfelf 2 Party, and
he 15 as guilty 1n every Circumflance ns the
other, as to the Defign in gencral laid in the
Enformation, tho’ not equally guilty about the
Mamagement of the Winelles 0 And it is the
Letter only that particulurly aflects him. Bac
L tell you, If in cue you think he was {arprized
in the thing, or did it ignorantly or iunocent-
ly, without any Concern, (though he feems
to have a wonderial Concern in his Letier.
and very zealous he feems to be in the Profe.
cutlon of this Bafinefs) you are to acquit him.
But, if he did contribute to the Defign of {pread-
ing this falfe Report, heis as guity of that
Part as Mr, Braddow, tho’ he be not ouilty of
Suborning the Witnefies, Bat the livids
orning . B cidence
againic Bradden goes farther; There is not only
the Evidence of this Letter, which {peaks phin
enough as to this Defign, but you find alfo
about him all the Informations that have been
read. The Information of this Roy of 17 Years
of Age; the Information of the Girl of 13 Years
of Age: There was alfo taken in his Pocker a
Letter from one Burpis a famous Pin-maker of
NMarlporongiz, written w0 one Cripsenp 2 Poftma
fter at Fieine, 1n this manner: Pray call to
“ mind fuch a Bufinefs of heartag fuch a Re-
“ port of my Lord of Zijex’s cuting his Throat
“ upon Lriday the 13th of Fuiy hatt. Pray recol-
“ le€t fuch a thing, and mpart it to tais Gen-
tleman the Bewrer”, This likewife was jne
trufted with Mr, Braddon & But it feems the Man,
had gone and wrie this Letrer, and had put 1n
the 6ch Day, which happened to be a Week oo
foon, and this muft be retified by Mr, Biad-
ao. himicl, he bemng a grear Companion of
Mr. Bracusi’ss for it feems he had fuch a2 Cona
fidence 1 him, that upon his Report, he came
dovn from Lendsn 10 MeiPsroush, the’ now in-
deed they pretend they never knew one ang-
ther bejore: But 1t is proved he confefivd he
had fuch a Regard to his Reporr, tha thar
brought him down from Leicsi, IHe had (as 1
was faying) put it down the 6th ar his §pfk
writing 5 and [ believe as to the thing it I, s
wasas true the 6:h as any otaer ume, and the
16th and the 206th 15 all one to fuch Peonle,
And this Letter, he tells you himfelt, was v-;rift)en
fix Weeks after, but Mr, Braddsn muft corred
1: No, fays he, you miitake, it muit bLe the
13th, it mult not be the 6thy the 6 wonld
nct do the Bulinels, for the 19th was the Day
that he was murderd, and fo he was forced
to mterline it, the 13ch, 0 make it to humous
the Story ;5 for the Lye would rot pafs fo well
tf 1z had been pat upon a Day 1o lons before;
but to make the Lyea correct Lye, and to hu-
mour the veit of the Evidence, Nir. Droldp
comies and u:forms him, 1t muit be the 19001,
1haowas the next piece of Lividence thar was
given, ana [ think the Subitance of the Lvis
dence of tus wiole Matter given amainft the
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Now, Gentlemen, for the Defendants they
bring this Evidence: Firft, They bring a Man,
I think his Name was Lewes, to whom they gave
the Money before he would give his Evidence.
And he fays, one Day he was going up a2 Hill
near Andover, and going up the Hill, he heard:

the News of my Lord of Effex’s cutting his

Throats but what Day, Week or Month it was
he cannot tell, that he heard this, And, Gen-
tlemen, Let me tell you, *tis as bad as the Cafe
it felf, and worfe if poflible, the endeavouring
to pick up Witneffes to put a Colour and Coun-
tenance upon {o black a Villany as this 1s.  Then
the next Evidence is Fielder, and he tells you,
That at their Town of Audover the Wednefday
before my Lord murder’d himfelf, it was all
the Talk about the Town, that he had cut his
Throaty it was in every body’s Mouth, the
Market-People, Men, VWomen and Children,
all over the Town had i, when the Earl of
Effzx did it not ull the Friday following, We
asked him to name any ones no truly he could
not, the Town was fo full of People, and yet
he cannot remember one, whence he had it
But, Gentlemen, here is the malicious Defign of
the Matter. ’Tis to make 1t believed it was a
defigned Bufinefs to murder my Lord, and caft
it upon himfelf, and they knew of the Delign
at Audover, two Days before the Faét was done
As though the Perfons that defigned to mur-
der him, would go to make 1t publick, as fuch
a Report was likely todo. But the Defign of
this, befides the Falfhood and Bafenels of the
thing it felf, does {peak Malice and Sedition,
and all the Diftempers of a difloyal Man’s Heart,
and to go about to get Witnefles to fupport the
Credibilicy of a thing that 1s notortoully falfe, is
ten times worle than the {preading of {uch a Re-
port it [elf,

Then comes Mrs, Ldwards the Mother, fhe is
the next Wimefs, and fhe tells you at firft, the
Boy did tell this ftrange Story, but afterwards
dented i, but fhe likewife tells you, how Mr.
Braddon came, and how he dealt with the Boy.
He 1s a buly Man, you fee, a great Reformer
that does mightily concern himfelf in the Re-
formation of the Government. I never knew
that Mr. Braddoi had any great fhareinit: He
has not fuch a prodigious Eitate I {uppofe, that
for fear of loling his great Eftate he thould be
o wondrous buly and altive in reforming the
Government ; but I have always obferved it for
a Rule, that your beguarly inconfiderable Fel-
lows are the warmelt People in the Bufinefs of
Reformation, and for defending Liberty and
Property as they call 1ts and then they put ic
under the Difguife of Religion, when, alas,
thofe that have no Religion are generally the
greatelt Pretenders of taking care of it; and
thofe that have no Eftates nor Properties, are
ufually the fullelt of Noife about Liberty and
Property.  But the meaning of it is plain, if
they can but exafperate the People into a Re-
bellion, that is the way to get a Property: And
If they can but have Liberty to do what they
pleafe, that is all the Liberty they contend for.
They are fuch mean inconliderable Fellows on-
ly that make all this ado among us: For no
Perfons of any Intereft or Quality will offer to
engage in any {uch thing. But I hope the Snare
15 feen, and we fhall avoid ic;. for God be
thanked we live under a regular Gavernment,
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where the Laws are duly executed ; we need not
be afraid of wrong from the Government, The
Courts of Juftice are open where they. may have
Security 5 and the beft Security to good Subjeéts,
is that which the Law gives them, ,

Mrs. Edwards, fhe tells you, When Bradden
came to enquire avout it, it madethem all a lit-
tle concerned; and the Daughter was afirighted,
and {he comes to the Boy, andfays, Billy, Zilly,
here has been a Man about fuch a thing, pray
{peak the Truth: Why, fays he, will any harm
come of 1t? Says the, I can’c tell, bur tell you
the Truth. And then when the Boy comes to
tell Truth, he then fays, all the Story was falfe.
Belides this, fays the, We told Mr. Braddsn,
before the Boy figned it, That he bad faid it was
falfe; and he was told it again before the King
and Council, that it was falfe. But nothing would
ferve him but he muft havea Horfe and 2 Man,
and he muft go his Circuit to pick up ridiculous
Stories,  Leiters muit be contrived from one to
another to gtve a Colour to the Matter, and all
this to fpread about his malicious Reports and
falfe News.

And by this means, Gentlemen, I muft tell
you, The Matter 1s fixed as to the fecond part of
the Information, which 1s the corrupting of Wit-
nefles; for tho’ fie did not get any Witnefles
{worn, and {o’tisno Subornation of Perjury, ftrick-
ly, yet however ’tis a Mifdemeanour to labour
any one, much more fucha Child, into a Falfity,
as apparently he did; {or as the Boy fwears now,
He never did make mention of going tomy Lord
Gerard’s Lodgings.

‘The next Evidence 1s young Mrs, Edwards,
Sarab the Daughter, and fhe comes and gives
an account of the fame. That the Boy did tell
fuch a Story at firft, but, fays fhe, I knew him
to be fuch a lying Boy, and 1 had fo often found
him in Lies, that I did not mind what he faid.
And he ufed to tell Lies when he had been
playing Truant, Then comes Mr. Bradden 10
enquire about the Bufinefs, and when he began
to profecute it, the Girl began to be affrighted,
and fhe calls the Boy to her, and engaged him
to tell her the ‘Truth, and thenimmediazely upon
that, he did fay it wasall a Story, and Invention
of his own, .

And then ’tis very material to obflerve, That
the Boy m that Paper of Information (which is
all of Mr, Bradder’s Hand-writing) makes the
Circumftance of the Razor’s falling down, to
be calt of the infide of the Pales, and the Girl
fays, 1t was of the outfide, and there was a
Coach, and abundance of People by, and a great
many fine Circumitances, and not one of them
true.

The next ptece of Evidence is, fhe dees fay,
That after he told her it was falle, fhe gave
notice to Braddon, and being asked, Whether
fhe did not f{righten him by threatning his Fa~
ther would be turned out of his Place? GShe
{wears, No. But all thofe kind of Queftions
were by a Side-Wind, to make Reflections upon
the Government; as tho’ the King would turn
Men out, becaufe they would not {wear what
was falfe. It carrics, I tell you, a Sting towards
the Government {till, and fhews the Malice of
the Defign. DBur, Gentlemen, you hear what
is faid about that, there was no fuch thing faid ;
They did apprchend fome Fear, but from whom
thew Fear came, that they can’t tell. Put fhe
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pofitively {wears, when the Boy had denied it, he
had Noticeof it; and when he refufed to fignit,
yet he prefled him, by telling him, there was no
Harm in 1t like to come, but only to Adr. Brad-
don him{elf, and {o he was perfuaded to fign it.

T he next Witnefls 1s Mrs. Bartunn 5 She comes
and tells you, that the was at Mr. Edwards’s
Houle, and what fhe tells you of her own
Knowledge, you are to take for Evidence, and
nothing more. She fays, Braddon did engage
the Boy to tell Truth, and put him in mina of
that Chapter in the 4és, of the great Ditplea-
fure of God again{t the two Witnefles that for-
{wore themfelves, and bid him {peak nothing
but the Truth. And after he had talk - d thus
awhile, {he obferved he was going to take Pen,
Ink, and Paper, and fthe was afraid the m.ght be
drawn in for 2 Witnefs, and {o the went out of
the Room. But before that time, Mr. Braddon
did go to fee the Window, and the Place wheie
the Boy faid the Razor was thrown out.

Then there is the Evidence of the little Girl,
who is the next Witnels, Fawe Lodeman, 1 think
her Name was, and that is likewile written by
My, Braddon. Now you he .+ what that young
Wench fays. She comes and would give {ome
{ort of Countenanc: to the chinuyy, How fhe was
looking up at the Window of my Lord or Effex's
Lodgings, and that there was a2 bloody Razor
thrown by a Hand out of the Window, but
whether it was half bioody, or all over bloedy,
{he can't tell, but bloody it was; and it was,
as fhe fays, thrown on the outfide, though the
Boy faid, it was thrown of the infide. Bur the
Wench being asked, W hether the knew that
was my Lord of Efex’s Lodging? She anfwaied,
No, {he did not, when they come ar_'ld make her
{wear in her Informartion, that fhe faw the Ra-
zor thrown out of my Lord of Effex’s Lodgings:
And then fhe {ays, ihe heard no Soldier {peak a
Word at all; but in che Information, it is fet
down, that the Soldier cried out to the Peopile
of the Houfe, Go fetch up the Razor. And
this was all done in the open Day, and there
wete abundance of People, bu: fhe could not
tell any particar body. So that of une hun-
dred People, which, if the fay true, were there,
. Bradden could not {atisfy himfelf to enquire
after fome of them, but only he muft pick up a
Child of 13 Years of Age to pratife upon in
this villsinous manner. And it carries the great-
er Venom, and Malice, and Virulency, and
Bafenefs, to endeavour to corrupt young People
to that height, as to come and fay, and {wear
thofe things in the Face of a Courr, that are
impoffible to be tiue. It Is impofiible to be
true, that fhe faw a Coach in the Yard; for
you hear what Account Captain Hawley gives
of his Houfe. It is impoflible to be true, that
there thould be a Crowd of People, becaule
that there was a Senunel at the Door, *vffho
muft fee all that go our, and that come in;
and there is no way to go into the Yard, but
through the Back-door, and the Pules aie {o
high, that nothing can be flung over, that
could be eafily difcerned. So that the very
Thoughts of fuch a thing as this, are ridiculous
in themfelves, and not only the Falfity of the
Story is apparent, bur there is alio apparent a
great VVill:ny, in endeavouring to get Witnefles
to prove that Falfirv. For you fec who A
Biaddon cploys 3 he gets a Barber to go along
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with him on purpofe to teftify what idle Reports
he could pick up. Bur this Barber, and the
other Wineffes, when they come here,; can’t
tell any thing. For the Barber, he fays, fhe
faid, There lay a Razor; but the nfortation
{ays, (to which he is a Witnefs) that the Sol-
dier criedy Take up the Razor 5. and. the now up-
on her Oath deuvies any thing of that.

The next Evidence i1s the Aunt, and the tells
you, the docs not remember {uch and fuch Pur-
ticulars, but lomewhat to that purp.fe the does;
but whether fhe named my Lord ot Effex, or
no, 1n parucular, as te his Lodging , fhe cannos
give an account..

Then you have Glashrooke, that comes to give
an account concerning this Gul’s Story, and he
plaiuly 1+ quite different from what the oiiers
had retlifiee before; tor his Evidence s, That
the Gul had faid my Loid of Efex cut his own
Lhrout, and atterwards flung the Razor our of
1 Window : After he had cowmitted this hor-
rid ...urder upon himfed, he got to lue again,
and threw away the Inftrument b did it with
that is plamly his ‘Teflimony, that this Child
thoul: tay fo. 9o that, as m the Calv of Sy-
[«ina, which 1 heard cited here upon anorther
occaflion, the wicked Elders were difcovered by
the different Circumttances of Thine and P'lace’
{o here you. have Circumftances of Time and
Place, and of all things in the Wosild that can
contribute to prove the Falfity of this Reporr,
and to prove the malicious Defign of thele Peo-
ple 1hat were engaged in this Bufinefs.

The next Witnels is. one Swith, and he {peaks
much to the felt-fame purpofe. He was the Bar-
ber that went with Braddois to exaniine this Girl,

Now, Gentlemen,. you are to confider of
thefe Contrivances of Braddou, in bufying him-
lelf to follicite thefe Children to teftity thefe
Stories, after a Denial by the Boy to fign the
Paper, To tell him there was no Harm could
come to him, to diftate what he fthould fay, and
put Words Into his Moutk, about going to fec
my Lord Gerard’s Lodgings, which he never
{pake of; for him to ditate to the other Wit-
nefs the Pinmaker of Mulborongh, whar the
right Day fhould be, to f{et up {uch a fenflefs
Story that he heard fuch a thing at the Poft-
houle, but he cannot tcll from whom, or name
any one that heard it or {pake it befides him-
felt : It s firange how he thould meet with this
Man, for even the Man himfelf tells you, he
knows not who he had difcourfed of it to 5 and
never {aw Braddon till that time he writ the
Letter.  But you may oblerve, that to be fure
the Report might be ipread, it was fo contrived
that the Scene fhould be laid in the Poft-houfe,
and then it was like to run abroad quickly; for
alas 1t was not their Bufinefs to make Truth of
it, but to make the diicontented R.bble be-
hieve it to be a Truth. And fo they began
ro confult with themfelves where it was bett
to lodge 1t, and upon Decliberation the Plice
muit humour the Defign as well as the Time,
and that muft be at the Poft-malter's Houf,
in order to difperfe the Noife of it; and then
Myr. Braddon takes his Circuit to Salishury unto
Sir Robert dtkyas at Stew in the Hold, and to
other People, filling the Country with his bra-
ded Ware ; and "tis time to ook after fuch Ped-
lars, for they vent the worlt of Ware.

Then,
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‘I'hen, Gentlemen, you may obferve this Fel-
low is eafily petfuaded to fwear any thing, for
he gives no manner of account how he came to
hear what he fpeaks of, or from whom, or how
My, Braddon came to him: He had never feen
him before that time, he {ays; (tho' Mr. Brad-
don had fuch a value for this worfhipful Pinma-
ker, whom he ncver {faw, that he came from
London upon the leaft intimation of this Man,
{o zealous he was for the carrying on this weigh-
ty Affair, which I may call this impudent and

intolerable Lye). ‘
Gentlemen, | muft tell you, if any Proof in

the World be {ufficient to prove Malice, you
have {ufficient Proof of it before you now. If
it had been a thing of Indifcretion only without
Malice, if there had been nothing of Caution
given to him about it as a thing that concern-
ed not him, there might have been fomething
{aid to alleviate it; but for him to come as if
he had Authority from the Countels of Effex,
and Sir Henry Capell, who denies it, fhews the
Malice of his Defign.

Gentlemen, *Tis a Concern of an High Na-
ture, and tf you do believe thefe Perfons that
are Defendants, or cither of them to be guilty;
{uch as you believe to be guilty, you muft find
guilty, and of {o much as you behcve them
guilty. And if in cafe they fhall by you be
gound guilty, the Court is to take care to in-
fli& a Punithment, if it be pofhible, {uitablie to

their Offence.

Then the Court arofe, and the Fury afterwards
gave in a private Verdi€ly which the mnext
Morning was repeated in Court and recorded,
And by that Verdict they found the Defendant
Laurence Braddon guilty of the whole Mat-
ter charged upon him in the Information, and
the Defendant Hugh Speke guilty of all but
the Confpiring to procure falle Witneffes, and
of that they found him Not Gailty,

Lune 21 Aprilis.

Mr. Att. Y Lord, Here are two Perfons to

Gei. receive your Judement.

L. C.J. Who are they?

My, Att. Gen. Braddon and Speke.  But it be-
ing late, I know not whether you will give it
now, or appoint fonie other time.

L.C.7. No, no, let them come 1n, They will
fay we are afraid of giving Judgment elic.

Then AMr. Bradddon and Myr. Speke came
into Counrt.

My, At Gen. My Lord, We pray your Judg-
ment for the King, that you will fet a good Fine.

Mr. Willians., We are retained 1o move in
Arvelt of Judgment.

My, Ast, Gen. Judgment is enter’d already,
and there 15 nothing but a Fine in the Cafe.

Mr. Hilliams. My Lord, If it be enter’d, it
15 enter’d but this Term, and ’tis in the Breaft
of the Court, if they pleafe, to admit us to
{peak in Arreft of Judgment.

L. C. ¥. When were the Raules out ?

Mr. Williams. My Lord, It was put oft by
Confent to this Day.

L. C. 7. But when were the Rules out, I ask?
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Cl. of Cr. The Rules were out thé lalt Day
of t‘lj]e laft Term, and then Judgment was ens
tercd.

L.C. 7. Well then, Judgment 1s entered, what
fay you againft a Fine?

My, Williams. We were retained to move in
Axreft of Judgment, I am fure I was, and in-
{truted to that purpofe.

L.C. 7. I cannot tell what you were retained
to do, but now Judgment is entered, what lay
you as to the Fine?

Mr. Williains. We cannot fay any thing as
to that, we arc not inftructed; I am {urc I am
not.

My. Wallop. My Lord, We took it, and I
was told fo, That it was put off by Confent to
this Day.

L.C.7. 1 know nothing of your Confent,
nor what you confented to. If you confent
among your felves at the Bar, that is nothing
to the Court. Here we find Judgment entered,
and we muft proceed upon what is before us,

My. Wallsp. Your Lordfhip will pleafe to re-
member, what the Evidence was.

L. C. }. 1 do remember it very particularly.

Counfel. My Lord, Mr. Spefe 1s found Guilty
of nothing but writing that Letter.

Mr. Att. Gen, He is found Guilty of all buc
the Suborning,

L. C.}. We do very well know there is 2
difference between them.

Then the laft Rule was read.

L.C.7. Well, Judgment is regularly enter-
ed, What fay you to it for the Detendants?

My, Wallop. My Lord, we conceive we have
very good Matter upon the Verdit, to move in
Arreft of Judgment.

L.C. 7. Yes, no doubt what you have to fay
is extraordinary material, but you come too
late, we cannot hear you. Siv Samueel Afircy, is
Judgment entered according to the Cowfe of
the Court?

Cl. of Cr. Yes.

L.G. 7. Then we muft proceed to fine them.,

Mr. Braddon. Pray, my Lord, Let Mr. 2V asd
be asked, whether they did not agree we fthould
move to Day ?

My, Ward. That was only an Agreement on
Saturday, that they might appear to Day, and [
would not take them 1n Execution.

Mr, Braddon. This was the Day I was to
move in, my Lord; Mr. Burton knows very
well, he agreed to it.

My, Burton, 1 know nothing more of i, my
L.ord, but that indeed 1 did confent on Setuiday,
that whatloever they could move then, they
fhould move on Monday.

My, Ward. That was only that they thould
appear to Day, inftead of Bradden’s being taken
up by a Capias pro Fiue,

L.C. . Well, well; I know nothing of your
Agrcements, here is Judgment entered regular-
ly, as we find it, you had beft bring your Action
againft Mr. Burton, if he have done you any
wrong, but I did not know that Mr. Burten was
the King’s Attorncy. Butl find here is Judg-
ment againlt you, and ’tis for a very foul Of-
fence, as notorious an Offence as any Perfon,
under that which is Capital, could be guilty

of ; bafe Afperfions of the Government, in or-
r Y der
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der to promote Sedition, and Fa&ion, and for
that End, made ufe of all villainous Means to
corrupt Infants, and then juftify that Villany
with a brazen Face, to that degree of Impu-
dence, as I never before faw, That all the Ju-
ftice of the Nation muft be afironted by fuch
audacious Fellows, for it feems his Confidence
has not left him, but here he fmiles, and feems
as if he had done no Harm. .

Mr. Braddon. My Lord, I know my own In-
nocency, and therefore have no realon to be
troubled.

L. C. ¥. Your Innocence! Your Impudence,
youmean, I tell you, had you been in any c-
ther Country, buc this, the Innocence you brag
of, would have {ent you to the Gallies.

Mr. Fuft. Withins. Then you think, Mr. Brad-
dony you have done very well in what you have
done?

L. C. 7. Ay, Iaflure you, doeshe. And the
Zeal of his Party has gone fo far, that at Jiu-
chefler, when I was there in the Circuit, 1 was
told that his Doétrine had obtained fo much in
that Country, efpecially about that Place,
whence fome of his Witnefles came, I mean, 4u-
dovery that there was a Woman that was here
the other Day, Mis. Drate, being at Conventi-
cle, held forth, That my Lord of Efex was
murdered while the King was in the Zosver, and
that God was the Avenger of Murder, and had
found out a proper Perfon for the Profecution
of it, that was Nr. Bradden; and this {vivelling
Cant prevailed at the Conventicle. It is no (uch
{mirking Matter as you make it, Mr. Braddon,
I affure you.

Mr. Braddon. My Lord, if I did know my
felf to be under any Guilr, I would very rcadily
and humbly acknowlidge it.

L. C. # Well, 1leca great many of the Par-
ty about you, I can {py them out, though they
think they are not {en; but they {hall know we
will not {uffer fuch Monfters as thele to go with-
out due Punithment,

Afr, Fuft. IWithins. He ftands upon it, he is in-
nocent {till, notwithftanding all that was proved,
and the Juries Verdict.

L: C. ¥. Yces, alack-a-day, he wipes his
Mouth, and has not fo much as eaten, I’ll war-
rant you.

Mr. Juft. Withins. 1 expelted you would
have been forry, Mr. Braddon, for what you
had done, and exprefled fome Penitence, bur,
it feems, you are very innocent.

My, Braddon, 1 did not direttly, nor indi-
reftly, offer any thing to induce the Children
to give their Teftimony, nor was any fuch
thing proved: I know my own Innocency.

My, Att. Gen. The Jury have found it other-
wile.

L. C. 7. And that upon a fair, afull, and 2
convincing Evidence, and no Man in the World
can make any doubt of the Truth of thac
Verdi¢t; but he that had a fhare In your
Guilt, or in that it had a tendency towards, I
inean that horrid Confpiracy. And I affure you,
Mr. Braddon, you tread upon the very Heels of
it {mirk at ir, and be as merry about it as you
will.

M. Braddon. 1f 1did not know my own In-
nocency, then I had reafon to be troubled.

L. C. ¥. Your own Innocency! If you did

not know your own Impudence, you mean; ’tis
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that only that makes you fmirk and fmile at fuch
Things as thele.

M. Fufe. Withins. Mr. Braddoiz, when you were
advifed by Sir Henry Capell to takea prudent and
a good Courfe, to go and leave it with a Secre-
tary of State, you would not take that Advice,
but you would go your own way, and you
would turn Examincr, and Profecutor your felf;
when he that was the Earl’s Brother, and was
fure more concerned than you, thought it fitzcr
to go that way.

L. C. 7. We remember what Sir Sawizc! Bas-
nardiflony in his Letter, fpeaks of this Martier,
Mr. Braddai, he was got off; why, they dare
not meddle with Mr. Bradde, he is {uch a
dreadful Man, and his Party are fo confiderable,
that we dare not meddle with them; and the
TZORIES arcall caft downs alack-a-day! be-
caufe thefe Fellows can’c catl down the Govern-~
ment, thercfore all honefl Men muft be caft
down, and not dare to meddle with them; but
they ihall fee we are not fo much caft down,
but we are able to reach the higheft of them.
What Conditien is this Man in? I fpeak in
Point of Eftate, for his other Conditions, we
know what they are, his Trial will fatisfy any
Man of that,

Mr. dit. Gen. He is the eldeft Son ofa Father
that has a good Eftate,

MMr. I7:liiains. He is then but Heir Apparent.

Mi. Braddon. No, I am a younger Brother.

My, Filliawms. It feems he is but the Second
Son, and a young Gentleman.

IM}'. Braddon. My Father has an elder Son
alive.

L. C. 7. Iremember particularly 'tis faid in
one of the Letters, That he was a Man of 7 or
800/, a Year.

(L. of Cr. That was in Mr, Spcke’s Letter. He
fays his Pather had fo much,

Myr. Bradden. That is in Mr. Speke’s Letter;
but that is. not true.

L. C. 7. I don’t know truly, that may be as
falle as any thing elfe you went about to have
thefe Children Swear; buc Ill undertake it, if
thou hadft told the little Girl that he had 800 /.
a Year, the would have been as ready to have
Sworn it as the other.

Mr. fuff. Withins. *Tis a wonderful Thing,
Mr. Braddon, you could bring no body to come
and teftify thefe Things, but thofe two little
Children.

L. C. /. But ch! What a Happinefs it was
for this Sort of People, that they had got Mr.
Braddon, an honeft Man, and a Man of Courage,
fays Mr. Speke, 2 Man 4 propos; and pray, fays
he to his Friend, give him the beft Advice you
can, for he is a Man very fit for the Purpofe, and
pray fecure him under a tham Name, for I’ll un-
dertake there are fuch Defigns upon pious Mr.
Bracdon, {uch Contrivances to do him a Mil-
chief, that if he had not had his Proteftant Flail
about him, f{omebody or other would have
knocked him on the Head, and he is fuch a
wonderful Man, that all the King’s Courts of
Juftice muft needs confpire to do Mr. Braddor
a Mifchief; a pretty fort of a2 Man, upon my
Word, and he muft be ufed accordingly; IMen
that arrogate and affume to themfelves a Liberty
todo fuch kind of Things, muft expeét to fare
accordingly. :
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Mr. Fufp. Withins. Mr, Speke 1s not found
of all but

Guilty of the Subornation.

M. Att. Gen. He is found Guilty
the Subornation, he is found Guilty of Confpi-
ring to {pread the Report, ‘The Subornation
will require another Sort of Punithment.

L.C.¥. Ay, but there is a Difference between
them. The Crime was very great in Mr, Speke,
though not fo greatas in Mr. Braddon, and I am
forry that Mr. Speke fhouid be concerned in it,
and fhould take fuch care about fuch a Bufinefs,
with all ‘that Picty and Zeal for Religion he
exprefles in his Letter to Sir Robert Atkyns (Mr.
Juftice Atkyas that was,) that he fhould recom-
mend him to have a wonderful Care of him,
and then thank him for his Kindnefs {hewed
to Qur Party: So he makes himlelf to beof the
Party, and makes this the Bufinefs of the Party,
and {o makes himf{elf to be a Sharer in the Bu-
finefs s for ’tis ZVe thank you for your Kindnefs to
Us, and the Tide is frong againft Us; and I¥e bope
awe fh.sll be able to bring the Bufinefs of wmy Lord of
Effex npon the Stage, before they do any of thofe in
the Tower. So Mr. Speke makes himielf a Party
in the Bufines. And [am mighty {rry that
when he comes to be asked the Queltion, How
he came to write this Letter, he fhould tell us,
He had been at the Tavern, and did not know
what he writy but does not fay, he recollefted
afterwards. It feems he ufed to be often at the
Tavern, and had been there when he wric this
pious Letrer, and {o his Saintfhip broke outin a
Fit of Drunkenncfs, for moft of our Reformers
of Religion now-a-days want common Morality.
And yet they are wonderfully Zealous for Re-
formation and Religion.  All the Villany that
has been thougat of, nay more than ever could
cnter before into the Imagination of Mankind,
has bzen wrought by thefe Men, that pretend
to be Reformers of Religion, and amongft the
reft Mr. Braddon; and indeed I look upon Brad-
doir 10 be the Daringelt Fellow of the Party, he
and his Brother Swmith. If there were any Re-
lutancy, or any Senfc of any Guile they had
contracted, and would thew it by acknowledg-
ing their being f{urprized into it, and teftified
Repentance by a fubmiflive and dutiful Behavi-
our, that were {omething to incline the Court
to Commiferation ; but when we fee, inltead of
that, they are more obdurate and fteeled in their
Oppofition to the Government, they muft be
reclaimed by Correétion, and kept within due
Bounds by condign Punithment, otherwife it will
be thought by the ignorant Sort of People, that
all Courts of Juftice are afraid of them.

M. Fuff. Withins. Nay, Mr, Braddow’s Zeal
was very extraordinary in the Cafe, going on
In this Bufinefs, not only without, but contrary
to the Advice of Sir Henry Capell, who {urcly
was moft concerned about the Death of his
Brother.

Then the Fudges between themfelves confulted
about the Sentence, which Mr. feflice Wi-

thins prononnced thus.

M. Faft. Withins. Mr. Braddon, You fece what
it 1s you are convited of, It was for as foul an
Offence, as any can be imagined, that is not

Vo, III.

H. Speke, fir a Mifdemeanour.
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Capital, wherein the King is very much con-
cerned, for the Infinuations were fuch, as that
the King was mightily concerned, for in as
much as you fay the Earl of Efex fhould be
murdered at that time the King Was in the Tewers
it was an implied Accufation of the King,
and an Infinuation that the King fhould defignto
take away an innocent Man’s Blood, and {o
downright be guilty of murdering  an innocent
Perfon, which how great an Offence that is, let
any Man that has any Loyalty, or Reverence for
the King in him confider, and you cannot fay
you are innocent, Mr. Braddon. Your Profecu-
tion was moft pertinacious, and you would pro-
ceed after the Boy had denied it, and proceed
in {uch a manner, when Sir Heniy Capellhad told
you what you fhould do; and what did you go
upon? You had got a little Girl, a Child of 1t
or 12 Ycars old, to tell a Story of I know not
what, and no body elfe knew any thing of ir,
and this muft be a ground fufficient for youto go
up and down, and {pread fuch a Report, when
Sir Henry Capell gave you Advice to go to a Se-
cretary of State, and let him examine it; indeed
you did go to him, but would not reft farisficd
with whar the King and Council did; no, Mr.
Braddon, you thought that would not gratify
your own Paflion, and Malice, again{t the King
and the Government, but yeu muft take Ways
of your own. This is to fcandalize the whole
Juftice of the Nation, and not only make the
King a Murderer, but you would have all the
Plot, hereby quite lofe its Credit; and you
would make it, as Sir Semnel Barnardifion would
infinuate, a Sham Plot, to tike away innocent
Proteftants Lives. But as to the Plot there has
been frefh Proof of it beyond all Contradiction
this Day, a Man herc in the Face of the whole
Court has owned the whole Thing, he would
not take the Liberty of defending himfelf, that
was oftered him, if he would try it, but con-
fefled that Confpiracy, which you had a great
mind to be an Inftrument of making the World
to believe, was nothing but a Sham, I fhall
not make any long Speech to you, The Courr,
for this Gftence,

Sets apon you, Mr. Braddon, the Fine of 20001.
aind order that you find Sureties for your good
Bebavionr during your Lifey and that you be
Committed till this be Performed. And for
you Mr. Speke (we bave confidered that you
are not fo highly Guilty as Mr. 8raddon,
You are Guilty of a great Offencey but not fo
Guilty as be, and thevefore) we think fit to
fet upon you the Fineof 10001, and that yox
find Sureties for your good Bebaviour during
your Life, aund be Committed till you pera
form it.

L. C. ¥. Marfhal, take them in Cuftody, and
ule them as they ought to be ufed.

Counfel. My Lord, Mr. Speke’s Bail is dif-
charged, I fuppofe?

L. C. }. Ay, they muft be, as to this Mat-

ter, but nothing eife but this,

Then they were carried away to the King's-
Beneh-Prifon.

7Yz The
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The Earl of V.sseExX’s Innocency and Honour vindicated ; in
a Letter to a Friend: By Laurence Braddon.

w5, laft Night to my Hands; and 1 give
_!';; you many Thanks for your kindnefs
Geraat<p thereinexprefled ; and more particu-
2 "t@E} Jarly, that you have fo often endea-
voured to refcue me from the Slanders of {uch, as
without either knowing my Perfon or Offence,
have given me thofe uncharitable and unjuft
Terms, worle than which, the greateft Oftenders
can hardly deferve. 8ir, Your Country is not
the only Place where 1 have been fo traduced :
But myMisfortunes having made my Nameknown
where in perfon 1 have never beeny and my Ad-
verfaries being as malicious as numerous, I have
heard from other hands, That I have elfewhere
met with the like rreaument. But to do my
{cIf that Juftice which I think is mncumbent on
me, in order to the clearing my {clf from thofe
undeferved Calumnies with which I have been,
and am daily flandered, 1 have herein fent you
a pasticular Account of wdat, and bew, and for
vhat 1did fo unjuftly fuffer under our late Male-
Adminiftrarion. And fecing the Honourable
late Committee of Lords (appointed ro cxamine
into the Death of the Right Honourable A#rthur
(late) Earl of Effex) is diffolved, by the laft
Diffolution of Parliament, and moft of the De-
pofitions and Examinations taken before this
Honourable Committec have been read beforc
the Honourable Houle of Lordsy, (and fo no
longer to be thought  Secret,) I do humbly
conceive it’s neither an Offence, or divulging a
Secrer, to publith what (fince this happy Revo-
Jution) hath been proved ior the clearing of That
Truth which (when 1 it engaged) 1o affert, was
the higheft Ojfciice.

By the Proccedings before this Honourable
Committec, you will in fome meaflure perceive
what great pains thiole Honourable Perfons have
been ar, 1n the many Committees which have
herein far, and the many Examinations taken be-
fore their Lordflups: All which had long fince
been publifhed to the World, had it not been
for the Prorogations and Diffolution which have
happened, depending this Profecution.  Eur
when the Honourable Houle of Lords fhall thinik
it vo revive this Commuittee, and order this Re-
port to be made, Lhope 1 thall have an oppor-
tunity to vindicate my felf in fome other way
than at prefent 1s proper.

Sir, Tho’ this Letter may at firft fight feem
much longer than you think the Subjett-macter
required ; yet when you fhall have read rhe
whole, and obferved the aumerous Examinati-
ons and Depoiitions which herein have been
made, what indufiricus and villainous Oppofiti-
ons it hath met with, not only in falfe Reports
and ily Infinuations, but the many falfe Oaths
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not find this Difcourfe fo tedious in 1ts perufal,
as at the firft glance you may fear it will prove.
Sir, With the leave of a lare Author upon
this Subjeét, 1 have freely borrow’d of that
Difcourfe: Yetin all partsnot obferved his Me-
thod 3 but according to your Command, fhall
begin with the Realons that moved me to this
Profecution: In order to which,y I fhall in the
firft Place give you a fhort Relation of my
Lord’s Commitment to the 7swer, with the De-
pofitions taken before the Coroner upon my
Lord’s Body; for the reading thofe Depofiti-

ons proved the occafion of my firft engaging
herein.

The Right Honourable Arthar {late) Earl of
Effex was committed to the Tower the 1oth of
Fuly 1683, by virtue of a Warrant from Sccre-

tary JFenkins 3 which Warrant ran as follow-
eth:

Sir Leoline “fenkins, Knight, of His Majefty’s
Moft Honourable Privy-Council, and Principal
Sccretary of Stare.

F~HESE are in [is Muyefly's Nawe to 17l

‘E aind Require you to reccive into your Cuflody
the Perfonr of Arthur Earl of Yflex, berewith fent
yoit, being committed for High-Treafon, in compaf-

finz the Deatl of the Kingy (whom God prefeive,)

eund confpiring to levy Har againft His Mapefly :
And bim the faid Earl of Bffex"to kecp in [afe
Cuflody, uutilbe [hall be delivered by due Cous fe of
Latw. Aud for fo doirg this [hall be your JF ariaut.
Given uider my Hand and Seal at Whitehally 142
rorh Day of July, 1683,

To Themas Cheek, Liq:
Lieutenant  of His
Majelty’s  Yomver of
Londa.

L. fenliis,

The firft Night his Lordfhip lay at Caprain
Cleek’s, the then Licutenant of the Zywwer 5 but
the next Day was removed to Major Hawley's
(then Gentleman-Porter of the Tower ) and the
two Warders placed upon his Lordfhip, were
Nathanael Monday and Thomas Reffel 3 cne to
ftand at my Lord’s Chamber-door, or in his
Chamber ; and the other ar the Stairs-foot s
and thus by turns.  Paul Bomeney, my Lord’s
Servant, was 2ermitted to be with his Lordfhip.
At Major Hawley's my Lord hy Feduefiny
Night and Zourfday Niaht; but Fridey Morn~
ing about nine of the Ciock, his Lordthip was
found with his Throat cut throughboth Jugulars
and Arterics, even to the Neck-bone, on both
Sides the Neck. The next Day, being Satur-
day, the Jury fat; and before them were fiworn
the aforelaid Panl Bowmeney, Thomas Refel, and

two Chirurgeons ; whofe Informations are as
followeth, according to the Print ; bur thar (as

which have been procurcd, to deitroy the belief I fhalj obferve in its own proper place) varics in

of this barbarous Murder 5 you will (I hope)

the Original from Bowene;’s Information.
The



and Honour vindicated,

The Information of Panl Bomeney, Servant to
the late Earl of .Efex for about three or four
Yecars now lait paft, taken upon Qath the 14th
day of July 1683, Auno Regni Caroli fecund:,
Dei Gratiay Anghz, Scotiz, Pranciz, €7 Hi-
bernie Kegisy, Fidei Defenfor’, &c. Tricefimo
quintoy Annvque Dominiy 1683.

O A IT Hy, That when my Lord came to Captain
L) Hawley’s, which was the 11th Inflant, my
Lord of B{lex asked bim for a Penkiife to pare his
Nails, as be was wont to do 3 which this Infor-
aaut anfweredy Being come in hafle, be had not
brousht it 5 but be would fend for oncy and accord-
ingly fent the Footman with & Note for feveral
things for my Lord, amongft which the Peukuife
qwas inferted 5 and the Footinan wenty and govs the
Bill to wy Lord’s Stewaid, who fenr the Provifious,
but not the Penknife 5 and be told the Footman be
wwonld get one next Day,  FHhen 1he Foosman was
comey iy Loid asked if the Penkuife were come ?
This Informant anfwered, No; buthefhould have
it the next Day: And cecordingly on the
12th Juftant in the Moruingy before my
Lord of Eflex was ap, this Informaint feut
the Footizan bome wwith a Nete ro the Steward, in
qwhich, amongli other things, be asked for a Pen-
krife for my Lovd.  Hheir the Footian was goue,
abost, or a little after cight of the Clocky iny Lord
fent one Mr. Ruflel, bis Varder, to this Infor~
mant 3 who camey and their e asked bim if the
Penkaife was come 2 This Informant faid, No,
my Lord; but I fhall have it by and by, 7o
which my Lerd faid, That he fhould bring him
one of his Razors, it would do as well. 4ud
then this Informant went and fetched one, and gave
it wy Lordy who then wwent to pare his Nailsy and
then the liformant aent out of the Room into the
Paffage by the Doory [On Friday the
13th Inltant], and began to 1alk with
the Warders and a little while after
he wvent dowi Stairs; and foon aficr
caie the Footman with the Provifi-
ousy and brought alfo a Peuknife,
suhich this Inforinant put upon bis Bedy and thought
wy Loird had no moere nzed of ity becanfe be thought
e bad paved bis Nailsy and then this Informaitt
caie up to my Lord’s Chamber about
eight or Nine iin the Fovenoony [ 0n Fri-
day the 13th Inflant] with a listle
Note frow the Steward, [where
there were three Lines writ;] Bus
not finding bis Lord in the Chain-
bery awent to the Clofe-ftool-Clofet-
doory and found it fouts and thinking
his Lord wwas bufy there, went dowin,
aid flaid a little s and caime wp again, thigking
bis Lord had becis come ont of the Clofet  and find-
rng Dim ot din the Chamber, be knocked at the Door
witl his Finger thrice, and faidy My Lord : Bus
s0-body aufwering, be took up the Hangingsy and
loaking through the Chink, be [aw Blood, aid pors
of the Razor; wherenpon be called the Warder,
Ruflely and went dowis to call for belp 5 and the
Jeid Rullel pufbed 1be Door openy and there they
faw ay Lord of Ellex all along the Floor, without
a1 Perrwg, and ol full of Blood, and the Razor
Ly biin,  did this Deponent further depofeth, That
the Razov sow fhewed to him at the tivie
of his Excinnationy is the fame Razor
which Le did biing to my Lerd, and wwhich
did lie on the Gronid in the Glofet by my Lord.

Naote,

This was not*
i the Ongl-
nat, bt ad-
ded by Au-
thority.

This nterh-
ned 1n the Co-
rones’s hand.

Nyze, This 1s
in the Cngi-
nai, but left
out in the
Print.

w7
Ly Ol

private in his Clojet. Bomeney cane up
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The Information of Thomas Rufel, one of the
Warders of the Tower, who had the Cuftody
of the Earl of Efféx, taken the 14th day of

July, Auno Regni Caroli fecundiy, Dei Gratia,
Angh®, Scotiz, Franciz, (¢ Hibernie Regis,
Fidei Defenfiris, &c. Tricefimo quinto, dnio-
que Dowmini, 1683, |

Sd IT H, That on Friday the 13th Inflant, about
eight oy mine of the Clock in the Foreioon, be
was prefent, when be did hear the Lord of Effex
call to his Man, Mr. Bomeney, for a Pentuife to
paie bis Nailsy and thep for a Razory which Mr.
Bomeney brought bim; and then my Lord walked
tp and down the Roowm, [craping bis Nails with o
Rozor, aud byt the ontward Desr. My. Bome-
ncy, balf a quarter of an Hour afterwards, not

finding my Lord in bis Bed-Chamber, went dowin

Stairs againy believing that wmy Lord was

Note,
about & quarter of an Hour afterwards,

and kiocked at the Doors then called, My Lord,
my Lerd: But he aot ainfwering, pecped throush a
Chink of the Doory and did fee the Ear} of Eflex
lying on the Ground iin the Clofet; wherenpon be
cried out, That my Lord was fallen down fick ;
and thein the Informant aent to the Clofet-door, aid
opzizd ity the Key being on the out-fide, and then
did fec my Lovd lie on the Ground in bis Blood, and
bis Throat cut.

The Information of Robert Sherwood in Fan-
church-fiveety Chirurgeon, taken the i4th day
of 7uly, Anno Regii Caroli fecundiy Dei Gra-
tiny, Anglize, Scotie, Franciz, {¢ Hiberniz
Regis, Fidei Defenforis, &c. Tricefiino  quinto,
Annoque Dojnini, 1683.

Q AIT H, That hehath viewed the Throat of the
2 Earl of Lflex; and doth find, That there is
alavge Wound 5 and that the Alpera Arteria, or
Windpipe, and the Gullet, with the fugular Arte-
ricsy aie all divided 5 of which Wound le ceriainly
died.

The Information of Robert Andrews of Crouched-
Friers, Chirurgeon, taken upon Oath the
14th day of Faly, Adimo Regni Caroli fecunds,
nune Regis- Anglie, &c. Tricefimo quintoy An-
nogue Domniniy 1683,

AITH, That he bath viewed the Throat of the

Lovd of Bflex 5 and doth findy That it was cut
frome the one Fugular to the other, and through the
Windpipe and Gullet, into the Vertebres of the
Necky both Fugalay Veins being alfo quite divided.

Upon thefe Informations, the Coroner’s Jury
found my Lord Felo de fe.

The Subftance of thefe Informations in (hort
15 this, w1z,

That wmy Lord of Ellex called for a Pealnife to
pare his Nailsy but the Pentnife not being ready,
bis Lordfbip required a Razory which was delivered
bim 3 with which Razor his Lordfhip retived to bis
Clofety and locked himfelf in: But foon after, the
Clofet-door being openedy wmy Lord was found with
his Throar cut through both Fugular and Arteries,
to the Neck-bone, and the Razor (asbefore deljvered)
lying by bim.

T hefe
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Thefe Informations taken by the Coroner were
publithed the next Abiday after my Lord’s
Death 5 and I the 16th of F«ly buying one of
thefe, thac very Morning (with one M. 2Zilliam
Hatfel) went to Waificad, to the Houle of onc
M. Fohin Evans, (then an Officer of the Cuftom.
Houfe.) Upon reading the laft part of Bomency’s
Information, which depofed, Zhat when they
opeised my Lord’s Clofet-doory they found his Lord-
[hip on the Ground, with his Throat cut, AN D
THE RAZOR BY HIM; Mr. Evaus de-
clared, That could not be true; for Friday Morn-
ing abeut Ten of the Clock, being upon the
Cuftom-houfe-Key with one Mr. Edwards, the
fatd Mr. Edwards told him (with feveral others,)
¢ That his Son being in the Zower that Morning,
¢¢ juft before the Death of the Karl of Effex was
¢ known, he was ftanding juft over-againit the
< Farl's Chamber-Window, and faw a bloody
¢« Razor thrown out of that Window ; which
¢¢ he went to take up ; but a Maid came out of
¢ Captain Hawley’s Houfe, and took it, and
¢¢ forthwith ran with it into my Lord’s Lodgings,
“ and up Stairs immediately, feveral times cry-
¢¢ ina our Murder! and then coming down, pre-
¢ tended the Earl of Effex had cut his Throat,”

Upon hearing Mr. Ewans give this Relation,
I decclared, 1f this was true, what was {worn
before the Coroner muft be falfe s and I did
not believe they had fworn falfe for nothing ;
but muft conclude my Lord was murdered.
Hercupon I did defire the {aid Mr. Evans to in-
form me where this Mr., Edwards lived ; for I
proteited, 1 would inquire into the Matter. Mr.
Ewans then told me, Mr. Edwards lived in Aar-
Laue, by the Tower.

When I came to Town that Afternoon, about
Six of the Clock, Idid forthwith acquaint {feve-
ral of my Friends with my Deflign of making
immediate inquiry into the Truth of this Story ;
which 1f I found Realon to believe, I thought it
was proper to be taken upon Oath before fome
Tuitice of Peace, ‘1 order to a further inquiry.
By moft of my Acquaintance I was diffuaded
from it 3 they telling me, That if my Lord was
indeed murdered, the Perfons and Intereft con-
cerned in the Murder were too Powerful for
me to engage ; and therefore I muft expect no-
thing but Ruin by meddling in the Matter. To
all which Difluafions, I generally gave this
Anfwer: ‘That I wounld do nothing herein, but
what I could juftify to God and a good Conlci-
ence: And the threatned Ruin I did not fear,
or would thereby be deterred; for if my Lord
was indeed barbaroufly murdered, the fame
Principles and Pratices that murdered him,
might take off many of thole Honourable Per-
fons they then had, or fhould take into Cuftody,
and precend, as they did in this Cale, That this
was done by the Prifoners themlelves, to avold
an nfamous Execution: So that God only knew
in how many Mens Defiruction fuch treacherous
Practices might determine.  But 1f thofe bloody
Mecen once tound, that fuch their Defign was
{ufpected, and like to be deteied, 1n all pro-
bability, they would defift from the like villain-
ous Prattices; and fecing this would be more
for the Intereft of the Pablick, than I could pof-
fibly be either in my Liberty, or otherwife, 1
was relolved to Sacrifice thar, and what{oever
el T had, to the Service of my Country.
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My Friends finding me thus refolved to en-
gage, they advifed me at firlt to inform my
Lord’s Honourable Family herewith, and to
obferve fuch Diretions as from them I fhou!d
receive; wherefore that very Mounday Evening, |
went to St. Fames’s-Square to my Lord’s Houfe,
where 1 found Sir Heary Capell under great Dif-
order, by Reafon of that deplorable Accident.
I did inform Sir Hemry of what I had heard,
but told him,; That I had not then {poken either
with the Boy, or his I'ather, who (as I was in-
formed) lived in AMark-Lane by the Tower 3 and
if Sir Henry thought fit, I would the next Morn-
ing go with any whom he fhould appoint, to
Difcourfe the Father and Him : Sir Heirry thank-
ed me for my Information, but {uid he was then
under fuch a Concern for fo great a Misfortune,
as had herein befaln his Family, that he hardly
knew what he did or faid, £F¢. The next Morne-
ing I went to Mr. Edwards, to whom, as foon
as I had told the Caufe of my coming, the old
Man {eemed much {urprized and concerned, and
in Tears told me he was Ruined; to which I
anlwered, That I did {uppofe he was not igno-
rant what great Things the Father of this Un-
fortunate Lord had done, and {uffered for His
Majelty’s Intereft, and how this very Lord him-
felt had been highly in His Majefty’s Favour,
having been employed in Places of the greateft
Honour and Truft 3 and therefore, if his Lord-
{hip fell by treacherous Hands, none (in Reafon)
could be fuppofed fo zealous for a Difcovery,
as His Majefty would, who could proteét him
from whatfcever Danger might feem to threaten
him j befides, if there were any Danger, I ftood
principally fubjett to it; but the Danger I did
not fear, confidering of what Confequence this
might prove, by being mquired into: At length
Mr. Edwards gave me the fame Information (in
Subftance) I had the Day before received from
Mr. Ewans. 1 then delired to {ce his Son, who
being then at School, I could not fpeak with
him ; but that Afternoon about Two of the
Clock I went again, and was then told, That
the Boy had denied all, which denial was occa-
fioned by his Sifter’s telling him, He fhonld be
Hang’d for what be bad herein declared ; this the
Sifter could not deny; but as foon as the Boy
was called into the Parlour, where I with feveral
others were, before I queltioned him about it,
difcourfed him concerning the Danger of a Lye;
and after I had {olemnly injoined him to tell
me the very Truth : The Boy then declared to
me, as he did at firft to his 'ather and Sifters,
and told me, That bis Siffer’s Threats bad fright-
ned bim into o Deunial, Upon this, I took in
Writing the Subftance of what the Boy declared,
and the next Day drew it into a formal Infor-
mation, which followeth ;

The Information of 77:illiam Edwards; Second
Son to Thomas Edwards, of the Parith of 4/
hallows Barking, London, taken the 18th Day
of Fuly, in the Thirty Fifth Year of the
Reign of our Sovereign Lord King Charles
the Second, Auuo 1683.

Aysy Thar this Informant on Friday the 1325
of this Inflant July, as be was going to School,
with bis Brothey Edward, be beard that Eis Ma-

Jeftyy aind His Royal Highuefs the Duke of York,

were
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were goiig tothe Tower s whereupon this Informiant
Joft his Biother, and went to the 'Tower to fee (s
Miieftyy and His Royal Highnefs; and when this
Taforinant bad feen His Mz efty, and His Royal High-
wefsy this Informant about Nine of the Clock in the
Norning of the fame Day, cwent to feemy Lord Bran-
don Gerard's Lodgings 5 and as this Informant was
fianding alioft vver- egainft my Lord Brandon Ge-
rard’s Lodzinzs, betweeir the Lovd Gerrard’s and the
Jate Lord of Bflex’s Lodsings, this Informant fawe
Fand caft out a bloody Razor out of the faid Earlof
Tflex’s Lodginzs 5 And this Iformant was going to
take up the faid Razory whichbe faw on the Ground
10 be bloady 3 but before this Informant came to the
Razory there caiie @ Maid runutig out of Ceptain
H wley’s Hanfe, where the faid Losd of Eflex
lodged, aid took up the fuid Razory which fhe car-
ried into the fud Captain Hlawley's Houfe : And
this Informaint believesy that it was the faid Maid,
atoiz be firlt beard cry ont Marder © dnd this In-
forinant further faithy That be heard the faid
Maid fay te foie whicly awere about the Dociy after
the fuurder was cry'dy That fhe did bear the faid
Lord of Eflex 1o groan thivee tiines that Moviing.

The Information of Mrs. Edwards, Wife to
Thomas Edwards.

O Aithy That about Ten of the Clock in the Mora-
J iaz, o Friday the 13¢h of this Inflant July,
This Informant’s youngeft Son William Edwards,
aned abont Thirteen lears, came trembling to this
Informanty and in great dinazement and Horror,
2old this Informanty, That the Lord of bflex bad Cut
his Throat in the Towery and further faid, That
be the faid William Edwards in the Moruing about
Niine of the Clock, did fec a Hand caff out a Razor
out of the faid Lord of Eflex’s Lodying Hindviw,
which Razor be [aw on the Grouid to be Bloudy,
aid the faid William Edwards wwas going to take
wp the [aid Razor, but before be came to it, there
came a Maidruiming out of Captain Hawley’s Houfe,
where the faid Earl of Ellex ladged, aind took ap the
Razer, which fhe the faid Miid forthwith carried
into the fuid Captain Hawley’s Houfe 5 and fooir af-
ter e the faid Willlam Edwards beard bery as be
the faid William Edwards aid believe, cryout Nui-
dei.  Aud this Informans further faithy That the
Subffaice of what the faid William BEdwards batls
fworin in bis Informstion, be the faid William
Edwards on Friday I/} did declare to this Informant,
and her whole Family, feveraltimes, attefiingit tobe
truey aid feveral times fiice,

This the Boydeclared he was ready to attelt ;
but finding feveral Juftices of the Peace very fhy,
1 chought it proper to carry thefe Informations
to the Secretary of State, and know his Plealure
therein 3 accordingly, Thusfday the 18th of Fu-
v, about Four of the Clock, I delivered thefe
Informations of the Boy and lus Mother, to
whom the Boy had difcover’d ity as {oon as he
came from the Zower. My Lord Suiderlond
leemed much f{orprized, and after fome Paule,
told mz, That I thould bring the Perions (who
vere not then with me) the next Morning, aid
if it wwere propery De wwould take thetr Depofitions —
'i'ie next Morning about Nine or Ten of the
Clock, 1 went with the Boy and his Sifter, (the
Mother not being weli) to whom the Boy had
hkewife, as foon as he came from the Tower,

903

revealed what he had as before feen. As foon
as I came to the Secretary’s Office, I {ent his
Lordfhip word, that according to his Lordfhip’s
Order, I did attend. Immediately upon which
(before my felf, or either of the Informants
were cxamined) Mr. Aiterbury the Mcllenger
came to the Office,and took me into Cuftody ; (the
only Initance where {uch as came to give
Information on the Behalf of the King, A
were {o treated before any Accufation
againft them,) and fome thort time after, thusin
Cultody, I was called in before the then King
and Council.

LThe firft Queftion (to my Remembrance) ask-
ed, was, What made me engage in that Matter ?
To which I anlwered, 'That [ was altogether
unrelated to, and unacquainted with that Ho-
nourabic Family ; {fo that there lay no more per-
fonal Obligation upon me firft to move, thanup-
on any Man whatever, who might have met
with the like Information; but it was my love
to ‘I'ruth and Juftice firftengaged me init ; and
through the Grace of Goit, my Duty therein I
would do, though Death ftared me in the [Face
cvery Step I made. I can’t but here obferve the
Carriage of the then Duke of 7o, who with a
concerned Countenance, leaning his Elbow up-
on the Board, covered his Face with his Hand,
upon which | did immediately imagine, that
fomewhat within did more trouble him, than
all the trouble from without did me; for though
I ftood as the fuppofed Criminal, I had reafonto
guels ——/omebody elfe was the real one. 1 did
then oblerve to His Majefty the Incoherence and
Contradictions fworn beforc the Coroner by
Bumeney and Ruffel, who were the Perfons that
pretended to prove the Sclf-Murder before the
Coroner ; upon which his Highnels called for
thofe Informations, but faid nothing in Anfwer;
His Majefty then tock them, and faid as htde 5
but the then Lord Keeper Nosth having read
them, went about to reconcile thofe Incoheren-
ces and Contradictions; upon which ] did object
againft what his Lordfhip faid, as infufhcient,
and further urged the Objetions I had betore
made. His Lordthip {cemed very angry thac 1
made thole Refleétions 3 but, with Submiffion,
I think, by printing the Cor.ner’s Depofiions,
every Man was in fome {ort appealed to, whe-
ther what was fo {worn, and printed, was not
{ufficient to induce every impartial Perfon (for
fuch the Coroner and Jury oughr to have becn)
that the Earl of Efex did indeed cut his own
Throaty and the printing thole great Incoherene
ces, and contradi€tory Depofitions, argued as
areat Impelicy in the Authority that publifhed
them, as the depofing them did Villany in the
Informants, or the belicving them want of Un-
derftanding (not to fay Honefty, Integrity and
Impartiality) in the Coroncr, and moft of the
Jury. After fometime {pent in the Examination,
[ was ordered to withdraw into the Secretary’s
Office, and repeated Orders given by the then
King, that | fhould be kept clofe (perhaps that
I might not hear the Boy, or his Sifterexamined 3)
the Boy was thencalled iny and ac firft (as I was
afterwards informed) did not deny the Truth
of his Information ; but being not then paft
Thirteen, and frighted by being before fo great
Authority, he wept; upon which his then Ma-
jefty ftroked him upon the Head, and fid, did
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you noi fnvER} this to excufe your truanting ? To
which the Boy trembling, anfwered, yes; (this
the Boy declared at Home after his Examinati-
on.) Then the Sifter was called, who declared
how the Boy, upon his firlt coming from the
Towery had informed her as before fet forth;
and tho’ after threatned to be whipt, never re-
erafted till the Zwefday, when 1 having been
there, his Sifter had frighted him into a denial,
which as foon as Icame the {econd time, he re-
trafted, and ftood to his firft Information, faying,
his Sifter had frighted him, and teld him he
fhould be hanged, and bis Father would be un-
done 3 the Fear of which made him deny it :
She further declared, that the did verily believe
they never knew or heard of me till the Tuefday
after my Lord’s Death, and thac I never did
oive, or offer her Brother one Farthing, but fuill
enjoined him to [peak nothing but the Truth,
(this the Sifter did after declare was the Sub-
{tance of her Examination.) After the Sifter’s
Examination was over, 1 was the fecond Time
called for, and told by my Lord-Keeper, thac
I would have fuborned the Boy; to which I an-
fwered, that I was well fatished of my Innocen-
cy in, and Abhorrence of all fuch Pritices,
which in this Cafe appeared impoflible, feeing
the Relation of the Boy was feveral Days before
I ever faw or hcard of the Boy; neverthelefs I
was ready to give what Bail his Lordfhip thould
be pleas’d to command; upon which I was or-
dered to give Bonds with Two Securities in
Two Thouland Pound apicce ; this I did that
very Afternoon 3 but the Omifiton of the Under-
Secretary, in the Form of thefe Bonds, was very
Advantageous to me, and my Security ; for
whereas the Condition of all Council-Bonds were
to conclude, aud iz the imesn time 10 be of the good
Bebavionry this Claufe in mine was left out, by
which my Friends were faved from that, which
otherwife would (as you will afterwards find)
have ruined them. Standing thus under Two
Thoufand Pound to anlwer to an Informartion
of Subornatien, 1 thought I was in Selt-Jultice
bound to make what further Inquiry 1 could, to
ftrengthen the Boy's Evidence. To which my
Lord-Keeper (without the teaft Coleur) fuggeft-
cd, I didendeavour to fuborn the Boy tof{wear,
In this Inquiry I was daily hurried up and down,
and found moft People afraid to difcover what
they herein knew; and which was more, few of
my Acquaintance could I prevail with to go with
me upon thefe Inquirics; for my Misfortuncs,
with the Danger that fromthe Corruption of the
then Times naturally threatned Men, deterred

all from cngaging any way herein.
Alr. Cragg. Butatlength I met witha Gentleman,

who readily went with me upon all
Occafions. Ina conftant fearch atier many Par-
ticulars (which would be too tedious here to se-
peat) I was likewifc informed of a Girl that had
alfo feen the bloody Razor, as before, thrown
out of my Lord’s Chamber-Window ; upon
whichI went to St. Catharine’s, where the Girl
lived, and feveral Perfons being prefent, I took
in Writing what the could fay herein, and what
her Auntand Mr. Glashrooke, to whom fhe rela-
ted it as the came from the Zower, could teftify 3
which Relation wasas followeth.

Angufp the Sth, 1683, The Information of
Yane Lodenan, aged about 13 Years, who
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did in the Prefence of thefe whofe Names
arc herc under-written, declare as followeth,

T Hat the f2id Jane Lodeman wasin the Tower
on Friday Mpraing, the 13th of July /14,
and flanding alnoft over-againft the late Earl of
Eflex’s Lodging Findow, fhe faw ¢ Hand caff 04 a
Razor out of my Lord’s IVindow, and immediately
upon that fhe beard Shrieks 3 and that there was o
Soldier by szy Lord’s Doory <vbich cried ont to thofe
within the foufe, toar fome body fhonld coine and
take upe Razoy, which was throws ont of the }Vin-
dow y wherenpon theve caite o Maid with a I hite
Hood ont of the Houfey but who took up the Razor,
fhe cannot 1o,

John Broom, aud

William Smuth.

Angefp the Sthy 1683, Mr. William Glashrooke
doth declare,

Flat one Jane Lodeman, Aged about 13 Years,
inhabiting in the fime Houfe where he the
faid William Glasbrooke Jodeed, did on Fri-
day the 13th of July laft pafy, between the
Hours of Ten and Eleven in the Moruing, in
the prefence and bearing of bim the f(aid Vil
liam Glasbrooke, declaic to her Adunt, That
the Earl of Eflex had cut bis Throat 3 upen
which ber duit was <ery anary <with bery whevca
upoit fhe the faid Girl did declaie, that [he svas fuve
of it.  For fbe faw biss thiow the Rezor out of the
Window, and that the Rozor was bloody, aud that
fbe beard two Groais,y oir Shrieks (wihich of the two
Words fhe ufedy he 1he faid William Glasbrooke
is not certain.)  Of this be the faid Glasbrooke is
ready to inake Qath.
William Glasbrooke,
Lodeman’s 4unt, Margarct Smith,

About this time I was informed, That the
Report of the Earl of Effex’s Death was at Tux-
biidee about Ninc of the Clocik that very Morn-
ing be died, whenas my Lord’s Death was not
known in the Zower till about Nine; whereup-
on 1 rid to Tuwubridge, but 1 found the Perfon
very thy, and unwilling to appear in the Mat-
ter. I had no {ooner returned to Loudsn, but X
was told, the fame Report was at Aarlborouch
in Wiltfhire, (about 70 Miles from London) the
very Morning of the Earl’s Death ; where-
upon I rid to Marlberough, relolving to trace
the Report as near as I could ro the Author.
When I came to AMailborongh, I met with one
Feremialh Burgis, whom before this [ never to
my remembrance faw or heard of; who dc-
clared, That the very Morning my Lord dicd,
he was at Frome in Someifetfhive (about 30 Miles
diftant from Aduslboronph, and an hundred Miles
from Lendon,) and being there at the Dolphiu, Le
was informed that the Earl of Efex had cur
his Threat in the Zower, 1 did defire Buizis to
writeme a Letter to the Mafter of the Houfe av
Frome, to inform me (if he could remember)
who it was that reported this at his Houfe, |
did at Mailborough hikewile - {fpeak with one
Lewis, who did alfo inform me, ¢ That abour
¢ Two of the Clock the Day the Eurl died, as
“ he was riding up Hesbands-Hill, (not far from
¢ Andover) he overtook a Gentleman, riding
“ g very ealy Traveller’s pace ; and as they
 were difcourfling of the News in the Country,
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¢ the Gentleman {aid, He had heard a Report
« of the Earl of Effex, that he cut his Throat
¢¢ in the Tower: Bur the Gentleman was alto-
« gether a Stranger to him, and therefore he
¢¢ could not inform me how or where to find him.”
With Buargis his Letter I was riding to Frome :
bhut when 1 came within about fix Miles of the
Place, at a Town called Bradford, 1 ftopt at an
Inn-Door to drink a Glafs of Cider; upon
which, onec Beech an Attorney, (notorious in his
Country and Generation) informed a Jultice of
Peace then there, That [ looked like a difaffeéted
Perfon, by wearing Band and Cuffs, and there-
fore in that dangerous Time 1 ought to be cxa-
mined ; upon which, the Juftice came out to cxa-
mine me, and there came with him one who
knew me, {o that the Juflice feemed well faris-
fied : But Beech taking the Jultice afide, tells
him, That he ought to bemore ftrict, and fearch
me; for by my wearing Band and Cuffs,it was plain
I was difaffected to the Government, (of this I
have been often told by fome then there; ) upon
which the Juftice told me, He muft {earch me.
When I perceived this, 1 thought it proper to
give the Juftice a particular Account of the Oc-
cafion of my being in the Country; as alfo,
what Papers | had about me; which Papers be-
ing read, after fome Debate, and advifing with
Beech, he made a Warrant for my Commitment,
the Form whereof, 1n the Conclufion, was the
mott illegal I ever faw.

The Warrant ran in thefe Words, 7iz.

Wilts 1. TO the Reeper of His Majefly’s Goal

of Fitherton-Anger, s this Couity,
or Dis [ufficieat Depaty, Thefe. 1 fend you bere-
withal the Body of Laurence Braddon, apprebendzd
in the Town of Bradford, in the County aforefiid,
this prefent Two and twentieth Day of Augult,
taken upon Safpicion of being a dangerons cnd ili-
affecied Perfen to the Goverainent, and for refufing
to give aw account of Lis Bufiiefs in thefe Parts,
and for baving Letters of dangerous Confequence
about him. Thele aie therefore in toe King's Alajefiy’s
Name to I7ill and Requive youy, That upon fight
bereof, You reccive him the faid Laurence Braddon
into your Goal, and bhim theve fafely keepy (iict pei-
mitting biiis 10 have Peny Luky or Papery or Peifor
to conveifo or [peak with biw) until 5o foall 1eccive
Further Ovders from His Majefly and Privy-Connil,
Hereof yoir are not to fail at your Peril. Given
snder my (Hand and Seal at Bradtord, this 22d Day
of Augnit afvicfaid, Anno Regm Caroli Secundi,
Angl. &c. 37 Anno Dom, 1683.

It was long before T could prevail with the
Juitice to let me hear my Warrant
read ; but when I told him by the Sta-
tute f would have a Copy of it within
fix Hours after I was brought to Goal, he read
it to me; finding the Conclufion to be fo Arbi-
trary, I told him he could nort jultity his War-
rant; which thould the Jailor obey, [ might
be kept a clofe Prifoner during Life.  For I was
not tobe admitted to Fen, Ink or Paper, or con-
verfe, till the Jailor heard from the King and
Council, without which I muft perith in Prifon
without Convi&ion or T'rial; I told him, That
ali fuch Warrants of Commitment ought to con-
clude, 4l be be difcharged Ly due Courfe of Law;
but the Juftice told me he would maintain the
Vor, Il
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Lepality of his Warrant. By Virtue of this
Warrant 1 was carried to Z77ilt/hire Goal (abouct
30 Miles diftant from Bradford,) where I found
the Keeper of more Senfe or Honefty than
either his Worfhip, or his Cabal 5 for there wcre
{everal Attorneys in the Inn when I was cxa-
mined; (with whom Mr. Juftice advifed) for
the Goaler told me, that notwithftanding the
{tri€tnefs of my Commitment, I fhould dif-
courfec with whom I would, himf{elf being by;
and write to whom 1 would whitlt he was pre-
{fent and {aw it. Thanking my Kecper for this
Civility, I did immediately demand a Copy of
my Commitment, and writ to Londos for my Ha=
beas Corpus thereupon, which within fome t{hort
time [ received, and was brought to Lowdon to be
bailed ; but all the Judges being out of Town,
I was, according as the Statute herein direls,
to be carried before my Lord-Keeper (North) s
but his Lordfhip ordered the Gozler to bring
me before him at the Council that Afternoon
as foon as I appeared before his Lordfhip, my
Lord feemed well pleafed at a {uppoted, but
miftaken Advantage he thought to have had
again{t my Bail; for his Loidihip {miling, told
me, notwithftanding he did not expect that I
fhould have had much regard to my felf, yet he
did believe 1 would have had that juft refpeét ro
my Bail, as not to ruin them by thofe new Mat-
ters then to be laid to my Charge. To which
I anfwered, I knew not wherein I had preju-
diced my Bail, of whom the only thing required
was my Appearance the then next Term, which
(if God permit) I would do, and thereby indem-
nify them: No, veplied his Lerafhip (finiling)
the good Behaviour was likewife required; a
notarious Breach whercof appears in thele Mat-
ters you ftand afrefh charged with, 1 did hum-
bly appeal to the Bonds themfelves, and 1n the
Condition there appeared the Omiflion before
obferved. For which his Lordfhip was very
angry with Secretary Feakins, who immediate-
ly transferred the Blame thereof to his Under-
Secretary. When his Lordfhip found, that by
this negleét my Bail was {lipt from his Hands,
his Lordfhip was refolved to hold me faft
enough; and therefore demanded Bonds with
Sureties in Twelve Thouland Pounds, for my
Appearance, and as much more Security for the
good Behaviour. I did hereapon defire his
Lordfhip, That he would confider the Statute
upon which I then came to bz Bailed; ana, as
that Starute required, his Lord{hip wouid con-
{ider my Quality, and the nature of my Offence:
As for the firft, I was a younger Brether, and
my Father living; and as to the fecond, the
pretended Crime, 1t was of the very lame na-
ture with that under which T ftood bound with
Sureties in Two ‘I'houfand Pound for my Ap-
pearance. My Lord Kecper replied, That ac-
cording to the Statute, he did confider beth my
Condiricn and the Offence, and regulated hius De-
mands accoraingly 3 for had I been an Alder-
man of Londen, my Quality anfwerable to the
Crime, for every Six T'houfand Pound his Lord-
fhip wounld have demanded Twenty 5 10 thac
then I muft have given Eighty Thovfand Pound
Bonds in Bail and Suretifhip; which (te the
beft of my remembrance) is (wice as much s
] ever yet heard demanded of any Nobleman in
Fiirland, though under a Commitment of High-
Treaton. Whillt 1 was before the Ceuncil, [
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defired his Lordthip, that fome of thofe Wit-
nefles might be fent for out of the Country
whese the Report was of the Harl’s having cut
his own Throat in the Tower, before his Lord-
thip was dead. Upon which, one of the Lords
of the Council (to the beft of my remembrance,
the now Marquifs of Hallifax) {aid, Tbis is juft
as it was in the Cafe of Sir Edmundbury Godfrey.
But the Lord-Keeper, 1 found, would not {end
for Witnefles to prove what his Bufinels was in-
duftrioufly and oppreflively to ffiffe. Not being
able to comply with thele hard Terms, 1 was
remanded to Ailtfhire-Goal: But that Night
lying in Town, I read the Statute, and advi-
fed with fome of my Friends, who found that
the Good Behaviour could not be demanaed,
but that Bail to anfwer the Caufe of Commit-
ment, was all the Statute did require. 1 did
therefore the next Morning defire my Keeper
to carry me to his Lordfhip’s Houfe in Greaz-
Queen-Street; and for the Reafons before ob-
{fervéd, | did hope his Lordfhip would not in-
fift either upon the Good Behaviour, or yet up-
on {o great Bail. My Keeper accordingly car-
ried me : But before his Lordfhip that time faw
me, my Keeper did acquamt his Lordfhip with
the Occafion of his bringing me once more be-
fore his Lordthip. Upon which, the Lord-
Keeper fent for me, and told me, That the
Good Behaviour heneither did or could require ;
and if I would give Bail to anfwer my Commit-
ment, I might have my Liberty. To which 1
replied, That in fo large a Sum as was demand-
ed, I could not; but in all would give Ten
Thoufand Pound Batl, which I hoped his Lord-
thip would judge {ufficient. His Lordthip faid,
W hat was agreed upon at the Council, hecould
not there change : but my Keeper fhould bring

me down that Afternoon to the Council ; and 1t

there it could be complied with, I fhould be
bailed. That Afternoon I did accordingly at-
tend the Council, where 1 found his Lerdfhip’s
Mind changed, an.i returned to his firft Demand,
Twelve Thoufand Pound for my Appearance,
and Twelve Thoufand Pound more for my
Good Behaviour; notwithitanding that very
Morning he had (as before) declared he could
not by Law require it.

His Lordthip did reprefent my Offence {uch as
deferved the greateft Punithmenr, and told me,
Such Praftices might fhorten my Days, (or
Words to that eftet.) I replied, That [ was
not confcious of my having done any tning
which deferved a Prifoin, much lefs Deatl s burt
the manner of Death I did not fear; and if in
the way of my Duty I met it, I could as chear-
fully die at Tyburn ina Halter, as in my Bed of a
Fever.

Having thus fuffered in the defcét of this Act,
I cannot but here take notice of one great O-
miflion in this Statute. This Aét infli@s a Pe-
nalty of One Hundred Pound upon the Goaler
that denics the Prifoner, or any on his behalf, a
Copy of his Warrant ; and Five Hundred Pound
Penalty on every Judge that refufes to grant an
Flabeas Corpus upon the Statute, for the removal
of fuch Prifoners; but inflicts no certain Penalty
upon the refufal to bail the Priloner that fhall
upon this Aét be brought before them; fo that
if the Judge either demand Ten times more
than the Quality of the Prifoner, or the Nature
of the Offence requives, or refuleth o take any
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Bail whatfoever, there ctan no Aétion of Five
Hundred Pound for this refufal be broughr, for
no Penalty in this Cafe is emalted. It’s very
ftrange, that the Statute fhould lay fo grear Pe-
nalties upon the denial of the means of Bail,
(viz.) the Copy of the Warrant, and Hajess
Corpuss and yet not enact an cxprefs Penalty
for refufal of the end, (wiz.) Bailing the Pri-
foner; for whar fignifies either a Copy of the
Commitment, or an fabeas Corpys thereupon, if
Bail be not procured? This is the putting the
Prifoner to a very fruitlefs Expence.

I muft confefs, fecing the Statute requires the
Judge thall Bail the Prifoner, taking Recogni-
zance with one or more Sureties, according to
the Quulity of the Perfon, and Nature of the
Offence, a Special Ation of the Cafe lies a-
gainft fuch Judge upon his refufal : Burif there
be little Damages (uftained, as it may happen;
for though onc Judge refule, another may
grant the Prifoner his Liberty upon Bail, and con-
lequently fo proved, the Jury being fworn to
go according to Evidence, as well in the Da-
mages, as in the Matter diretly in Iffue, muft
go according to Proof; unlefs they think the
extravagant Verdiéts of late Times, (which
found One Hundred Thoufand Pounds, where
not onc FFarthing was proved,) willexculc them,
in giving Fifty times more than was fworn to be
fuftained. Few Words more in the Statute
would, 1 humbly conceive, have fufficiently
provided in this Cafe; for in the Stature, where-
tn it is faid, That if the Fudges fhall deny any
FViit of Habeas Corpusy by this 4T required to be
granted, being inoved for as aforefaidy (it had been
added, or fball refufe fuch Bail as the Ouality of
the Prifoner and Nature of the Oﬁ}:f:ﬁeg#hw,}
they fhall feverally forfeit 3o the Prifoner or Party
grieved the Sum of Five Hundred Pound, to be re-
covered iit marngy aforefaid : Thefe few Words
would have given the Five Hundred Pound for
refufal of Bail, as well as denying the Habegs
Cospus 5 whercas without the like Claufe, the
otatute may (in effect) be daily evaded,——To
return,

But now, inftead of being fent back to Z77it-
fhire, T was turned over to Ar. Atterbury the
Meflenger, where upwards of Five Weeks, I
lay at no lels Charge than 4/ and odd Money
per Week directly, befides other Collateral Ex-
pences ; this being too great for my Fortune to
comply withy I was advifed to 1emove my felf
to the King's-Beac; but before-hand, to acree
with the Marfhal upon Security, to have the Li-
berty of the Rules; this T did by 2 [iiend, who
told me, T'hat upon giving the Marthal 2000 /.
Security for my faithful Imprifonment, and
5. 3d. per Weex Chamber-Rent, he had Pro-
mifed to allow me the Liberty of the Rules.
Whereupon (after fome Oppofition) I removed
my felf; but the Marfhal I found falfe to his
Promife, for he having got me into his Cultody,
demanded T'wo Men for my Security in 10000 /.
a-piece, and 105 34, per Week, Chamber-
Renr, and then aflured me, I thould have the Li-
berty of the Rules. To thefe Terms (fo much
above our firlt Agreement) I fubmitted. Bur
the Marfhal the {zcond time unjuftly dilappoint-
ed me; for under this Security and Chamber-
Renr, I was ordered to be kept clofe Prifoner ac
no lefs Charge, than 2/ g5 34, por Week s
and under this thict Confinement, the Marmhal
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refufed to give me back my Security-Bonds,
which at laft I was forced with Guiteas to re-
deem. For this fevere and unjuft Ufage, the
Marfhal pretended the {pecial Order of the then
Lord Chief Juftice Feffreys, before whom at the
Kings-Bench-Bar, 1 was the then next Term
bailed ; after which, with all poflible Induftry
and Diligence, 1 rencwed my former Inquiries.
But about the 12th of that Nevembery, 1 was ta-
ken up by the City-Marfhal, by Virtue of a
Warrant of the Lord-Mayor, or Court of Al-
dermen, as illegal in the Caufc, as the other
was in the Conclufion of the Commitment: for
the only Caufe (if it can properly be fo called)
in the Warrant, was, Ay being [ufpelled to be
Difaffected 10 the Government 3 finding the Words
fo general, and not one particular Inftance to
juftify that Sulpicion of Difaffection, 1 could at
firlt give no probable guefs at cthe Information.
By the City-Marfhal I was carried before Sir
Fames Edwards, and after that, the then Lord-
Mayor, before whom [ refuled to anfwer fuch
general Quettions as were asked, without fecing
my Accufery and hearing my Accufation; burt I
foon found what was the Pretence of my Com-
mitment, which I had grounds to {ufpedt, was
defigned to be ftretched to the highelt Offence,
nothing lefs than Treafon; for 1 was charged
with befpeaking feveral Hundreds of the Prosef-
tant-Flails, with a Defign therewith to Mafla-
cre the King’s (then called) Loyal Subjcéls.
Refuling to anfwer the Lord-Mayor’s Queltions,
I was committed to Captain Richardfon, who
was ordered forthwith to carry me before the
King and Counfel; as{oon as I came there, my
old Friend, the Lord-Kecper Noith, began to
interrogate me in feveral Particulars; buc § re-
fufed to an{wer any, 1ill I faw my Accufer, and
heard my Accufation; his Lordfhip told me,
my not anfwering that Honourable Board,
was a Contempt, for which I might be profecu-
ted. To which I replied with Submiffion, ¢ 1
¢ did not underftand I was obliged in ftrictnefs
¢ of Law, to anfwer to any Accufation, till I
¢ came judicially to be tried, where I fhould
¢ both fee the Accufer, and hear my Accufation.’
At length the King ordercd my Accufer to be
called in, whofe Charge (in Sabftance) was this,
(viz.) That fuch a tise, about four Years and a
balf before, I came to bis Shopy and befpoke a
Pocket-Flail; <which by Defeription, [ did order
bhims t0 make; the next Day after I befpake three
more, which I was to fetch the third Day. And
did likewile declare, He fhould make we feveral
Hundreds, but I came not according to my Promife
for cither of the threey or did be nake aiy of that
Number I pretended to befpeak.  © That I did be-
¢ {peak one, and the next Day three, I ¢id con-
¢ fefs to be true, and likewile fetched one of
¢ the three the third Day ; burt thele not being
¢ made according to Direttion, I would not
¢ have the other two. As for the Five Hun-
¢ dred, or any {uch Number I fhould befpeak,
¢ I did .declare, (as the Truth was) that Part
¢ of the Charge was very Malicious and Falfe
Major Richardfon being then there, as foolifhly
as malicioufly, endeavoured to fruftrate my De-
fence; for he told His Majefty, the true Caule
I came not according to my Promife for any of
that great Number I had.belpoke, he would
give His Majefty. For Captain Richardfon de-
clared, ¢ That almoft three Years before, he
Vou, I1I.
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¢ had been in thatTurner’s Shop, where feeing
“ oncof thofe Inftruments (it being the firft chac
‘ he ever faw) he demanded of the Turner what
¢ he called them; who anfwered, A Pockes-
“ Flail ¥ And then further told him, ¢ That the
“ Gentleman for whom he made the firft above
¢ a Year before, pretended he would then have
¢ feveral Hundreds made, and befpoke three
¢ Flails after the firlt, but came not for either
¢ of the three, orany of that Number which he
‘ pretended he did want.”  Caprain Richardfon
declared upon this, ¢ He did believe there was
¢ a general Defign againft the Government, and
¢ theretore he did Charge the Turner, That if
‘ the Gentleman came according to his Promife,
¢ he fhould endeavour to fecure him; which
¢ Caution he did fuppole I had heard of, and
¢ therefore came not according to my Promife.’
Of this moft ridiculous Suggeltion, I took im-
medinie idvantage, and told His Majefty what
the Caprain alledged, could not poffibly be true,
cven by his own Suggeltion. For he confelled,
‘That the Turper told him when he firft faw the
Ilail, that 1 had befpoke a greac Number above
2 Year before, and was forthwith to have fetch-
¢d one of them, but came not according to my
Appointment; and yet the Caprain alledges,
That his Caution fo long after given, did influ-
cnce my not coming a Year and a half before.
Immediately wpon this, the King faw this
Charge mixt with fuch Folly and Falihood,
that His Majefty thought fit to order my imme-
diate Difcharge. As foon as I came into the
Room next the Council, Caprain RicharJfin
took me by the Hand, and protefted he was
extremely glad T was difcharged; but confider-
ing his good Service, in juft before endeavour-
ing to prevent it, 1 gave little Credit to this
Aflurance. Being once more at Liberty, I
continued, as before, my Enquiries, in which I
was daily hurried up and downjs for havirg
made it my Bufinefs to get the Names of moit
of the Soldiers upon Duty that Day my Lord
was murdered, I was in a conflant Enquiry
after fome of them; for I had Rerlon by
fome Information I had reccived, to believe
that not a few could fpeak not only to the
throwing out of the Bloody Razor, but to
that which was more matenal, the fending in
the” Ruffians to my Leord, and from whom
thofe Villains went commiflioned. But as I
{poke with any of thole Soldiers, I perceived
them very fhy, and denied to me, what they
had before {reely conieffed to their intimate
Acquaintance; and afterwards told their Friends,
they would not be brought into Trouble,
by teftifying thetr Knowledge therein, which
they knew would moft certainly prove their
Ruin.

Whildt I was Prifoner in the Aing’s Beuch, 1
(with the reft of the King’s Prifoners) was fe-
veral times fearch’d ; but having {till notice fome
fhort time before fuch Search, I conveyed away
fuch Papers, as being feized, might have tend-
ed to my Frejudice.  But in fuch hurries, I loft
a Lift of {uch Names that could have declared
that which was not a little material to this Dilco-
very.

In Hillary Term 83, Mr. Speke and my felf
were tried upon an Information; the Subftance
whereof was, ¢ 'T'hat whercas Arthur late Earl
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¢ of Effex, the 13th of Fuly, (being Prifonerin the
¢ Jower for High-Trealon) him{clf felonioudly,
¢ and as a Felon of himfelf, did Kull and Mur-
¢ der, and the Day after, was by the Coro-
¢ ner’s Inquelt {o found ; The faid Lazwrence
¢ Braddon and Hugh Speke, weil knowing here-
¢ of, but contriving, and malicioufly, the Go-
¢ vernment of our luid Lord the King, of this
¢ Kingdom of Eugland, into hatred, difgrace
¢ and con:icmpt, to bring, {J¢ did fallly, un-
¢ lawfully, malicioufly, and teditioufly Coufpire,
¢ and endeavour to make the King's Subjects
¢ believe, that the faid _oroner’s Inquifition was
¢ unduly taken, and that the {aid Arthur Earl of
¢ Effex, by certain Perfons unknown, /NV
CIWHOSE CUSTODY HE WAS, was
¢ killed and murdered, in order to which they
¢ the faid Lawrence Braddon and Hugh Speke, did
¢ falily, unlawtully, unjuitly, malictoufly, and
¢ fedinoufly Confpire to procure certain falic
¢ Witneffes to prove, that the faid Artber Earl
¢ of Effex, by the {a:d Perlons unknown, was
¢ killed and murdered.

Obferve, The Intormatton doth not Charge
us, or cither of us, with conlpiring, or endea-
vouring to Seborn falle Wiinefle- ; becaule to
prove that, fome Money, or other Confiicra-
tion muft have been prov'd oftered, or promited s
which they being not able to prove, the infor-
mation faith we did Coxfpire to procure talle
Witneffes. Ard yet, becaufe suborna-ion would
reprefent the Matter moft odious, in the Title
Page of the Trial, it was exprefied, Upon an
Inferination of High Mifdemeanonr, Subornation,
aid [preading falfe News.

This Information charges M. Speke and my
felf with falfly, unlawfully, malicioufly and fe-
diticufly endeavouring to procure falfe Witnef-
{fes to prove, That (the Right Honourable)
rther, late Barl of Effex, was killed and mur-
dered by Perfons unknown, in whofe Cuftody he
was; but to deftioy this confpired Charge of
M. Spckey and o lelfy againdt thofe in <whofe
Cuftody my Lord swas (at the time of bis Death) the
then Atterney-General tells the Court, That
they would give an Account of the Earl’s
Death, bow be murdered bimfelfy aid for that they
had o« CLOUD OF JFVITNESS ES. But
when this Cloud appeai’d, it confifted in Major
FHawley (at whofe Houfe my Lord was murder-
cd,) Ruffelthe Warder (who then kept the Cham-
ber-door,) Bemeney my Lord’s Servant, (then at-
tending on his Lordfhip,) and L/syd the Sentinel
(who keptthe outward-door whilft my Lord was
murdered.) Here arc Three (Mouday being
the gth) of th: Men in whofe Cuffody my Loid
was, and confequently (according to the Infor-
mation) the wvery Men, My, Speke, and my [elf,
had confpired to charge with my Lord’s Mur-
ders auwd thefe very Meny in whofe Cuffody my
Lord wwas, were like @ Clond of M irueffes brought
to prove, that thofe Mei, in whofe Cuftvdy my Lord
was, did wot murder bis Lordfbip, but that the
Earl bimfelf, felonionflyy and as a Felon of hiwmfelf,
did k:dl and mmarder. :

How very ridiculous would it have looked,
fhould the then Court, or King’s Counfel, have
thus {poke to thote Three Witnefles, (viz.)
Gentlemen, Y O U (being three of the Men in
whufe Cuflody my Lord was at the time of his Deats)
arc defigned to be charged by the Defendants Speke
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and Braddon, with the Murder of wy Lovd s but
W E bave thought it conventent and JUST by
YOU ioprove, that YOUR SELVES did
not murder this unfortunate Lord, but that this
Loid bimfelf felonioufly, and asa
Felow of himfelf, did kill and iur-
der, as UPON ONLY SOME
OF # YOUR DEPOSITI-
ONS be bath becir already found
by the Goroner’s Inguifition. Do
Y« U therefore upon Qath but
purge YOUR SELVES, and lay this Murder
20 21y Lord's own Doory and WE will infliék exem-
plary Punifoment upon thefe Defendants, whofe Con-
Jpiracy tended to the charging YOU as Aflors in i,
¢r Privy therenuto,

I do humbly conceive, That all this was vir-
tually included in the Examination of thofe
Witnefles, whofe Oatlss were not only admirted to
purge themfelees, but to render fuch as Criminals
as thould endcavour to charge them. Should the
Iikebe practifed in prozeition of all accufed (I am
well fatisfied) no Man will turn Aecufer,

If any fhall fay, THESE (being the Men at-
tending on my Lord at the time of his Death,
and his Lord(hip then a clofe Prifoner) are #he
Perfons to be prefumed privy to what was done
BY bis Lordfbip jult before his Death, and there-
fure the Parties which as to that could be fworn.

[ anlwer, As they were THE M E N which
were to be prefumed privy to what was done

BY his Lordfhip juft before his Death, becaufe

they were the Peifons whole Stations were {o near
his Lordfbipy tor this wery Reafon they were THE
PARTIES which were likewile to be fuppofed
privy to what was done 70 HIS LORDSHIP
jutl before his Death; and therefore admitting
that his Lordfhip fell by Treacheryand Violence,
thefe were THE MEN muft be prefumed conue
fant thereof. Wherefore thefe Mes's Teftimony
being in effeCt a Self-difchaige, ought not here to
have been admitted.

With all Submiffion to that great Juftice, Judg-
ment and Policy, which drew and managed this
Information againft Afr. Spcke, and my felf, I
think herein the Managers of this Proiccu ion
exrremely failed in their Proof for Adr. Speke,
and my felf, being accufed with falfly, ¢, con-
Ipiring #0 charge thofe in whofe Cuflody my Loid
wasy, with murdering my Lord; T'he Duty in-
cumbent on the then King’s (or rather DUKE’s)
Counlel was to prove, That we, or one of us,
did ule indire€t Means, by Bribes, Threats, or
the like, to procure thofe Falfe Witneffes; and
this (or whatever elle was brought to prove this
Information) ought to have been depofed not
by {uch as appeared in Court (in effelt) with Hal-
ters abont their Necks to fwear for their Q7N
Lives s being wirtually toldy This doy and you [hall
lives but inthe Day ye fail thereofy ye fhall furely
die: But this Information ought to have been
teftified by Men who ftood re&; in Curia, which
were neither themfelves to be hanged for mur-
dering my Lord, provided they would not
(by conlequence) prove he did murder himfelf;
or to be not only faved, but well rewarded in
cale they did (though contraditorily) confirm
the fame.

As for all thofe Witneffes which were pro-
duced againft us, to prove any Bribes, or the
like, I do fuppofe Prejudice it felf will not

pretend
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pretend to fay, That by the Trial (which none
can believe Sir George Fefferies would order par-
tially, in our favour, to be printed) the leaft co-
Jour of Proof is given by any.

That Nation is happy whofe Government an-
fwers the true end of Governors, (viz.) 7o be
Terrors 10 Evil-doers, and & Praife to thofe that do
well 3 but when once this end is inverted, and
Juftice (or rather that which a Corrupt Court
falfly calls fo) becomes a §CRE E N to Male-
factors, and Punifthment inflited on thofe who
would punifh them, then is that Kingdom in a
much worfe Condition than it could be by the
{tate of Nature. For Juftice thus corrupted,
would prove as fatal to the Body Politick, as
the poiloning all Drugs, Simples, €J¢. would to
the Body Natural.

This by the perverfion of all Law and Juftice
would probably have proved our general Fate,
had not God (in Mercy) by our prefent Sove-
rcign, removed the Source hercof.- -But to
return.

Upon my Trialy I did expelt all thar the
moit inveterate and malicious Rage could utter,
and therctore was not {urprized with all that
Fury and unjuit Inveteracy, thatappcared inthe
Court ; efpectally the M OU T H thereof; for
in the midft of his Rage, when | was falfly re-
prefented under the moft odicus Charatter,
wortle thana Common Robber, or Burglar, (for
thefe Mens Crimes tended only to a private
Miichief, but mine to a general Confufton;) 1
could not forbear {miling upon the then remems
brance of this Story. A Neighbour of mine,
whom long fince I knew in the Country, an il-
literate plain Country Farmer, who had a Wife
of as violent Spirit as livd; and one Day fhe
came 1nto the Room where her Husband was
(with feveral Neighbours ;) as {foon as fhe came,
tho’ there was not, or it feems had been, the leaft
colour for a Provocation, for he fiill carried
himfelf well towards her, fhe flies into the
greateft Rage imaginable, calling him all the
Names that Malicecould invent, or Rage could
utter; and had fhe not bren prevailed upon,
might have done him {ome Mifchief. The Hul-
band in the midit of this great Storm, well
knowing all to be falfe with which the Fury of
his Wifc had charg’d him, ftood as a2 Man alto-
gether unconcern’d, and appear’d rather pleafant
than difpleafed. One of his MNecighbours then
ask’d him, How it was poffiblc for him, fo to
receive the fcurrilous and bitter Railing of that
furious Woman ? To which the Husband {mil-
ing, calmly replied, That his Wife talked of a
Man he did not know 3 and therefore, what rea-
fon had he to be concern’d, when he was not
the Perfon thefpoke of, (F¢? 1did ask my Con-
{cience, anInfall:ble Evidence, accerding tothe
. Truth, to condemn or acquit, whether [ was
this profligate Villain his Lordthip did {o infa-
moufly Chara®erize; and I found that impar-
tial Judge (by whole Sentence at the laft Day I
fhall ftand or fall) did acquit me from that
Crime, which his Lordthip’s Corruption againit
his Belief unjuftly charged me with; and there-
fore [ thought I might well fay to my felf, as
that honeft Country-Fellow did to his Neigh-
bours, I am not the Mau thus vatled at 5 but his
Lordthip reviled a Man I was not acquainted
with, or knew, and therefore ftood very much
unconcerned at whatfoever his Lordihip’s cor-
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rupt virulence falfly and malicioufly (in fubfer-
viency to that bloody Defign that committed the
Murder) without the leaft colour of Crime ap-
plied to me, who was as innocent of the Of-
fence, as of the far-ferche ftrained and ground-
lefs Aggravations. Let any impartial Man read
the Trial, and well obferve what is {worn, if
in the Evidence he find the leaft appearance of
an Offence, I dare fuffer what I have already
undergone; but if Men will take the malicious
and groundlefs Infinuations of a Time-ferving,
Mercenary Counfel, €f¢. or the corrupt Charge
of as corrupt a Judge for Evidence, they will
find me painted in the worft of Colours. 1did
not expect that my Innocence would prove my
Protetion agamit thefe unjuft and violent Pro-
ceedings, and therefore I might have faved my
{elf, and Friends, the trouble of a Defence;
and with that Aelchinan, who {leeping at the
Bar, wialtt the Evidence in a Capizal Crime was
{wearing againit him ; and being awaked by his
Friends, und advifed to prepare for his Defence,
ftarts up, and rubs his Eyes, {aying, If they bave
a aind to baxg hiry they will hang bur whether bur
siinke ber defence or 0. —— But defiring in {fome
meafjurc to {atisty the World that there were
trong Grounds to believe this unfortunate Lord
was treacheroufly burchered, 1 thought it pro-
per to produce fome Witnefles in order there-
unto; but when I found that fome of thele {o
produced, were {o brow-beaten by the King's
Counfcly and faw that they were afraid to tefti-
fy the Truth, and upon Oath denied what X
knew to bertrue, I thought it convenient not to
produce many of thefe whom I had fubpeena’d,
becaufe they fhould not be baflled, and fpoiled
by the Court; for fhould any of thefe Witnel-
fes upon Qath (through fear) have denied what
they knew to be true, and afterwards (when
Trath in this Cafe became not Criminal, which
Idid ftill believe I fhould live to fee) teftify the
very ‘Truth, their former Denial would be pro-
duced to invalidate their after Teflimony, and
(o their Credit be deftroyed.

As foon as the great Counfel againit me came
into Court that Morning | was tricd, before
ever the Information was read, he told me be
would do my Bufinefs s upon which 1 defired he
would have the Patence to tarry till the Jury
had done it to his Hands; to which he replied,
he did not doubt thems and 1 found by woful cx-
perience he had no realen s for che Jury, with-
out the leaft Proof, found me guilty of the
whole Matter charged upon me in the Iniorma-
tion, and the Defendant Fugh Spekey guilty of
all but the confpiring to procure Falle Witnel-
{es, and of that they found him Not guilry.

In this Verdi&t I ftand only guilty (could
{uch a thing bz poflible) of a Confpiracy to pro-
cure Falle Witnefles. It was never before
known that oxe only could commit a Confpiracy.
For the Notion of 2 Confpiracy I take to be the
combining together of two or more to do that
which is ill. But when Falthoods are to pals
for Truths, Contradiftions muft be admitted for
Senle; €5 quod fiesi non debet faclum valet. Upon
this Verdi&t Mr, Speke was fined 1000/ and
becaufe (the Court {aid) I was the greateft Cri-
minal, my Fine was 2000/, and both ordered
to give Security during Lite.

But Mr. Attorney-General at the Trial was
pleafed otherwile to exprefs it 3 for Sir Robers
Sawyer
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Sawyey tells the Court, They need but read Mr.
Speke’s Letter, and they would find it ten times
worle than what Mr. Braddon had done. For
which his Lordthip feemed very angry with the
Attorney-General, and told him, None fhould
?_[.igear fo great an Actor in the Bufinefs as my
cit.

His Lordfhip’s Behaviour at this Trial was
fo very remarkable, that (as I have been in-
formed by feveral) he was fcarce ever f{een
more paflionately to exprels himfelf. And
though my Trial thews great Bitternefs of Ex-
preflion, yet it is not printed in all its Parts as
it was {poke, but fome of the Billing{zate-Rail-
ing left out; yet {uch as it is, by his Lord-
fhip’s Authority publifhed (I do humbly con-
ceive) there have few, if any, Trials been {tuff’d
with fuch foul-mouth’d Invcéives. But his
Lordfhip in this was to aét conuter to his Title;
for though the Duty of his Place required his
greateft Encouragement to the Detcétion of
Blood, and the Punithment of fuch vile Offen-
ders, at this Trial bis Bufinefs was quite diffe-
rent: For (as I have been long fince informed)
one Day, not long after my T'rial, his Lord-
ihip having drank very frecly, upon fome Dif-
courfe with relation to the Earl’s Death, a
Gentleman took then an Occafion to tell his
Lordthip, That my Trial was excellentiy well
managed by his Lordfhip and the whole Courr.
To which his Lordthip made an{wer to this
eftelt, (viz.) That rhough be was well fatisficd
the Earl of Ellex was murdered, bis Bufinefs was
20 fiifle if.  'This Gentlen:an is altogether averle
from betraying the common Rules of Conver-
fation, by appearing as an Informer or Evidence
in judicially expofing what pafled over a Glafs
of Wine ; Whether the effe@ts of Wine in
this verified the Proverb (/n wino weritas,) I
know not: But it appeared notorious to Perfons
unprejudiced, that there was juft ground to be-
lieve his Lordthip’s Corruption did herein en-
deavour to f{title what his Love (had he any) to
Jufticein the Duty of his Place, theuld havezea-
loufly ftrove to detcét,

Under this Fine I lay Prifoner for about
five Years : But abour Auguft 1687, Grobam
and Buarton came over to the Aing's- Beach to
treat with feveral of the King’s Prifoners, in
order to their Dilcharge; and they brought
with thema Lift of {uch Prifoners; in which Lift
percetving my Name the ONLY Name crofied,
I did 1squire how my Namebecame fo marked ;
To which I was anfwered, T hat as {foon as His
‘(then) Majefty had {een my Name, he called
for a Pen and Ink, and with his own Hand
crofled it 5 by which 1 perceived I was defigned
for Fudgmeut, not Mercy; andupon Application
was fo told 4 for I was informed, that no Man
was more obnoxious to His Majefty than my
{elf, who was the only Perfon that ever cait
Blood in his Face: But if his own Conlcience
by a jutt Application threw it there, I could not
help that ; I am fure they that {aid it, talked
without Book; for nothing at my Trial, or at
any uime after, proved againft me, made any
{fuch thing appear. 1 muft confefs, feveral Wit-
nefles at my Trial fubpena’d, could have men-
tioned fomewhat with Relation to his (then)
Highnefs’s Guilt in this Matter 5 but I found it
was a Lruth too hor, which that Court would
not hear, and thercfore thought it not proper

The Earl of Eflex’s Innocency

to call them, but lefc them till fuch a Seafon,
wherein Zruth in this Matter fhould not be pro-
fecuted as the higheft Ofence.

And this brings me to the Proofs that have
in this Cafe been taken before the late Right
Honourable Committee of Lords. But beforc
I do begin with the Ewvidence, it may not be
amifs to give fome fhort Account how this
Cafe came before that Right Honourable Houfe,
where it was occaftonally brought, upon the
Mozion of the Right Honourable the Lord Zs-
cas, then Governour of the Zotwsr,

For the Day before the Convention fat, (2iz.)
the 21t of February 1688, having a Warranc
againft feveral as fufpected privy to, or concern.
ed in the Murder of this Honourable Patriot ;
and amongft the reft, again{t Major Huwley, at
whofe Houfe my Lord was murdered, and
Ruffel the Warcer before-mentioned ; both
which belonged to the Tower : 1 defired a
Friecnd of mine to acguaint the Honourable
Governour therewith, fo that thele Perfons
might be fecured. As foon as the Lord Lacas
faw the Warrant againft thele two, he did
order them both to be fecured ;3 and the next
Day there were feveral Depofitions, with rela-
tion to my Lord’s Murder, taken before Ju-
ftice Rovins, who that very Day carried Co-
pics of them to my Lord Lucas 3 upon which
his Lordfhip the very next Day moved the
Houte of Lords for their Lordthips Direétions
2s to the difpofal of Hawley and Ruffel, and
thereupon produced thele Informations Mr, Ro-
bins had before brought him., Upon reading of
thefe, the Houfe entred into a Debate of the
Matter, and then called me before their Lord-
fhips, before whom I gave a fhort Account of
what 1s as before moft materially mentioned.
After which, their Lordfhips conftituted a more

general Committee.

This Commitree having fcveral times met,
there was a clole Committee appointed ; the Or-
der for which followeth ;

The Order for the Clofe Committee.

Die Martis, ¢ Februarii 168,
Ords Ceminitices appointed by the Houfe to be &
Cloje Committce 1o examine and take Iuforma-
tions concerning the Death of the late Earl of Ef-
{ex, and bave Power 1o fend for and exasiine what
Perfons they pleafe, and fuch Affidavits, as bave
becin aleady wade in this Bufiucfs s a5 alfo for
wohat other they pleafey inv order 1o give their Loid-

bips further Licht thercin, wwhofe Foidflips are to
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ziake ¢ Roport thereof to the Houfe.

E. Bediord.

Ii. Devonthire.

L. Vifc. Mordant,
1.. Delamere.

Whofe Lordfbips are to neet wheny and where,
aind as often as they pleafe.

Before this Right Honourable Committee,
there have been above 6o Perfons examined, of
which moft were examined upon Oath, and many
of thele feveral times before this Committee,
which in all have {at above 30 times, and feveral
times adjourn’d when other extraordinary Occa-
fions hinder’d their Lordthips from taking the
Depofitions of fuch as then atrended to be exa-

* mined.
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mined. In @ay laft, three of the four Lords of
his Committee, (viz.) the Earl of Dewon, the
tiarl of Moumonth, and the Lord Delawere, -be-
ing commahded by His Majefty into the Coun-
try, the Earl of Devor (being Chatrman -of this
tHonounrable Committee) the 22d of Maybrought
{uch Depofitions and Examinations as in this
Cafe had been taken, into the Houfe: But the
Houfe not having time that Day to rcad them, 1t
was deferred till the then next Day. Upon the
reading of them (it appearing, that the Farl of
Devon, the Earl of Monmouth, and the Lord De-
Lnizere were abfent in His Majefty’s Service, for
the Barl of Dewvon that very Morning went Into
the Country,) their Lordfhips thought fit to fuf-
pend the full Examination of the Matter, till
thefe three Lords returned,  ‘This appears by

the Order following,

Dic Fovisy, 23 Maii 1680.

Fier veading feveral Papers and Depofitions
relating to the Death of the lzte Earl of Ef-
fex, it is ordered by the Lords Spiritual and Tem-
poral in Parliament affembled, That the Gonfidera-
tions of this Buftuefs fball be fufpended, until the
returiz of the Lord Steward, the Earl of Mon-
mouth, and the Lord Delamere, who were of the
Cominittee before whom they wereinade, and who aie
sonw i the Country in His Majefty's Service.  And
it is further Orderedy That the faid Depofitions and
Papers fhall be fealed up, and kept by the Clérk of
the Parligment in the mean tiine.
John Browne,
Cleric’ Parliainentor’.

Thele Depofitions lay fealed up with the Clerk
of the Parliament till the 26th Day of October,
when their Lordthips of the firft Committee
moved for reviving the Committee 53 which the
Houfe revived by this Order.

Die Sebbati, 26 Qitobris 1689.

6" Rdeied by the Lords Spiritnal and Tessporal i
./ Parliament affembled, That the Commiittce ap-
soiuted on the th Day of Februavy, to take Infor-
mations concerning the Death of the late Earlof Eflex,
be, andis bereby reived, to continue and fit as before.
| John Browne,

Clesic’ Parliamentor’,

. Several other Perfons were now examined be-
fore their Lordthips, who having finithed toeir
Fxamications. they began to reduce thole 1ie-
pofitions and Examinations into {fuch order, asto
their Lordfhips thould feem moft meer, but this
was hardly finithed before the 27th Day of fa-
suary, when the laft Parliament was prorogued,
and the 6th of February diflolved, and confe-
quently all Proceedings hercupon ftopt til} their
Lordfhips thall think fit to revive the Committec
in order to bring in their Report.

T'he Subftance of what hath been depoled be-
fore the Honourable Lords of the late Commut-
tee, and fome Juttices of the Peace, 1 fhall, 1nas
fhortan Abfraétas 1can well reduce 1t, heregive
you; inwhich I thall obferve, for the moft part, as
it falls in order of time 3 and fir/f, what pafied be-
fore my Lord’s Murders fecondly, the Day ot his
Death; thirdly, after the Day of his Death.

As to the firff, before my Lord’s Murder ; it

is depofed by Dorathy Sizithto thiseffe€t: ¢ That

oIl

“-about nine Days before my Lord’s Death, be-
*“ ing Servant with one Holmes in Baldwins-Gar-
‘“ densy and ftanding upon the Kirchen-Stairs, fhe
*“ heard feveral Papifts difcourfing (in the Par>
“ lourof the faid Mr. Holizes's Houfe)concerning
“ the taking off the Earl of Efex; and it was
‘“ then and there declared, That they had léen
““ awithbis Highnefs, and His Highnefs was firft for
““ poifoning the faid Early but that manser of Death
“t being objecied bgainft, it was propofed 1o His High=
““ wefs, That the Earl fhould be ffubbed 5 but this man-
ner likewife not beiug thought propery His High-
“ siefs bad concluded and ordered bis Throat to be
““ cut5 and His Highuefs bad promifed to be there
‘¢ awhben it was doné.  About three Days after this,
¢ (viz.) about fix Pays before the Earl’s Déath,
““ fome of the aforefaid Perfons met again at her
““ faid Mafter’s Houfe, where {he heard thent
““ declare to this effeft, Thar they had vefolved
 the Earl's Throat fhould be cuty but they wonld
““ give it onty That be bad dowe it himfelf s owd if
“ any fbonld deny ity they wonld take thews up, and
* punifb them for it. ‘This Informant being here=
¢ upon much troubled in her Mind, and wil-
‘“ ling to prevent (if poffible) this intended Mif-
“ chief, did hereupon advife with one M. Bi/-
“ Jinger, who before that time.had been lier
¢ Mafter; but the faid Mr. Billiager told het td
““ this effet: That if fhe valued her Life, fhe
“ fhould not difcover it to any 3 for the Papifts
< then carrying all before them, fhe was ruined
“ jffhe did. Whetefore fhe did not befote thy
¢ Lord’s Death (to her Remembrance) difcovet
¢ jt to any other, unlels the might to Mis. Bil-
¢ Jinger, Inwhich fhe can’cbe pofitive : But thé
“ Day of my Lord’s Death, about Two or
« Three of the Clock the fame Day, fomie ok
¢ the aforefaid Confult coming to her {aid Ma-
“ fter Holzes’s Houle, one leap’d about thé
‘¢ Room as extremely over-joy’d, ard ftrikés thé
¢ faid Mr. Holm:s on thé Back, and criédy Tke
¢ Feat was done, or we have doie the Feat; And
¢ further faid, He could wnot but fﬂffgf:? 10 1hink
< Dow like & Fool the Earl of Eflex look’d <wheis
¢ rhey caine 20 cut bis Thredt. She fuither faith,
““ That about five Years fince, living with M.
¢ Rowdon of the Old-Exchauge, the was willing
“ to difcover what fhe had as before heaid, to
“ her faud Mafter and Miftrefs, and Daughter;
““ but her faid Mafter Rowden was not free to
“ hear all fhe could fay with relation hercunto,
‘ but advifed her to hold her Peace; for by
¢ fuch her Difcourfe the might ruin Him and all
“ his Family.” This is further conftrmed by
the Oath of Mr, Rewdeny Mrs. Rowden, and Mis.
AMary Rowden: And Mrs. Rowden dotn further
depofe to this cffet; (wiz.) ¢ That the faid
““ Dorothy Smith hath fome Years fince with
¢ great Concern declared, that the did hopé
¢ to live to {ée the Day wherein fhé might fuily
“ teltify her Knowledge herein; and this fhe
 would do, when fhe might without Danger.

Mr. Zdams and Ris Wifé have depoféd to
this effeét : ¢ That Novewber laft was twe'
““ Years, this Dorothy lived with them as théir
¢ Servant; and in Tears hath often déclared
“ her over-hearing the Papifts confult of my
«« Lord of Effix’s Murder feveral' Days befoys
¢ his Death, and by whofe Order thé Ear] vigs
¢ to be murdered: But théfe Informants' know-
« ing the Danger of fuch Difcodrfe (the late
¢ King Faines being- then in fo great Power)

3 dld
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 did advife- her, for her own "Safety, and the
¢ Safety of thofe fhe lived with, not thus to
¢¢ difcourfe: But the faid Dorothy in Tears did
¢ ufually anfwer, That it lay upon her Mind
“* Night and Day; and fhe could not be quiet
‘¢ in her Thoughts, that the Earl of Effex fhould
“ be falfly charged with cutting his own
 Throat, when fhe had heard the Papifts Re-
¢¢ {olution to cut it themfelves, and after own
“¢ they bad done it. And if ever the might with
¢ Safety teftify the Truth herein, fhe would;
“ and did hope thofe Men that did 1, might
“ fuffer for it.

Richard May depofeth to this Effect: ¢ That
¢ (to the beft of this Informant’s Remembrance)
¢ before the Death of King Charles the Second,
< obferving Dorothy Smith to be very melancho-
¢ ly, he delired to know the Cavfe; upon which
¢ fhe faid, That fomewhat which fbe knew with
“ Relation to the Death of the late Earl of Eflex,
< qpqs the Caufe of ber Trouble; and it was not
€ fafe for ber 1o reveal it foany. Upon which,
«¢ this Informant advifed her then to be filent in
¢ the Matter. But about the Beginning of Ze-
¢ bryary, after our now King’s coming, finding
« it fafe for the faid Dorothy Smith herem to
¢ declare her Knowledge, this Informant went
¢ to the faid Dorothy Smith, and told her, She
¢ might now fafely fpeak what fhe knew as to
¢ my Lord’s Death; upon which, the faid Do-
< yothy Smith told this Informant, How fhe had
¢¢ heard the Papifts {everal Daysbefore my Lord’s
¢ Death, declare How the Earl’s Throat was to
¢ be cut, and by Whom ordered, ( with feveral
<¢ Particulars in relation thereunto;) upon which,
¢ this Informant difcovered this to Mr. 2/illiam
“ Tournay, who thereupon told this Informant he
«¢ would reveal this to Mr, Braddon, then upon
¢¢ the Profecution of my Lord’s Murder; and
¢« forne fhort time after, Mr. Tourunay told this
< Informant, That he had therewith acquainted
¢ Mr, Braddon, and defived this [nformant, with
< the faid Doy Smith, to meet the faid Mr.
¢ Braddon, and the faid Mr. Teuriay, fucha time,
¢ at the Crofs-Keys in Watling-flreet, where they
¢ met accordingly : But when Mr. Braddon had
¢ been particularly informed hercin by the faid
<¢ Dorothy Smith, the faid Mr. Bradden declared,
¢¢ That unlefs the faid Dorothy could make 1t ap-
¢¢ pear, That fhe had long fince revealed this,
¢ he would efteem it as a-new-made Story and
«“ a Lye. Upon which, the faid Dorothy menti-
- ¢¢ oned the Namesof feveral to whom fhe de-
< clared the had. long fince revealed it; but by
all was enjoined to Secrecy.

Mr. William Tournay hath lkewile depoled
what herein relates to him.  And I am ready to
depofe, That Inever heard of this Dorathy Smith,
till Mr, Zournay about Febrrary laft was Twelve
Month, informed me of her; and I never, to my
Remembrance, faw the faid Dorothy Smith, till
the faid Mr. May had, as before, brought her
to the Crofs- Keys in Watling-fireet, where 1 firft dif-
courfed her in the Prefence of Mr. May, Mr,
Tournay, and ancther. Here are five or fix Wit-
nefles prove the very Subftance of this Evidence,
revealed fome Years fince, when 1t was little
lefs than Death to difcourfe ity which clearly
proves it is not a new-made Story, and f{trongly
arcues the Truth of the Relation; for it can
hardly be fuppofed, that this Woman fhould
often, under the greateft Concern and Danger
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imaginable, declare any thing of this Nature,
unlefs the Relation was really true; Becaufe
fhe could (rationally) then propofe no Advan-
tage by this Invention; but was ftill told, and
convinced of the Danger. Wherefore it is rati-
onal to fuppofe, that only the Power of Truth
moved her to declare what fhe o often in Tears
related. But as a further Argument of the
Truth of this Depofition, I fhall briefly relate
what Informations have been taken in Contraa
dition to this Relation, and how thefe Infor-
mations have been deteéted as falfe in every Par-
ticular, which corroborates the Truth of the
Accufation: For as a true Defence detefts and [fraf-
trates a falfe Chaige; fo e falfe Defence (being dif-
covered to be fuch) as flrongly freigthens a true one,
The Depofitions in oppofition to Smi2h’s Evidence,
were,

Dosothy Hewit’s, a molt violent Papift, who the
oth of April 1689, before Mr. Juftice Dolber, de-
pofed, ¢ That in Apsil before my Lord of Efex’s
““ Death, the faid Derothy Smith was turned
““ away from Mr. Holmes’s upon Sufpicion of hav-
““ ing ftolen a Silver Spoon; and that from
¢« Arril 1683, to nine Months next after, one
<< Elizabeth Chriftopher, then Ehzabeth Cadman,
¢¢ was Servant to the faid Mr, Helmes, and no
‘“ other Maid-Servant 1n all that mean time.

Elizabeth Chriftopher (of a very loofe Cha-
rafter) who in this particular upon Qath, the
gth Day of April 1689, before Mr. Juftice Dol-
ben, confirms Hewit’s Teltimony ; but that thefe
;‘Im are For{worn, appears by many Depofitions.

or,

I’s proved by Rebert Bond, that Dorothy Smith
did not go to Mr. Holmes's Service, till the be-
oinning of Fune 1683, and that Green-Beans
were fit to be eat, before fhe left that Service in

which fhe lived, juft before fhe went to Holmes’s
Houle.

I0’s further preved by five Wit Elizabeth Dorris,
nefles, that Dorothy Smith was <4 Dupine, Ca-
Servant at this Holmes’s, when fmm Coldvaur,

) : carak Douthvair,
Green-Peale were very plenty and and Rebers Bond.
cheap, (which 1s naturally evi-
dent it muft be the latter end of Fuwe, or fome-
time in Frly, which is about two Months after
Hewit fwore Dorethy §mith was turned away ;) and
1t’s pofiively fworn by one, that Dorethy Swith
was Servant in fHolmes’s Houle in Fuly 1687, af-
ter the Death of the late Earl of £/x; and this
Informant remembers the time, by a very remaris-
able particular. So that here are five or [ix
Depofitions in Contradiction to  Hewi’s and
Chriffopher’s Evidence, which was defigned to
deftroy the Credit of Dorothy Smith's Teftimony ;
but this Opgpofition thus detected, adds Strength
to what 1t was defigned to prejudice,  But it was
further fworn by FHewit, that the 6th of-Fuly
1683, (which was the Fiiday in the Week be-
fore my Lord's Death) fhe went with the faid
Mr, Holmes into the Country, and the firft Night
lay at Wickham in Ruckinghbamfbire, the next
Night at Oxford, and continued theretill the gth;
and the gth, this [nformant went with the faid
Mr. Holnes to Alderminfler in the Cournty of For-
ceftery to the Houle of one Mr., Nathanael Szvar,
Minifter of the {aid Town, and continued there
till the 23d of the faid Month of Fuly, and then
returned, .

Nathanae! Swan, Clerk, depofeth before Mr.
Jultice Dolben the gth of Apsil 168g, ¢ Thae

“ about
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e¢ ahout the gth of Fuly 1683, Hewet and Holmes
oo came to his Houle in Aldermizfier, and con-
v tinued there till aboxt the 23d.

This laflt Information is of little force (tho’
the Parfon defigned well) for it {wears, abont fuch
2 time Holmes came to his Houfe, and .about {uch
a time went away ; but absrt makes the time very
uncertain.

This was defigned to deftroy that part of Do-
sothy Smith’s Teftimony, which declares Holmes
in Town the Day my Lord was murdered.

When 1 found Mr. Holmes endeavoured to
prove (as before fwvorn by Hewt) himlelt out of
Town, from the 6th of Fuly 1683, to the 26th
or 27th of the fame Month; I did endeavour to
inquire out all fuch, as cither Mr. Flo/mes, or
Mrs. Hewit were well known to, or traded with s
and therefore I made inquiry after thole, with
whom (in that Month and Year) they Bought
of, or Sold to, all Shopkeepers, Taylors, Butchers,
Fithmongers, Shoemakers, Hatters, &, and fuch
as upon tnquiry, I received fuch Charadlers of,
as 1 might expe@ fair Sausfaction from, I did
defire to fee their Books in that Mouth of Fuly,
to fee whether any Goods were bought in Town
by the faid Mr. Holines, or Mrs. Hewit, (for
proving Hewit in Town, proves FHolmes likewife
in Town, becaufe it’s {worn, and can be proved,
they both went out of Town together) or any
Money paid between the 6th and 26th of Fuly,
by either of thefe, After a very long and tedious
Inquiry (all thofe Tradefmen being altogether
firangers to me) I providentially met with one
Mr. Welffead, who very readily fhewed his Book,
wherein 15 entred according to his Information,
which followeth :

Fobu Welfiead of St. Dunftan’s in the WWeft, Lon-
doiz, declareth, and 1s ready to depofe, *¢ That
““ in Fuly 1683, helived in Poppins- Alley, nigh
¢ Fleet-fireet, very near Mrs. Dorothy Hewit, and
« oftenn wrought for the faid Mrs, Hewit; and
“ between Aonday the gth of Fuly 1683, and
‘% Afonday the 16th Day of the fame Month and
¢¢ Year, this Informant made, or caufed to be made
« a2 Duft-Gown for the faid Mrs. Hewit, as ap-
¢ pears by this Informant’s Book, ready to be
¢ produced; and the very fame Week, (viz.)
¢ hetween AMsuday the gth of Fauly 1683, and
¢« Monday the 16th of the fame Month and
¢ Year (but in the very Day this Informant is
¢ not certain,) this Informant carried the faid
¢ Gown to the faid Mrs, Hewit, who did then
¢ pretend fhe was about gomg into the Coun-
“ try; but how long after the Duft-Gown fo de-
¢¢ livered, the faid Mrs. Hewit did go into the
« Country, this Informant knoweth not.

This Book hath not been of any ufe to M.
JVelfiead {or almoft Aive Years, and it was a very
areat Providence this had not been torn out, fee-
g the Book for fome Years had been ufed as
walte Paper, and the very next Leaf to this torn
out, and lolt. As foon as Mrs. Hewit underftood
fuch a Taylor's Entry was againft her Qath, fhe,
with Mr. Helmes's Wife, went to this Taylor,
and defired to {ee his Boolt; which being fhewed,
Hewit firft pretended that this Entry was for-
aed, and news; but Mr, Helffead declared he
could fafely, and would depofe, That the Entry
was reals it was then pretended, that the Gown
was fent into the Country after Mrs, Hewit; but
when, in anfwer to that, Mr. Felflead declared he
could depofe, That Mrs. Hewit was in Town
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when that Duft-Gowa was made and delivered,
and that fhe then pretended fhe was about going
into the Country, (but how many Days after fhe
did go, he could not tell) Mrs, Hewit reld
him, 1f he did {wear that, he would take off her
Brother’s Life, and Holmes's Blood would be
upon his Head,

Some time after my Lord’s Murder, this
Holines abufing his Wite, fhe told him, He <was
amurderous Rogue, and be -well kiew fhe coald bang
bim when fhe pleafed, Uo which Holmes anfwered,
That be little thought fhe wonld bave [poken of it,
who of all 1he World had the leaft Reafon: For faid
this fcurrilous Fellow, 2on Bitch, you Whore,
Dot you remember I bought you a good Sattin
Gowi awd Petticont, and therefore you above all the
World ought uot to prate. But fhe replied, He was
a murderons Rogue for all that.

I have been the more large and particular in
this Evidence, as well becaniz it hath met with
fuch villainous Cppofizion by falfe Oaths, as for
that 1t alone proves by what Party, and by whofe
Order this Unfortunate Lord was weacheroufly
murdered.,

The next thing previous to my Lord’s Mur-
der, are the feveral Reports in many Places in
Lugland (before my Lord’s Death, or belore it
could be known) thar the Earl of Efex had cur
his Throat tn the Zower, This )
1s proved by Kight Witnefies, {';3 Ii_}ﬂ_’éfd&ﬂ"” b
It is as to this fworn, ** That 51 riees
““ at Frome (which is about 100 Treherne.

Miles from London) ¢ it was Jeremizh Burgis.

« reported the very next Morn- © hﬂnms.l_ﬂl::r'

““ ing after my Lord’s Com- ;7. puter.

““ mitment to the Tower (viz.)

‘“ the rith of Fuly 1683, that the Earl of
‘¢ Lffex had cut his Throat in the Towver: ” And
this Informant, the Weck after my Lord’s
Dzath, meeting the Gentleman which had be-
fore given him this Information, and defiring to
know how before my Lord’s Death he could de-
clare it; the other replied, That all Men con-
cluded my Lord would either cuc his Throat or
turn Evidence againtt his Friend my Lord Ruffel s
but 1t was generally believed that my Lord
would rather deftroy himfelf, than be made a
Witnels. .

This Report fo far off the very next Morning
after my Lord’s Commitment, proves the Zower
to be the Place (before my Lord’s Commitment)
piched upon as the moft proper for this perfidi-
ous Tragedy.

But the very next Day (viz.) the Hednefday
after my Lord’s Commitment, was it reported
about 60 Miles off, that the Earl of Effex had cue
his Throat tn the Tower for this Reafon, (wiz.)
The King and Dake coming into the ‘Tower to view
the Tower, the Earl of Eilex cwas afraid toe King
would bave come up into bis Chamber, and feen
bims but bis Guilt and Shame was fuch, that be
corld not bear the Thonohts of if, and therefore cut
bis Thioat tv avoid it

Obferve in this previous Report fixty Miles
from Loudoin, the next Day after my ILord’s
Commitment, the very pretended Reafon for the
Sell-murder is given; which Reafon carries in it
an Accident that could never be before reported,
or indeed expeied, but by thefe which were the
moft fecret in this Treacherous Cruelty ; for here-
in is it faid, the F7ednefday before the King and
Duke went to the Zowwer, that the King and
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Duke were in the Zewer when the Earl cut his
Throat, {¢. It is notorious that the King and
Duke did not go till Friday Morning, and their
then going was a Surprize to their very Guards,
for it feems they had nor been there rtogether
above once fince the Reltauration,  In fhort, The
feveral Reports proved by Eight Witnefles, all
agree in the maarer o, and place where; ard
one more particularly futs forth the pretended Rea-
fon whersgfore. 1 do therefore humbly fubmic to
every impartial Reader, whether thefe very Re-
ports do not ftrongly prove, That the manuer,
place, and preteided reafoir, were all agreed upon
before this barbarous complicated Tragedy was
acted. Forotherwife, how could it poflibly be fo
particularly relaied fo far off, and fo long before
it was done?

T thall in the 2d Place obferve what pafied 1n
the Day of my Lord’s Murder, which proves his
Death to be fuch.

Bomeiey and Ruffel before-mention’d, did before
the Coroner’s Jury upon Oath deny that any Men
were lec into my Lord thac Morning my Lord
died. The like did Foebn Lioyd, the Soldier that
kepe the outward Door, depole at my Trial.

Nathanael Aonday, who was my Lord’s other
Warder, and hkewife Reflel, before the Lords
have denied that any Men were that Mornmg let
into my Lord. But that there were fome Ruf-
flians a litile before my Lord’s Death let in to
Murder him, plainly appears by the Proofs fol-
lowing.

Mr. Samuel Story, depofeth to the efieét fol-
lowing, (viz.) ¢ The 21t of Fanuary 1688,
“ beipg the Day before the Convention fat, Fobiz
< Lloyd (Sentinel upon the late Earl of Effex at
¢« the time of his Death) was taken up as ful-
«c pefted privy to the faid Earl's Murder ; and
¢« being therefore in Cuftody, the faid Lisyd, with
 Tears in his Eyes, wrung this Informant by
¢« the Hand, and declared, That by fpecral Order
<« of Major Hawley, or one of my Lord’s War-
« ders, he did ler in two or three Men into the
« Farl’s Lodaings jult before his Death, and
““ he was very fure, and could fately fwear that
<« Major /¥ ebfter, (then there in Cuftody, fufpeéted
«¢ 25 one ol the Ruffians that murdered my Lord)
¢¢ was one; and thar as foon as he {o let them 1n,
¢ he heard a Noife in my Lord’s Chamber, and
«« fomewhat thrown down like the Fall of a
¢« Man; foon after which it was faid, The Earl
¢ of Effex had cut his Throat.

This Lloyd the fame Day before the Juftice did
confefs the letting in fome Men a little before
the Earl’s Death, as appears by his IExamination
tollowing,

The Examination of obu Lisyd of Gosdman’s-
Yard in Aldgate Parifh without, in London, Cloth-

worker, taken before Fobu Robiis, Elq; one of
of

the Juftices of the Peace for the County
Middlefex, the 22d Day of Fannary 168g.

e~ H IS Examinant faith, on the Day wwhereon the

Right Honourable the late Earl of Effex was
found dead, upon the [ufpicion of Daving been i
deved in bis Ledgings in the ‘Yower of London;
be then being a Soldier, was franding Sentinel at
the Door of the [aid Eayl's Lodgings, and bad
order 1o let #o body up Statrs to the faid Lodgings
qithont leave from Majsor Hawley, or the Harder
then in wailing on the faid Earl; and that abeut

The Earl of Effex’s funocency

bailf an Eeur oftcr Eight of he Clock in the Mori-
ine of the faid Day, tcwo Nen (Lo this Examinant
anknowi) knocked al the Hateh-Door belonging 1o
1he fuid Ledoings, aid by Permiflion of the faid IVar-
dery enteved the faid Lodzingsy but when they came
cuty, he can grve tio account; and that aboyt Nine
6 clock be beard ¢ frugeling on the faid Morning,
and a little time after beard a Crying, My Lord
1s dead.

After Lizyd had lain fome time clofe Prifoner
in Newrate, be did defire to fee one Mr., Ten-
7offy a Neighbour of his, who having permifiion
of the Secret Committee to difcourle Lloyd,
thereupon went 10 Neswgate, where he found the
faid Liayd very melancholy; when Mr. Tempeft
firlt came, Lloyd told him, that he did hope, as
he was his Neghbour, he swould be his Iriend,
aiid frie fo bimy to which the other anfwered,
that he weuld, 1f the faid Ligyd was ingenuous
in his Difcovery ; whereupon the faid Lisyd (af-
ter often prefling the faid Mr, Tempeff 1o be true
to hun) told him, that when he was firft feized,
he did corfefs to a Gentleman, who was alto-
gether a Stranger to him, the letting in fome Men
mto my Lord of Effex juft before his Death ; and
this Confeffion did lie upon his Conlicience, and
troubled himy Night and Day; upon which the
fatd Mr., Tempeft replied, That the like he had
confefled to feveral the fame Day he was taken s
and he declared the fame before a Juftice of
Peace; but if it was falfe, ke cught to retra® it,
and be forry fer having faid it; whereupon the
faid Llsyd renewing his Requeft, that the faid
Mr. Tempsft would be wue to bim, /aid, i1 was
indeed very true, but it was what he flonid st
hase coiifoffed.

Lind did then farther declare, ¢ That upon
‘¢ the letting in thofe Men, there was fo great a
‘“ Buftie in my Lord’s Chamber, that the faid
¢ [ loyd would have forced i after them, but the
““ Warder had made faft the outward Door, fo
““ that he could nots; and that upon the Buftle
“ be did hear fomewhat thrown down like the
““ Fall of a Man, which he did fuppofe was my
““ Lord’s Body ; and foon after, it was cry’d out
““ that my Lord of Zffex bad cur his Throat.
This 1s the Subftance ot what Mr. Zempeft hath
depofed before the Lords.

By this it appears more than probable, not
only that my Lord was murdered, but that
there was fome villainous Qath of Secrecy en-
tred mto by thofe concern®d therein, not to dif-
cover what they knew with relation thereunto ;
for what other as likely reafon can be afligned
‘or Llgyd’s being troubled 1n Confcience (as he
pretended ) for having confefled what at the fame
time under repeated Injunctions of Secrecy he
confirmed to be true, though he faid he thould not
have confefled 1t ?

But to put this Matter beyond all doube,
that fome Men were buftling with his Lordfhip
jult before his pretended Self-murder difcovered,
evidently appears by this Information follow-
Ing. ‘
Martha Bafeemb declarcth, and before the
Lords in fubftance hath depos’d, ¢¢ That a little
‘“ before the Death of the late Earl of Efex
“ was difcovered, this Informant was walking
““ up before the Earl’s Chamber-Window, and
““ hearing a very great Trampling and Buftle in
“ my Lord’s Chamber, this Informant floed ftill,
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«¢ and Jooking: to the Window of the faid Cham-
e« her, faw three or four Heads move clofe toge-
¢« ther, and heard one in the Chamber (which
< {eemed to be one 1n this Buftle) cry out very
« loud, and very dolefully, Murder, murder,
¢ murder 5 this Informant not then knowing 1t
¢« 1o be my Lord’s Lodging, nor thinking any
« other of this Cry, than what might be occa-
« fioned by fome accidental Quarrel, walked up
s¢ rowards the Chapel, but not out of Sight
<« of the Lodgings, and about a quarter of an
«« Hour after (or lefs) it was firft cried out in
« the Houfe, that the Earl of Effex had cut his
¢« Throat ; upon which this Informant went
« down to the Houfe, and being fhewed the
¢« Chamber where the Earl jay, fhe found that
¢ was the Chamber where fhe faw the Men, and
¢ heard the Buftle, and Murder cried out, as
«¢ hefore related.” This Informant further faith,
« That fome few Days after this, telling Mr.
v Perkins and his Wife (whom fhe then kept
“ in her Lying-in) of what fhe had feen and
« heard, as before declared ; the faid Mr. Pey-
e« fins advifed her not to {peak of 1t, for her di-
¢ vulging it, in all probability, would prove her
*“ Rum.”

Mr. Perkins hath upon Oath confirmed the Jat-
ter part of Martha Bafcomb’s Information, which
clearly proves this nota newly-Invented Story.

I think this Proof is luttle lefs than ocular Evi-
dence of the Murder 5 for my Lord was a elofe
Prifoner, to whom (as was pretended, and fworn
by fuch as kept the Chamber-Door) none was ad-
mitted that Morning, but his Lordfhip cut his
Throat in all filence ; whereas it is here depofed,
that feveral were buftling together in my Lord’s
Chamber before his Death, (and this part agrees
with the Confeffion of the Sentinel who let in the
Ruffians) and one in this Buftle {which can be
prefumed to be no other than my Lord) cried out
feveral times very Joud, and very dolefully, Afwus-
der, Murder, Murder.

And as a farther Confirmation of thefe Men
being (and by whom) fent to murder my Lord,
Elizabeth Gladwin and Sarab Hugbes declare, (and
before the Lords in fubftance have depoied)
‘ That the Day of the Death of the late Earl of
“ fiffex, (viz.) the 13th of Fzly 1683, about
¢ Kleven of the Clock the fame Day, one Rud-
¢ die, in the Hearing of thefe Informants, did
‘« declare, That he was in the Tower that Morn-
*“ ing, where it was reported that the Earl of
t¢ Effes had cut his Throat, but he was fure he
‘¢ was murdered, and that by the Order of his
«« ROYAL HIGHNESS ; for the faid Rud-
““ dfe then declared, That he did oblerve IHis
¢ Majelty and Royal Highnefs part a little from
‘¢ thole that attended them, and difcourfed (to
« the beft of thefe Informants remembrance)
«« The faid Ruddle declared it was in French,
* concerning the Prifoners then in the Tozwer ;
““ and his HIGHNESS declared, That of all
‘* the Prifoners then there, the Earl of Effex
““ ought to be taken off ; but His Majefty faid
¢¢ he was refolved to {pare him for what his Fa-
«“ ther bad fuffered; upon which his HIGEH-
¢ NIESS feemed very diffatisfied 3 and a little
«¢ before the Death of the faid Earl, his FIGH-
¢« NESS parted a little way from his Majelty,
‘“ and then two Men were fent into the Earl’s
¢ Lodgings to murder him.”~—— So far before
their Lordf(hips.
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The faid Ruddle declared this with great Ear-
neitnefs and Paffion, and protefted he thought no
Man fafe who was againft the Popifh Intereft, if
once they began thus barefaced to cut Throats.
And he protefted his Blood did fo boil againft
his Royal Highnefs, that if he could have got .a
Party that would have ftood by him, he would
have thot his Highnefs dead upon the fpot, for fo
barefaced a Murder had before fcarce ever been
committed under a Civil Government,

Fobn Bampton and his Wife both declare, and
in {ubftance before the Lords have depofed,
*¢ That about One of the Clock, the very Day
““ the late Earl of Effex died in the Tower, one
““ Robert Meake thar Morning, (a Soldier in the
““ Tower) came to thefe Informants Houfe, and
‘¢ thefe Informants defired the faid Meaks to give
“ them the beft Account he could how the Karl
““ of Effex cut his own Throat; to which the faid
““ Meake (with fome earneftnefs and paflion) an-
““ {wered, That the faid Earl did not cut his own
““ Throat, but was barbaroufly murdered by two
“ Men fent for that purpofe by his ROYAL
‘““ HIGHNESS to the Earl’s Lodgings juft be-
¢ fore his Death,”

What Robert Meake did further declare, and
what was fince his Fate, you will hear in its proper
order.

Ido expect it will be objeted, That thefe four
arc but Hear-fay Evidence. To which [ fhall
anfwer almoft in the very Words of a late Dil-
courfe on this Subject, viz. Seeing there is Reafon
t0 believe that the fiifling the firft Murder occafioned
the Addition of thefe two Soldiers Blood (as you wil!
bereafter bave fome Grounds to fuppofe) I think fuch
Informations ought not to be fliphted 5 for after that
rate "tis but taking off fuch as knew any thing with
relation to a Murder, and you are very fecure from
any Difcovery, though never fo uany upsn Oath
give an decount of what thofe Men (whofe Muuths
bave been by Murder flopt from giving their own
Relation) bave declared in the Maiter. Thefe two
Soldiers related the fame as to the fending the
Men into my Lord’s Lodgings in two Houfes as
far diftant as Duke’s- Place and Baldwin's-Gardens ;
and I am verily perfuaded that neither Hughes nor
Gladwin ever {poke to Bampton and his Wife in
theic Lives, for neither two remember to have
feen or heard of the other Informants. And who
could imagine that two Soldiers fhould declare
with fuchi concern and earneftnefs that which was
{o very dangerous to be fpoken, 1f their Loveto
Truth, and Hatred of fuch a treacherous and
bloody Murder had not even forced it from them,
to the hazard of almoft their Lives by fuch their
Relation ?

*Tis true, no Man ought to fuiler barely npon
Hear-fay Evidence, but fuch Teflimony hath
been ufed to corroborate what elle may be
fworn, and of it felf may (in fome cafes) be
enough to give Satisfaction in the general, of the
Truth of a Matter, and no farther is it here
ufed : And I would have all Men confider the
many fuch Teftimonies heretofore produced,
amongft which I fhall only mention one which
had an immediate relation to my {felf.  Mr, Blazh-
awaite (Clerk of the Council in 1683, and as I
think ftill in that Poft) being {worn on the behalf
of the King, againlt Mr. Speke and my felf, in
his Relation of what. the Young Edwards’s Sifter
fhould declare to the Council-Board, wviz. That

Braddon compelled the Boy to fian ity (the Paper
6A-2 the
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the young Edwards figned.) This you find to
be Hear-fay-Evidence, and the Author (the Sifter)
then in Court, butteftified no fuch thing 5 there-
fore this Hear-fay- Evidence ought (if any ought)
to have been rejefted : And yet this Hear-fay-
FEwidence (though not confirmed by the Author
then upon Qath) was not only admitted, but or-
dered to be printed in the Trial in large Capital
Letters. How much fooner cught the Evidence
of Bampton and his Wife (as to whar Meake de-
clared) and of Hugbes and Gladivin, as to Ruddle’s
Account, be particularly remarked, feeing Jeake
and Ruddle we cannot now produce in Court, (as
that Author was) they (efpecially the firft) being
fuppofed to be murdered by way of Prevention,
by that bloody Party that murdered my Lord.
But the next Account of thele two Men being
{fent, as before, by his Highnefs, fhall be irom
the firlt Hand. Mr, Peier Effington declareth,
(and before the Lords in fubftance hath depofed)
¢ That he this Informant was in the Zower that
¢ Morning the late ari of Effex died 5 and about
¢ a quarter of an-Hour before the faid Earl’s Death
¢ was difcovered, this Informant obferved His
¢ Highnefs to part a hittle way from his Majelty,
¢ and then beck’ned to two Gentlemen to come
* to him, who came accordingly 5 and this In-
- formant did obferve his Highnefs to fend them
towards the Earl’s Lodgings ; and lefs than a
Quarter of an Hour after, this Informant did
obferve thefe very two Men to return to His
Highnels, and as they came they {miled, and
(to the beft of this Informant’s Hearing and
Remembrance) faid, The Bufinefs s doue 5
upon which, His Highnefs feemed very well
pleafed , and 1mmediately thereupon His
Highnefs went to His Majefty ; foon after
which, News was brought to the King, Zhat
the Earl of Ellex bad cut bis Throat.”
I do expect that will be objefted to this,
which heretofore hath been, (viz.) That it can-
not be thought the late Duke of 2%r% (admit he
was fo bad as to give Order for fuch a Faét)
would be fo imypoiitick as to {fend the Ruffans, {o
that any People might fee their Miffion, and
their Return.  But 1 defire fuch would confider
this Murder 1n all its Circumftances, and then
tell me, Whether thofe bloody Varlets had not
all the Realon in the World to have all the Secu-
rity could be expefted or defired ? You well
know, that my Lord of Effex was defervedly very
popular 3 and therefore a Parliament that fhould
have had the leaft Information of this treache-
rous and bloody Murder, would have profecuted
the Matter wich all the Diligence and Vigour
fuch a Piece of Barbarity deferved. Now,
fhould they, in fuch their Inquifitions, have de-
tetted thofe treacherous Villains, thefe bloody
Men without a full Difcovery muft haveexpeted
no Mercy ;5 and fhould the Duke have employed
them in his Clofer only, and they could not
by any Circumftance have given Satisfaction
that they were his hired Journeymen in this
piece of great Service, their Evidence againft
him had not been the tenth part {o credible as
it would have been, could they have proved
that they were fent by His Highnels towards
the Farl’s Lodgings jult before His Death, and
foon after returned to His Highnels, before
others knew that this cruel Tragedy was finifhed,

This Circumftance, I fay, would have fo corro-

[, T . W _ T . S T U TR . TR T . T

The Earl of Eflex’s Innocency

borated their Evidence againft their Mafter, that
none could in the leaft have doubted of the
Truth of their being fo employed, that wereonce
fatished they were, as before, fent by, and re-
turned to His Highnefs. This then obliged His
Highnefs, under no lefs Obligation than Self-Pre-
fervation, to skreen thefe his faithful and ready
Servants from any Profecution, well knowing
that his own Interelt (and indeed Life) was wrapt
up in theits.

Wherefore I think this Matter was very cun-
ningly managed (as to the Security of thefe Cut-
throats from the Hands of Juftice, either in their
Punifhments or Profecution.) And it could not
pofiibly have been done with greater Safety to the
Perfons of thofe that did it.

The Sentinel Lisyd declared, He could not be
pofitive whether Major Hawley or the Warder let
the Men into the outward Door: But Major
Hawley pretends, He could not; for he (as he
faizh) went out of his Houle at Five 0’Clock in
the Morning, and did not go nigh his own
Houfe till News of my Lord’s Death was brought
him by AMonday the Warder ; and therefore he
could not open the Door to any that went in juft
before my Lord’s Death. This Reafon of Ma-

jor Hawley is equally true with what elfe he

faith in his Defence, as appears by this Informa-
tion.

Ichard Nicholfon, in the Zard of Queenhithe,
Corn-Fattor, Depofeth, That the Dey of the

Earl of Eflex bis Death, this Deponent was a W ar-
der in the Tower, and flood Farder at the Inner-
Tower-Gate that Morning the Earl dy'd, (before
the Earls Death) and by Major Hawley (then
Gentleman-Porter of the Tower) ordered to let 1o
Man into the Towery or ont of the Tower, This
Deponent further depofeth, That about Eight of the
Clock, or a little before, whillt this Deponens was
Warder at the Gate as aforefaid, be did obferve the

Jaid Major Hawley five or fix times turn up 10-

wards bis own Honfe through the Gate (over-againf?
the Traytors-Gate) leading towards bis owir Houfe ;
and about Eight of the Clock the fame Morning,
shis Deponent was defired by a Stranger 1o let bim
into the Tower, for which the faid Stranger gave
this Deponent a Shilling : This Deponent let him
through the Gate 5 the faid Major Hawley therenpon
came to this Deponent in great Fury, and chec?d this
Deponent for letting in the faid Stranger iuto the
Tower. This Deponent further depofeth, That
Major Hawley ordered this Deponent (with feveral
othersy to go W arder with the Lord Rufiel o the
Old-Batley 5 and as this Deponent was going with
the Lord Ruflel fo the Old-Bailey, (viz.) about
Eight of the Clock, be paffed before Major Hawley’s
Honfe, and did obferve Major Hawley then to go
into hisown Houfe.

Jurat’ gno die Aus,
1689, coram me

Tho. Pilkington, Mayor,

Ricbard Nicholfon.

That Major Hawley was in the Houfe when
my Lord was murdered, feems farther probable
from the Relation of Mary Fobufon, then at
work in Major Hawley's Houlfe at the time of
my Lord’s Death; and what Account fhe hath
hereof given, appears by thefe two Informa-
tions.

The
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The Information of Philip Fohnfon of White's-
Alley in Coleman-Street, in London, Free-Mafon;
taken the 22d Day of Famuary 1683, before
Yobn Robins, Eig; a Jultice of the Peace for
the County of Middlefex,

H1S Informant maketh Oath, and faith, That
Mary Johnfon, his Wife, (fince deceafed) be-

ing o labouring WWoman to Major Hawley, in whofe
Houfe the late Earl of Effex was found dead, That
the Morning on which be died, as foe was at Work,
fhe heard a Noife 5 and defigning to go up Stairs,
foe met Majer Hawley coming down, who told ber,
My Lord was dead; apon wbhich, fhe went up
Stairs, and found the faid Earl dead in bis Clofet,
as fbe gave ber Husband, 1his Informant, an Ae
connt 3 and that by Order of the [aid Major Haw-
ley, fhe helped and affifted*a Man (1o the beft of his
Memory his Name is Major Weblter) to firip the
faid Earl from bis Clothes and at the further Com-
“mand of the faid Major Hawley, fbe wafbed ihe faid
EarlPs Body, and alfo wafbed the faid Chamber and
Clofet belonging to the faid Earl; for the [aid Ma-

jor Hawley gave her 108. and that the Neck of

the Cravat that fbe took off the faid Earl’s Neck,
awas cut in three Pieces,

The Mark of Philip fabnfon.

The Information of Miriam Tovey of Red-Lion-
Stieet, in W hitechapel-Parith, in Middlefex, Wi-
dow, taken the Day aforefaid, before Fobn
Robins, aforefaid.

T HIS Informant maketh Oathy and faith, That
fhe feveral times beard Mary Johnfon, above-
faid, declare the Subffance of the preceding Infor-
mation; and further fweareth, The faid Mary
Johnfon told ber, That Major Weblter twas 1he
Perfon who belped ker to firip the faid Earl of bis
Clothes 3 which fbe was very unwilling to da, fay-
ing, She fhould bring berfelf into Tronble and Ha-
zaid of ber Life, by intermeddling with the Body
before the Coroner bad [at upon it 5 and that Major
Hawley told ber, She muft do it, and fhould
come to no Trouble by it.

Miriam Tovey,

But it feems Major Hawley’s Principles were

ever averfe to thofe brave True Englifh Champi-

ons that oppoled the late Court-Arbitrary-De-

figns, and could afford thofe Honourable Lords,
and Truly-worthy Knights and Gentlemen, no

better Titles than Rogues, This appears by what
he declared the very Day that a great Number of

Honourable Lords (amongft which, this unfor-
tunate Lord, I hear, was one) and Worthy
Knights, Gentlemen and Citizens, dined toge-
ther at Mile-End-Greeny for fome time that Af-
ternoon Hawley told Mr. Bunch, then a Warder,
That above Two hundred Rogues that Day dined
together at Mile-End-Greens but he did wifh
that he had Forty of the biggeft of them there
m the Zower, that they might be made fhorter
by the Head; for till then the Land would ne-
ver be at quiet.  This In Subftance is depofed by
the faid Mr. Buich, who with one Mr. —— are
ready hkewife to depofe, That fome time fince
difcourfing with one 2 Servant-Maid in the
Tower at the time of my Lord’s Murder, but
{ince turned out, they told her, That it was fup-
pofed to be Major Hawley that occafioned her
being turned out of the Zower 3 but the replied,
It conld not be the Major, for be was the befpt Friend
Jhe bad in the Jorldy upon the Acconnt of fomewbat
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which fhe knew with rélation o the Death of the late
Earl of Effex,

1 have fome Grounds to believe, that not a few
in the Tower, that Morning my Lord was mur-
dered, could difcover feveral Things very mate-
rial 1n order to a farther Detetion ; and particu-
larly, as to the coming out of the Ruffians after
they had perpetrated this not-to-be-parallel’d
treacherous Cruelty; for I have been informed by
fome, who that very Morning iy Lord was mur-
dered were in Leaden-Hall- Market, That there
came a Servant-Maid (who then lived, as fhe faid,
in the Tower) to that Marker the very fame
Morning ; and wringing her Hands, fhe wept,
and cried out, The Earl of Effex was murdered ;
upon which the People gathering about her, ad-
vifed her to Silence, telling her the would bring
herfelf into Trouble by fuch Expreflions; the
Maid thereapon declared, §be was fure it was
true, for fhe faw the Men that murdered bimy juft
as they came from bis Lodgings.

I have ufed all Diligence poffible to find this
Maid out 5 but neither of thofe I have met with
could tell me her Name, or the Name of the
Perfon in the Zower with whom fhe lived. Not
long after my Lord’s Death, I was likewife in-
formed of the Name of one who declared he faw
the Ruffians juft as they came out of my Lord’s
Lodgings, and did obferve {fome Blood upon the
Clothes of one of them : But having been obliged
in 2 Hurry often to convey away my Papers, this
Name I have loft: I do wilh I could find Men
as free, as their Duty obliges them in this Matter,
to declare what they knew,

I have rcafon to {uppofe many Men would be
then examined ; and whofoever there 1s that can
difcover any Thing material with relation to this
Murder, and in filence ftifles ic, by fuch his fi-
lence he confents to the Blood of my Lord; and
tho’ our Law may not reach his Offence, yer He
who knows it, will one Day lay it to his Charge ;
for if God requires that all Governments fhould
make diligent Inquifition for Blood, in defect
whereof he will require the Blood of the Slain
at the Hands of fuch Magiftrates on whom this
Negleét is chargeable; then on thofe more efpe-
cially will the greateft Guilt lie, who refufe or
negleét to give Information to thofe ordained for
fuch Inquifition. '

But, to return:

Bomeney and Ruffel, you find, have before de-
pofed, That there was a Razor delivered o my
Lord, wherewith to pare his Nails; which his
Lordthip having done, he retired into his Clofet,
and there cut his Throat, The Clofet-Door be-
ing opened, Bomeney and Ruffel have declared
they faw the Body there lie in its Blood, and the
Razor lying by him.

This is, in thort, the Subftance of thele Mens
Relations, whofe Intereft it is to prove the Self-
Murder., ‘That this Story is falfe in every Part,
I doubt not but to convince every unprejudic’d
Perfon, and hope to fatisfy all who are not

blinded with Prejudice,

Firft, That his Lord(hip did not pare his Nails
that Morning he died, as all thefe have {worn
or declared ; nor was there any Razor delivered
to my Lord for that Purpofe that Morning he
died.

Secondly, That his Lordfhip’s Body was not
locked into the Clofet, when firft found.

- Thirdly,
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Thirdly, That there was no Razor lying by
the Body when thefe Three firft faw the Body ;
but the Razor laid there after my Lord was mur-
dered, to colour the pretended Self-murder.

That my Lord’s Nails were not par'd, Fobn
Kittlebeater hath depofed, That he being of the
Coroner’s Jury, did very narrowly obferve my
Lord’s Nails on his Fingers and Feet, and could
not difcern erther of them par’d or {ferap’d.

I fhall now prove Bomeney's Relation to be
falfe, by what Ruffe/ fwore; and Ruffel’s Depo-
fition forged by what Aonday declared the very
Day, and fome time after my Lord was mur-
dered ; and Afonday’s Account in every material
part a Fiction, by the Depofitions of the two
former : In order to which, I fhall give you Be-
meney’s firft Information, taken in the Coroner’s
own Hand, which 15 as followeth :

HE Information of Paul Bomeney faith,

That the Earl of Effex on the v1ib Inflant did
Jpeak to ibis Iuformant to bring bim a Penknife to
pare bis Nails 5 but this Informant conld not then
get one.  Tbe Earl of Efiex called to bim again on
Friday ‘be 13¢h Inflant, abour Eight of the Clock
in the Forenoon, did again fpeak to this Informant to
bring bim a Penkuife to pare bis Nails : But this
Deponent telling bim that be bad not one, his Lord
commanded bim lo bring bim a Razor, which be
did accordingly 5 and then bis Lordfbip walked up
and down the Room, [craping bis Nails with it:
and this Informant then left bimy and coming about
balf an Hour afterwards up into the Bed-Chamber,
found bis Clofet- Door faft ; wherenpon this Informant
knocked at the Door, and called My Lord, My
Lord; dut be not anfwering, pufbed the Door a
little open, <where be did fee bis Lord lying all at
Length on the Gronnd in bis Blood, with the Razor
near bim on the Ground,  And further depofeth,
That be bath no: any Papers of bis Lord’s, nor
dotw know where any of bis Papers or Writings are.
Ard alfo, That on Thurfday-Night laft was very
merry at Supper, and did not feem to be difcon-
tented the next Morning.

This Information is verbatim as the Coroner
took 1t from Bomeney’s own Mouth: Bat the Co-
roner procecding to ask further Queftions, Bome-
¢y began extremely to hefitate, and chereupon
defired he might write his own Information ;
which being granted, he retired from the Coro-
ner and Jury into the next Room; where having
been fome confiderable time, he brought the In-
formation firft mentioned, according as it is
there obferved to be in the Original,

Fames Whitechurch declareth, (and in Subftance
bejore the Lords hath depofed) * That the very
¢ Day the Earl of Effex died, he went with one
¢ George Fones to the Tower, to difcourfe Natha-
¢ iinel Monday concerning the Death of the faid
¢ Farl; and when they came to the Tower, meet-
“ ing with the faid Monday, he gave them this
¢ Account: That as foon as the Gentleman-
¢ Goaler had opened my Lord’s Chamber-Door,
¢ that very Morning he the faid Monday ( by Or-
¢ der) went into my Lord’s Chamber, and tarried
< there, becaufe their Orders were, That one
‘of the Warders fhould be in his Lordfhip’s
¢ Chamber, and the other at the Stairs-Foot ;
¢ and that they had this farther Order, Not to
¢ fuffer his Lordfhip to have a Knife, or any
¢ thing like it, but whilft he ufed it in cutting
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¢ his Meat; and that being done, all Knives and
¢ fuch like were to be taken from him; with
¢ which Orders having acquainted my Lord, his
¢ Lordthip anfwered, He fhould take nothing il]
¢ from them in obferving their Orders.

¢ This Informant further faith, That the faid
¢ Monday did then declare, That he tarried with
‘ my Lord in his Chamber two Hours or better
¢ that very Morning ; and that whilft he was with
“my Lord in his Chamber, he did obferve his
¢ Lordfhip pared his Nails with the Heel of a
¢a Razor, This Informant further faith, That
¢ the faid Monday did further declare, Before he
¢ left his Lordfhip, and went down Stairs to ftand
¢ below, he called up Ruffel, his Fellow-Warder,
¢ to ftand in his Chamber 3 and as he went down
¢ Stairs, he lighted his Pipe, and fat at the Stairs-
¢ Foot; but before he had half-fmoked his Pipe,
“ he heard it cried above Stairs, That my Lord bad
© eut bis Throat 3 whereupon he the faid Monday
° ran up Stairs, and pufhed the Clofet- Door open,
¢ and there found my Lord dead. This Infor-
‘ mant further faith, That the faid Mionday did
“ further declare, That when he came up Stairs,
“ he asked Mr. Bomeney and Ruffel, Where they
¢ were whilft my Lord was in the Clofet? The
“ faid Bomeney anfwered, He was fitting upon
¢ the Bed in my Lord’s Chamber; and the faid
¢ Ruffel declared, He ftood at my Lord’s Cham-
* ber-Door, juft without the Door: Whereupon
¢ he the faid Monday (as the faid Monday declared)
* checked the faid Ruffel for not keeping in the
¢ Chamber according to Order,

Richard Fordan declareth, ¢ That on the Day
“ Mt. Braddon was tried, in Hillary-Term, 1683,
“ (upon the Account of the late Earl of Effex) this
“ Informant heard . Nathanael Monday declare,
¢ That the very Morning the late Earl of Effx
¢ died, as foon as the Gentleman-Goaler opened
¢ the Chamber-Door, which was about Seven of
“ the Clock, the faid Mownday ftood as Warder
¢ above Stairs upon the faid Earl; and at the firft
¢ opening the Door, did obferve the faid Earl to
“ have a Razor in his Hand, paring or fcraping
“his Nails with it; and this the faid Monday
“ declared he faw a long time before Ruffé! ftood
“ Warder above Stairs upon the faid Ear),’

By thefe two Informations, you may perceive
what Monday declared s My Lord bad this Razer
in bis Hand about Seven o'clock in the Morning,
long before Ruflel came up Stairs to fand HWarder
upon my Lord 5 and that my Lord pared his Nails
with the Heel of the Razor.

By the Way, I cannot but here take notice of
what Monday would have infinuated, (viz,) That
the Government was jealous my Lord would de-
ftroy himfelf ; for otherwife, how fhould there be
Orders given not to fuffer his Lordfhip to havea
Knife, &gc? This was faid, the more eafily to in-
duce People to believe that my Lord did indeed
cut his own Throat: but Monday will not now
pretend fuch Orders were given him. And ob-
ferve how inconfiftent Afonday’s Relation is! for he
pretended that they had Orders not to fuffer his
Lordfhip to have a Penknife or Razor, &, and
yet at the fame time confeffed he left this Razor
with his Lordfhip. -

Ruffel the Warder hath before depofed, and
now declares, That this Razor he faw Bomeney
deliver to my Lord, whilft he ftood Warder at

my
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my Lord’s Chamber-Door, after Monday was gone
down Stairs. _

Let us now compare, thefe three Mens Relati-
ons as to the Time of Delivery of the Razor
by doing which, it will plainly appear that no
Razor at all was delivered to his Lordfhip. For
the clearer underftanding hereof, I fuppole Bo-
meney under Examination with the Jury, and an-
fwering according to what he hath fworn:

Fury. Did you delver this Razor to my
Tord?

Bomeney, Yes. _ |

Fury. When did you deliver this Razor to
my Lord? |

Bunency. About Eight of the Clock that Morn-
ing my Lord died.

This is according to what he firft {wore; but
he then withdraws to write his own [nformation,
which point-black contradicts this his Oath in
thar particular; for he is then examined, and
an{wereth as followeth : o

Fury. Do you remember the very time tnat you
delivered the Razor to my Lord?

Boineiey. Yes, | |

Fuiry. When did you deliver this Razor to my
Lord?

Bomeney. About Eight of the Clock on Thurf-
day Morning, being che Day before my Lord’s
Death.

This, as you obferve, he fwears in the Infor-
mation himfelf writ, and brought to the Coroner.

Bomeney then to withdraw, and let Ruffe/ an-
fwer to this particular, |

Yury. Mr, Ruffel, do you know when this Ra-
zor was delivered to my Lord? |

Ruffel. Very welly for I faw it delivered to
my Lotd by Bomeiiey. |

Fury. When did you fee this Razor delivered ?

Ruffel. Lels than a Quarter of an Hour before
we found my Lord dead: I ftood Warder at
my Lord’s Door; and I heard his Lordfhip ask
for his Penknife to pare his Nails; and Bomeicy
faid, It was not brought; upon which my Lord
required 2 Razor, faying, it would doas well ;
and I faw Bomeney give my Lord the Razor, 1t
being then about Nine o’Clock.

Fury. Who firft ftood as Warder at my Lord’s
Chamber-Door, or in my Lord’s Chamber, Ye-
fterday Morning before my Lord died; was it
You or Monday ?

Ruffel. Monday, upon my Lord’s Chamber-Door
being opened, firft ftood at the Door; and after
he had been there as long as we ufe to ftand, he
called me up, and then went down and ftood at
the Stairs-foot, at the Houfe-Door, where I did
before ftand.

Fury. Then this Razor you faw delvered to
my Lord after Monday went down Stairs, and
whilft you ftood as Warder at my Lord’s Door?

Ruffel, It is very true; for I.am fure I flood
by Bomerey when he delivered the Razor, and faw
it delivered to my Lord.

Fury. What diftance of Time do you fay there
might be, from the Time this Razor was deliver-
ed, to the time of my Lord’s Death?

Ruflel. 1 am fure ic could not be Half an Hour
from the time of the Delivery of the Razor, to
the time we found my Lord dead in the Clofet.

Ruffel withdraws, and Monday 1s examined.

Fury, Mr. Moiday, did you fee my Lord have

any Razor in his Hand Yefterday Morning before
his Death?
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Mborday. Yes, 1 did.

Fury. What Time was it when you faw my
Lord have the Razor in his Hand ?

Moirday. About Seven of the Clock, as foon as
the Gentleman-Goaler had opened my Lord’s
Chamber-Door 3 for I firlt {tood Warder above
Stairs; and as foon as the Door was opened, 1
faw my Lord have the Razor in his Hand, and
obferved him to pare his Nails with it.

Frry, Was this before Reffel came up to my
Lord’s Chamber-Door, to ftand Warder there?

Monday. Yes, almoft Two Elours.

This is according to their own Informations
and Relations. Now, can you believe that this
Razor was delivered by Bomency at Eight of the
Clock on Fiiday Morning, according to his firft
Oath; and yet not delivered till Eight of the
Clock on Thurfday Morning, according to Bomie-
ney's fecond Oath? And can you alfo believe that
the Razor was not delivered till about Nine of
the Clock on Friday Morning, according to Rauf-
fel’s Information 3 and at the fame time give Cre-
dit to Monaay, who declared, My Lord had the
Razor by Seven of the Clock, Two Hours be-
fore Ruf2{ came upto ftand Waider at my Lord’s
Chambzr- Door?

Thefe Three are of equal Credit, and confe-
quently you have as much reafon to believe Bonze-
ney as Ruffel, and Adondsy deferves equal Credi
with either of the former: But all cannot be cre-
dited ; neither can Bomeney’s Contradiétion be re-
conciled : Or can Oneof thefe be thought True,
without giving the Liye to the other Two?

Thercfore upon the whole Matter, you cannot
reafonably believe there was any Razor at all de-
hivered.

If any fhall fay, that all Three in the main
agree, 'I'hat my Lord had a Razordelivered him
to pare his Nails, and their Contradictions is on-
ly in Point of Time.

I anfwer, *Tis true, 1t"s a Circum{tantial Con-
tradition in Point of Time; and the Contra-
diction of the Two Elders in the Hiftory of Su-

Jfanna, wasa Circumftantial Contradiction in Point

of Place; for the firlt {wore they took Sufanna
in Adultery under a Maflick-tree, and the fecond
under a Holm-tree: Both thele agree in the main,
viz, That they found her in Aduliery; but by
this Contradittion, as to the place, where, Da-
atel convinced all then prefent, that thefe Two
Elders were perjured in their LEwvidence, (and
confequently Swufania innocent of her Charge)
and thereupon thefe two Acculers jultly fufrer
ed, what by Perjury they would have unjuftly
caufed to be infli¢ted upon the Innocent. And I
never yet heard any deny Daniel’s Wifdom in
this Deteftion ; or arraign his Juftice in the Pu-
nifhment thofe Two Falfe Accufers thereupon fufe
fered.

Secondly, That my Lord’s Body was not lock-
ed into the Clofet. I will now fuppofe that Bo-
meney, Mowday and Ruffel, were to anfwer as to
the opening this Door, according to their former
Informations, and you will find their Contradicti-
ons, as to this, asgrofs as the former,

Bomeney firlt appears.

Yury. Mr. Bomengy, Was my Lord’s Body
locked into the Clofet, when he was firlt found
dead?

Bowmeney. Yes.

Fury. Who opened the Door?

Bomeney.



920

Boneney. When 1 had knocked at the Clofet-
Door, my Lord not anfwering, I did open the
Door, and there faw my lLord lying a-long in
his Blood, and the Razor by him, and 1 then
called the Warders.

This according to his firft Information, taken
(as before) by the Coroner.

About an Hour after this, the Jury did agam
examine him as to this Point; and he anfwering
according to the Information, which (as before)
he writ in the Room next the Jury, and then you
will find 1t as followeth.

Fury. Mr. Bomeizey, Did you firft open the Clo-
fet-Door upon my Lord’s Body ?

Bomeiney. No, I did not, bur Raffel did; for
after I had knocked at the Door thrice, calling,
My Lord; my Lord not anfwering, I tcok up
the Hangings, and peeping through a Chink, I
faw Blood, and part of the Razor; whereupon
I called the Warder Ruffel, and the faid Ruffel
puihed the Door open.

At my Trial, Bomency being asked who did
firft open the Door, upon Oath anfwered, he
knew not who opened the Door.

Fury. Mr. Ruffel, Did you find the Clofet-
Door lock’d upon my Lord’s Body ?

Ruflel, Yes.

Friy. Who firft opened the Clofet- Door *

Ruffel. When Bomeney faw my Lord’s Body
through the Chink, he cried our, My Lord was
fallen down fick 5 whereupon I went to the Clo-
fet-Door, and opened it, chic Key being on the
out-fide,

Here Rufjél makes no Difficulty in opening the
Door ; but obierve Aosday’s Anfwer,

Ruffel withdraws, and Aenday is called.

Fury. Mr. Monday, Where were you when
my Lord was firlt found dead?

Monday. I was ftanding at the Foot of the
Stairs, and hearing a great Noife of my Lord’s
Death, I ran up Stairs, and found Bemeney and
Ru/ffel endeavouring to open the Door; but the
Body being fo cl~ie and ftrong againit the Door,
neither could.

Jury. Who then opened the Door?

Monday. 1 being much ftronger than either of
thefe Two, put my Shoulder againft the Door,
and puthing with all my might, 1 broke it open.

Upon the whole Matter you find, firlt, Bowe-
s¢y opened the Door before he called either of the
Warders, according to Bomeney’s firft Informati-
on taken (as before) by the Coroner; and fecond-
ly, That he did not open the Door, for Rafel
opened 1t, according to Bomeny’s fecond Informa-
tion (which himfelf writ) and Reffel’s Depcefiti-
on: And thirdly, That neither Bomeney nor Ruf-
f¢l could open the Door, becaufe the Body lay fo
clofe againft 1t, and fo Monday broke it open:
This according to Monday’s Account of the Mat-
ter

Thefe Contradiftions before obferved of them-
felves, are as (I do humbly conceive) fufficient
to convince the Man not biafs’d, that this Un-
fortunate Lord was treacheroufly murdered; for
our Law fuppofes every Man deftroy’d by vio-
lent Means, to be murdered by others, unlefs
the contrary appears to the Coroner, and his Ju-
ry; now thofe which in this Cafe come to teftify
the contrary, are {fo notorioufly felf.deftruétive
in their Evidence by their grofs Contradiétions,
that all thefe Three appear treacheroufly falfe;
zind therefore thefe Mens Evidence thus contra-
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diftory, cannot prove the Self-muider, but ra-
ther demonftrate the contrary; for thefe three
being the oniy Men, who by their Stations near
my Lord at the Time of his Death, could then
be fuppoled capable of giving any Account how
my Lora came by his Death s (for Bomoiey at-
tended upon my Lord in his Chamber ; and Adva-
day and Ruffel, the Two Warders which aleer-
nately kept my Lord’s Chamber-Door, for when
Monday kept my Lord’s Chamber-Door, Ruffel
ftood at the Stairs-IFoot-Door, and this by turns ;)
and leeing thefe Mens Relacions, for the Reafons
before obierved, are notorioufly falfe, there was
e Truth which thefe Perfidious Men thoughe
neither convenient  or fafe to declare, which
would have detected the /rze Manner of my Lord’s
Death, and in what Parts thefe Three flood rela-
ted thereunto.

I would fain ask the Coroner and his Jury,
What Inquifition they would have brouzht in
upon my Lord’s Bedy, in cafe Bomeney, Monday
and Rufel fhould have declared they would rot
difcover what they knew with relacion to my
Lord’s Death? 1 am apt to have fuch 2 charita-
ble Opinion of the Difcretion and Integricy of
thefe Gentlemen, as to believe they would have
been fo far from finding my Lord Feb de fz, that
they would have found him murdered by others,
and thefe three concerned therein: for by their
refpective Stations ar the time of my Lord’s
Death, they could not be ignorant of the rrze
maneer thercof; and by their Refufals to difcover
their Krowledze thierein, they (tacitly) would
have confefled their Guilyy either as A&ors in
that cruel Tragedy, or privy and confenting to
it, Now as fuch their firft pofitive Refufal
would have rendered them Guilty before the Co-
roner and his Jury; fo their falfe and contradic-
tory Account makes {fome of them more Crimi-
nal, by fo great an Addition to their firft Of-
fence. Forin the firft, by their filence they would
have endeavoured 1o conceal the Murder, and
their Guile therein; So here by their many falfe
Relations (which have fo plainly appeared, for
ContradiCtions cannot be true) have they defigned
to attain the fame Lnd.

And for my own Part, (admitting what is
{fworn againft them to be true) 1 think thefz
Three are worfe Criminals than thofe Ruffians
who cut my Lord’s Throat, For fome of the
latter were not {o intrufted with my Lord’s Bo-
dy, as properly to be termed treacherous, nei-
ther have they appeared by Falfities to conceal
thetr Guile by perfidicufly wansferring the fame
on him whom their own Hands have deftroyed ;
But two of the three Former, (wiz.} Ruffe! and
Bomeney, 1f what is fworn azain{t them be true,
have fuperadded the greareft Treachery and Fal
fity to Blood, and therefore fland Guilty of a
complicated Villany, by which they have, a3
much as in them Iy, murcered his Lordthip's
Fonour, and ftained his Family with fuch Guii,
as nothing but the Difcovery of Truth, and a
jult Recrimination of thofe Treacherous Men can
wipe off. ‘

But as a farther Argument of the Clofer-Doo:'s
not being locked upon my Lord’s Body; it ap-
pears, That when Demeney, Nonday and Ruffe!
pretended my Lord was Jying in that Polftvre
wherein they firlt found him, his Lordthin's
Legs were part out of the Clofet-Door. This
is declared by William Turner and Sanwel Pech,

HE
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who before the Lords have in Subftance depofed,
< That thefe two Informants were Servants to the
¢ Jate Earl of E/ffex at the Time of his Death, and
< brought fome Provifions into the Zower juft up-
¢ on the firft Difcovery of my Lord’s Death, of
¢« which as foon as they heard, they ran up Stairs,
¢ and found my Lord’s Legs lying upon the
¢ Threfhold of the Clofet-Door, and a Print of
¢ a bloody Foot upon my Lord’s Stockings,’
This proves not only that the Clofet-Door could
not be lock’d (as was fworn and declared by
Bomeney and Ruffel) but likewife that Somebody
had been with the Body in the Clofet, or other-
wife how came the Print of a bloody Foot upon
my Lord’s Stockings, as thefe {wear to have ob-
ferved.

In the ¢hird and laft Place, I fhall difprove
that Part of thefe Mens Reclations which faith,
That the Razor was lock’d iinto my Lord’s Clofet,
soben bis Lordfhip was firft by them feen dead. Thofe
Three have all depofed, or ofien declared, ¢ That
the Razor was found by my Lord’s Bedy lock®d
into the Clofet 5 and all three denied that there
was any bloody Razor thrown out of my Lord’s
¢ Chamber - Window jult before my Lord’s
¢ Death was firft difcovered to thofe out of the
¢ Houfe.’ '

William Edwards, aged about Eighteen Years,
and Fane Leodeman, aged about Eighteen Years,
have both before the Lords in Subltance depofed,
¢ That a little before my Lord’s Death was difco-
¢ vered, they faw a bloody Razor thrown out of
¢ my Lord’s Chamber-Window, and that juft
¢ after there came a Maid in a White Hood out
¢ of Captain Hazley’s Houfe: which Maid, 77
Liam Edwards hath depofed, ¢ took up the Ra-
¢ zor, and ran with it into Major Hawley’s Houfe,
¢ and up Stairs, crying out Murder ; and imme-
¢ diately hereupon was it firft faid, that the Farl
¢ of Effex cut his Throat.”

Themas Edwards, Father to the faid Willianm
Edwards, Sarah Edwards, Amn Edwards, and
Elizabeth Edwards, Sifters to #William Edwards,
(in Subftance before the Lords) have depofed,
¢ That the very Morning of my Lord’s Death,
¢ when William Edwards came home, he did give
¢ this Information (in Subftance) to thefe Infor-
¢ mants.”

William Edwards did farther depofe to this ef-
fet ; © That the very Morning Mr. Speke and 1
¢ were tried, going into Xcfiminfter-Hallto bean
¢ Evidence at that Trial; he met with Major
“ Hawley, who in a threatning manner told him,
¢ That 1t he might have the Management of him,
¢ the faid William Edwards thould be whipt once
* a Fortnight, for feven Years together ; which
¢ Threat of the faid Major Hawley did fo terrify
¢ this tnformant, (he being then about Thirteen
* Years of Age) that he was afraid to fpeak the
¢ Truth at thatTrial, left he thould feverely fuffer
¢ for fo doing.?

Mrs, Smith, Aunt to Fane Lodeman, and Mr.
Giashrooke, did depofe, ¢ That this Relation
“ Fane Lodeman gave as foon as fhe came from
¢ the Tower that Morning.” Mrs. Gibbons hath
before the Lords (in Subftance) depofed the

{ame.

Here are two Children (aged then about
Thirteen Years) altogether Strangers to each
other, and whofe Relations were as much Strangers
to one another, that gave the fame Relation, ex-

altly-agreeing in feveral Circumftances, and this
VoL. 1l
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Story -by them was told when there ¢ould not
poflibly be any ufe made of it to prove my
Lord’s being murdered. For here are Seyen or
Eight Witneffes have (for both Parties) depofed;
That this Story was related by thefe two about
Ten of the Clock the very Day my Lord died,
when it could not pofflibly be known what would
be fworn before the Coroner’s Jury the then next
Day. Now the only ufe made of it, 15 to
contradi¢t the Depofitions of thofe which béfore
the Coroner would have proved the Self-Mur-
der. 'Which Depofitions (as before obferved)
were not taken till the Satwrday (which was the
Day after thefe two Children had given this Re-
lation) and not publifhed before the then next
Monday Morning. Nay, thefe two Children were
firlt fo far from ufing 1t as an Argument of my
Lord’s being murdered, that both of them (to
thetr refpeétive Relations) when check’d for jay-
ing that my Lord cut his own Throat; 1 their
Chiidifhnefs and innocent Simplicity, urged this as
an Argument of my Lord’s Seif-Murder; Fo
they declared they were fure *twoas t1ue, for they faw
bim throw the Razor out of the Windew. Butthefe
two Children were not the only Perfons that faw
this Razor thrown out ; for {cveral others that
very Morning my Lord died, declared, That the
bloedy Razor was thrown out of my L.ord’s Chame
ber-Window before my Lord’s Death was known,
and that a little Boy did endeavour to take up
this Razor, but was prevented by the Maid, who
took it up, and ran with 1t into the Houfe, and
up Stairs, immedtately whereupon my Lord’s
Death was difcovered.  This Relation Robers
Meake, before-mentioned, did give the very
Day of my Lord’s Death, to Bampton and his
Wife, (as they have depofed before the Lords.)
The fame Account did the aforefaid Ruddle give
before T'welve of the Clock the Day my Lord
died, to Hughes and Gladwin, as they have tefti-
fied before the Lords., This Relation of thefe
Two you find agrees exactly with what Zillian
Edwards declared. And that the throwing out
this bloody Razor was commonly reported 1n the
Tower juft after my Lord’s Death was known,
appears by the Teftimony of feveral Perfons ;5 for
Fobn Salisbury hath depoled, ¢ That being fent
¢ as one of my Lord Reffél’s Guard to the O/é-
¢ Bailey, as they were returning to the Zoeer that
¢ Morning, one met them in great hafte, and de-
¢ clared he juft then came from the Tower, and
¢ that the Earl of Effex had cut his Throat in
¢ the Zower, and thrown the Razor out of the
¢ Window ; upon which one replied to this
¢ effeét, That my Lord had a good Refolution,
firft to cut his Throat, and after to throw the Ra-
2or out of the Window. He farther teftifieth,
¢ That when he came into the Zower, hec heard
¢ it declared by feveral, that the bloody Razor
¢ was thrown out of my Lord’s Chamber-Win-
¢ dow before his Death was known.” Grimes and
Boftick both, likewife in the Tower that very
Morning, have depofed, ¢ That the throwing
¢ out of this bloody Razor was talked of by fe-
¢ veral then in the Tower upon the firft Difcovery
< of my Lord’s Death, fome then and.there.de-
¢ claring, That they faw this bloody Razor fo
¢ thrown out.” But if thefe many Teftimonies
will not fatisfy, I {hall next give you the Confef-
fion of him who declared he threw it .out, and
of the Sentinel who ftood by my Lord’s Lodg-
ing-Door, and confefled he faw it thrown out.

6 B Mr;
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Mr. Samuel Story did farther depofe, ¢ That
¢ the very Day Major /#ebfter was taken up, to
¢ wit, the 21ft of Fanuary 1688, as fufpected to
¢ be concerned in my Lord’s Murder ;> The faid
P ebfter being then charged as concerned in my
Lord’s Murder, declared, * He did nothing but
¢ throw the Razor out of my Lord’s Chamber-
¢ Window.” Being asked, What made him
throw the Razor ont ? He faid he was under fuch
a Confternation, that he knew not what he did.
Upon this Confeflion of Major /7ebfter, Lisyd con-
firm’d the fame, faying, ¢ That 1t was indeed true
¢ that the bloody Razor was thrown out; for it
¢ was thrown out juft over his Head, and a little
¢ Boy did endeavour to take it up, but the Maid
¢ came out of the Houfe, and took it up, and ran
¢ immediately in with it, and then difcovered
¢ my Lord’s Death :* That this Maid did carry
up the Razor, and then difcover my Lord’s
Death, farther appears by the Teftimony of Fobs
Nuthill, who depofeth, ¢ That juft before my
¢ Lord’s Death was known, he was leaning over
¢ the Pales before Major Hawley's Houfe, and
¢ asked my Lord’s Sentinel how his Lordfhip
¢ did? To which the faid Sentinel aniwered,
¢ Very well: And this Deporent did then ob-
¢ fervea Maid run into the Houfe in great hafte,
¢ and up Stairs (when a Warder and another were
¢ coming down my Lord’s Stairs, but declared
¢ nothing of my Lord’s Death, as this Deponent
¢ could hear, who ftood about fix Foot from
¢ them) but fhe immediately came down, and
¢ cried, My Lord had cut his Throat. And this
¢ Informant did obferve the faid Maid to have a
¢ Razor in her Hand, either as the ran up Stairs,
¢ or as fhe came running down.’ -

The feveral large Notches in the Razor, were
Self-Evidences of its Fall from fome Height up-
on an hard Body ; for thofe Notches could not
be made by my Lord againft his Neck-bone, as a
Surgeon foolifhly or knavifhly fugeefted to the
Coroner’s Jury.

To fum up all in 2 Word with relation to this
Particular, Major /#ebfter (one
of the fuppofed Ruffians) acon-
fefled he threw the bloody Razor out of my

. Lord’s Window. Llyd the

* Mr. Stary. Sentinel likewife b own’d that
he faw it thrown out. Edwards and Lodeman
have depofed, That they did fee the bloody Ra-

zor thrown out of my Lord’s

:’9 Mr} ﬂ;‘;’ E dgard:- dChamber Vl;indow s ¢four have
aray Sawares. epofed, That Edwards decla-
Eli. Eduwards, and red (juft as he came from the
Tower that Morning) he faw

it thrown out. 4 Three have
fworn that Loedeman gave this
Relation as foon as fhe returned
from the Tower that very Morning ; (and thefe
Children, and their Relations, far diftant from
and altogether Strangers to

e Bampton and his each other ;) ¢ Two Soldiers
Hu?;’f:: dt?;ﬁf;ii;; in every part of their Relation,
as to Ruddle. the very Day of my Y.ord’s
Death, did at two Places, far

diftant from each other, declare this Matter ;
and f three more have depo-

{ Grimes, Salishury, fed, That the throwing out of
and Beffock. the Razor was generally dif-
courfed in the Tower jult upon the firft Difcovery of
my Lord’s Death, This Ido humbly conceiveto

be fufficiens to convince any but Prejudice it felf,

a Mr. Story.

d Mrs., Smith.
Mr. Glasbrocie.
Mrs. Gibbons
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‘That the Razor was feen thrown out, and cone

fequently that it could- not be locked into the
Clofet with the Body, as Bomeney and Ru/ffel have
depofed, or often declared. Whereas Bomesney
{wore before the Coroner, That peeping through
a Chink of the Clofet-Door, he faw the Razor;
this appears to be impoflible, confidering the Po-
fition of the Razor, and the Circumitances of
the Chink.

For the Razor they all declare lay in the up-
per part of the Clofet by the Clofe-ftool, and the
only Chink of the Door is in that part next the
Chimney ; now looking through that Chink when
the Door is lock’d, you cannot fee within Three
Foot of the Place where the Razor was faid to
lie 5 this was about a Year {ince demonftrated to
the Right Flonourable the Lord Lucas, now Go-
vernor of the Tower, and to feveral Gentlemen
more.

The Maid, who is {uppofed to have taken up
the Razor, dentes it, and in her Defence faith to
this effet ; ¢ That fhe went out of her Malfter’s
¢ Houfe almoft half an Hour before my Lord’s
¢ Death was known, and returned not until my
¢ Lord’s Death was publick, and feveral People
‘ in the Houfe to fee my Lord 2’ For fhe telis
this Story, ¢ That about half an Hour before
“ my Lord’s Death was difcovered, my Lord’s
¢ Footman came to her, and told her, the War-
¢ der would noet open the Wicket to let in my
¢ Lord’ Provifions that were brought, and there-
¢ fore begged her to go to her Mafter (Mr., Fazw-
¢ Jey the Gentleman Porter) to defire him to go
¢ to the Warder that kept the Gate, and order
¢ him to let in the Provifions.’

¢ She did accordingly go to her Mafter, who
¢ thereupon order’d the Warder to let in my
¢ Lord’s Provifions ; andas they (viz,) my Lord’s
¢ Footman, 2illiam Turncr,and one Sammuel Peck,
¢ and a Porter, were bringing the Provifions, a
¢ Sentinel told them they were come too late 5 up-
* on which, this Maid declares fhe was furprized,
¢ and asked William Turner what thould be the
¢ Meaning of that Expreflion, You are come too
¢ late s for fhe did not underftand it: whereto
¢ Turner anfwered, That he did fuppofe the Sen-
¢ tinel believed thofe Provifions to be my Lord
¢ Ruffels, who being gone to his Trial, this Sol-
¢ dier might think he would never return agam
¢ tothe Tower, and fo the Provifions were broughe
¢ too Jate. This (fhe declares) fhe then believed ;
¢ but as foon as they came in Sight of her Mafter’s
¢ Houfe, they admired to fee fo great a Crowd
¢ about the Daoor, but were foon too well fatis-
‘ fied in the Occafion, for it was juft before dif-
¢ covered that my Lord of Effex had cut his
¢ Throat.’

But this is a forged Lye throughout ; for 77/
liam Turner, Samuel Peck, and the Porter, do all
three declare, That the Maid was not with them
whilft they were bringing in the Provifions, nel-
ther did the Warder that kept the Gatein the leait
fcruple the letting in my Lord’s Provifions ; this
they all fay, they are ready to depofe.

All Men, I find, are to feek of the Reafon
that fhould move thefe Men to throw the bloody
Razor out of the Chamber-Window, before my
Lord's Death was difcovered. But if we confider
the Amazement that might naturally feize thele
Men upon the leaft Difturbance in this Deed
of Darknefs, we muft not expeét that what 15

done under a fudden Confufion, fhould be ac-
cording
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cording to the deepeft Policy. And you find
that Webfler did confefs, That when he threw
the Razor out, he was under fuch a Confufion,
that he knew not what he did. This Diflorder
might be occafioned by fome ones coming up
Stairs, who was not then privy to the Murder,
before they had laid all things afide, as they de-
figned they fhould be found by fuch as were not
imimediately concerned in ity and #ebfter having
the bloody Razor in his Hand, which was de-
figned to be laid by the Body, as the pretended
Inftrument of the feign’d Self-Murder ; upon the
coming up of one, of whom he was not aware,
he, under a furprizing Fear of a Dilcovery, threw
the Razor out of the Window, and the Maid
was afterwards fent for it, and then was 1t laid
by the Body as the pretended Inftrument of Deach.
For this I have fome Reafon, which I think not

fit now to publifh,
That Major Hebfter was one of the Ruffians,

and confequently might be the Man who threw
this bloody Razor out of my Lord’s Chamber-
Window (as himfelf confeffed,) farther appears
probable by his producing (that Day my Lord
was murdered) the Earl’s Pocket-Handkerchief
all bloady, (the Handkerchiel was known by
the F, and Coronet upon it) and fhaked it, faying,
there was the Blood of a Traytory and the very
nex: Morning a Purle of Gold of 49 Guineas,
and a Piitole, which, rejoicing, he produced to
fome of his Neighbours, and immediately after
my Lord’s Death lived at a Rate much above
his Quality, (being a poor Alehoufe-Keeper, and
Under-Bulift of the Tower-Liberty) and (as 1
have b2en credibly informed) in fome few Months
afier my Lord’s Death, loft at Gaming itveral
Fiundreds of Pounds, which made thofe that had
well known his Poverty, conclude he robbed ;
hut ill got, ill fpents for his Extravagancy
and Lofles foon reduced him to his former
Neceflicy 5 whereupon one upbraiding his Wite
(or his Whore as he now calls her, for he faith
he never married her, and therefore though fhe
is living, he keeps, or hath married another ;)
I fay, upbraiding his VWife with her Husband’s
Poverty, fhe replied, That her Husband not
long before, had Five Hundred Guineas; where-
upon the other declared he could not come by
them horneftly, for his Trade would {carce find
him Bread. In Alehoufe-Keeping he run very
deep in the Brewer’s Debt 3 but juft after my Lord’s
Murder, he paid his Brewer Thirty Guineas in
Part, which made the Brewer wonder how he
came by fo much Gold. But not dilcharging
the whole Debt, and beginning to contract new,
the Brewer fued him, and at laft in Execution
feized his Goods; whereupon Major Hawley (for
what reafon is not unfufpected) was a daily Soli-
citor to the Brewer for this #ebfter, and at lalt
offered a confiderable Sum in difcharge of the
Dezbr.

This Febfler very much abufing his Wife (or
Whore) fhe rold him, ¢ That he was a Fool as
¢ well as a Rogue, to abufe her fo, when he
¢ knew it was within her Power to bang him, and
¢ one in the Tower, and naming (as I have been
¢ informed) Major Hawley for the Man in the
¢« Tower. A great part of this is depoled, and
the whole ready to be proved.-————But farther,
to difprove my Lord’s cutting his Throat in the
Clofet :

Had my Lord cut his Throat ftanding in the
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Clofet, that part of the Wall as high as his Throat
would have been all bloody ; for the Clofer be-
ng about three Foot and two Inches wide, it

could not be otherwife; for the Blood out of
fo large an Orifice might have guthed five Foor,

_Or, if my Lord had cut his Throat kneeling,
the Blood in the Wall would then have been as

high as his Throat might have been in that pof-
ture. But there was no Blood a Foot higher
than the Floor, therefore he could not cut his
Throat either ftanding or kneeling, Neither can
it be fuppofed to be done lying along, for then
the Wound beginning at the Left-fide, (and his
Lordfhip being Right-handed) and ending ac
the Right, the Razor would have lain on the
Right, whereas the Razor lay on the Left-fide
of the Body., But left the Circumftances of the
Body, as firlt pretended to be found, might prove
a detection of this Villany, care was taken that
before the Coroner’s Jury faw the Body, the
Body fhould be ftript, and the Clothes carried
away, and the Room and Clofet wafhed, fo that
the Body might appear as naked of its firft Cir-
cumftances, as 1t was of its Clothes. This Par-
ticular was fo notorioufly irregular, or rather
criminal In fome degree, that all Men know the
Law requires the contrary. For by the firft Pof-
ture of the Body, with the Circumftances of the
Clothes, &¢ great Light may be given to the
true Manner of his Death. But that in this Cafe
was not to be difcover’d, and cherefore fuch Prac-
tices were neceffary. My Lord’s Clothes were
not only carried away, but when demanded by
the Jury, as what might be ferviceable in their
Inquifition, the Coroner was upon this Queftion
immediately called into the next Room, and re-
turning, told the Jury, I was the Bedy, and not
the Clothes, they were to fit upons the Body was
there, and that was fufficient. It is an urhappinefs
the Coroner hath forgot (as he {wears) who
thofe were which were in the next Room, whilft
the Jury fat, and to whom, whilft they fat, he
did feveral times go; but had the Jury feen the
Clothes upon the Body in 1ts full Pofture, thefe
would of themfelves have convinced them, that
my Lord of Effzx was murdered; for how could
there be a print of 2 bloody Foot upon my Lord,
and yet none (as they pretended) had been in
the Clofet with him? Or how could his Lord-
{hip with fuch an Inftrument as the Razor, cut
twice through the Neck of his Cravar? For
Alice Carter and Mary Fobnfon, who {together with
Major Webfter) {tript the Body, have declared, as
hath been depofed, the Neck of my Lord’s Cra-
vat was cut in three Pieces. The Circumftances
of the pretended Inftrument of Death, gives ftrong
fufpicion of the Murder; for the pretended In-
ftrument of the Self-murder, was a Freach Razor
about four Inches and a quarter in its Blade, and
no Spill or Tongue at the end; wherefore this
Razor in its ufe muft be held by the very Blade,
and not lefs than two Inches of that could well
fuffice to be held in his Hand for that Strength
and Steadinefs the Cutting twice through the Cra-
vat, and afterwards {o deep in the Neck, required.
And then the Wound, if made at once, would
not have been above Two Inches and a Quarter
deep, no more of the Blade being outfide the
Hand, which length could not at once poffibly
make a Wound above three Inches in depth; I
do tuppofe none do believe his Lordfhip cut twice
to eftedt it,

6B 2 The



924

The largenefs of the Wound at firft, did make
very ingenious Phyficians and Surgeons fay, That
they fuppofed it impofiible for any Man to cut
his Throat, according as the two Surgeons up-
on my Lord’s Body depofed, the Wound being
fuch, both Jugulars and Arteries quite divided,
and cut to the very Vertebres of the Neck: now
in cutting the firft Jugular Artery, there would
immediately have iffued fuch a quantity of Blood
and Spirits, as would have foon incapacitated
him from dividing the fecond ; and tho’ as Inge-
nious an Anatomift as moft in England, before
their Lordfhips would. not fay that he thought 1t
impofiible his Lordfhip fhould fo cut his Throat;
yet he did confels, that he never faw or heard of
any before, who cut through both Jugulars and
Arteries to the Neck-bone, as my Lord’s was
cut. This Gentleman for fome Years having been
Phyfician to Bedlam, he may be {uppoled to have
as many Inftances of Self-violences as any Phy-
fician in Enpland; and of all Men, none do it
with that good-will and vigour as the Diftradted
do, and therefore thould make the deepeft and
largelt Wounds. But I think I need not infift
in this Cafe upon fuch Arguments, confidering
what is before faid to be proved. Now to proceed
with the Jury.

Thefe Gentlemen, had they not been hurried
nto their Inquifition (as you will hereafter find
they were) by the Body as it was leic naked, up-
on a {tri&t view might well have been fatisfied his
Lordfhip fell not a Seli-facrifice; for it’s pro-

ved there were Five Cuts in
¥ Mr. Shiliingyford. s Right-hand (viz.) * one al-
T Zwnerand Peck. ot on the top of the Fore-
_{:‘Mr. Sherausad the a K L L
Surpeon upon the 11NGer, and another upon the
Body, fame near the Hand; T one

upon the Fourth-Finger, and
another upon the Little-Finger, and } a fifth
about two Inches long in the very Palm of the
Right-hand ; can 1t be fuppos’d that his Lord-
fhip made thefe Wounds (and that upon his
Right-hand) for trial how fharp the Razor was,
and how well it would perform what he defign-
ed to execute! Thefe Cuts cannot be fuppofed
to be made by-holding the Razor. No, thefe
were previous to that direful Cut; and the ef-
fects of his {truggling with thofe bloody Men,
when he fo often cried out, Aurder, Murder,
Murder s as he then ufed his Tongue to dilco-
ver, fo did he likewife his Hands to prevent that
treacherous Wound he perceived defigned for his
Deftruction ; and in thus ftriving to put off the
Inftrument of Death, did his Righi-hand receive
thefe feveral Wounds, Mr. Fifbei, one of the
Coroner’s Jury hath depofed to this efieft, © That
¢ he asked Bomeney, whether his Lord was not
¢ efteemed a good Man, for fuch he had heard
¢ hum reprefented? Bomeney anfwered, As good a
¢ Man aslived. Upon which Fifher faid, Then
¢ 1t was very {trange {o good a Man fhould be
¢ guilty of fo bad an Adtion, for nothing could
¢ be worfe than Self-Murder; whereupon Major
¢ Hawley told Fifber, Whoever thought that Ac-
« tion unlike his Lordfhip, did not know my
« Lord of Effex; for every one that was but well
¢ acquainted with the Earl, knew it was his
¢ Lordfhip’s fixed Principle, That any Man
¢ might cut his own Throat, or otherwife de-
¢ {troy himfelf, to avoid a difhonourable and in-
¢ famous Death, and therefore this was like my
* Lord of Effex’s avowed Principle.” Fifber bes
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lieving this to betrue, was the more eafily in-
clin’d to believe that his Lordfhip had followed
fuch his own fixed Principles. But when Major
Hawley was queftioned for this Suggeftion to the
Jury, he pofuively deny’d it, and for Anfwer
faith, that he was not nigh the Victualling-Houfe
in the Zower all the time the Jury was there con-
fidering of thetr Inquifiion: And as for the
Principle, he could not fay it, for he never heard
it faid to be my Lord’s Principle, till their Lord-
fhips charged him with haviag fugsefted it I
know 1t is commonly difcourfed abour Town,
that fuch was his Lordfhip’s Principles; and this
was 1nduftrioufly fpread immediaiely upon my
Lord’s Death; but obferve, Major Hazwley was
the Man that fuggefted this to the Jury, that
they might the more ealily belicve the Self-
Murder. And the Major's now denial of this
Suggeftion, or that he ever heard it faid to be
my Lord’s Principle, when the Matter is pofi-
tively {worn againft him (I think) naturally
argues that this was a falfe, fore’d, and malici-
oufly mvented Story by that bloody Party that
murdered my Lord, and Haeley the Man by
them pitch’d upon as the moft proper Perfen to
corrupt the Jury (the then proper legal Judees
of the Manner of my Lord’s Death) with this
treacherous and villainoufly contriv’d Suggeftion ;
fo that the Jury might the more eafily be in-
cliwd to believe my Lord’s Self-Murder upon
Evidence as Inconfiftent as falfe, And the Ma-
jor’s difowning that he was near the Jury at the
Victualling-Houfe whilt they were upon their
Inquiry, mmplies his being conicious that he was
there for a very ill purpole, and therefore thought
it not fafe to own his being with them; but he
was too ofhicioully there, not to be remembred ;
for when fome of the Jury moved for Adjourn-
ing their Inquifition, in order to the giving no-
tice to my Lord’s Family; fo that if any Thing
could be proved on my Lord’s Behalf, it might
be by them heard: Hawley immediately enters a
Caveat, and prevents it; for he tells the Jury,
That they could mot Adjourn, but muft imme-
diately difpatch their Inquiry; for His Majefly
was then in Council, and had fent for their [n-
quifition, and would not rife till it was broughe
him. This further Suggeftion caufed the Jury
to make more hafte than good fpeed; and fo,
without that time which was convenient, ended
their Inquifition.  But Major Hawley denies this
Itkewife, and protefts, He was not nigh the Ju-
ry at the Place, or did at all thus haften them.
Bue this 1s pofitively fworn againft him by fome
of the Jury; and many of the Jury declare they
remember the Major with them at the Victualling-
Houfe. The Indiferetion in the Coroner and L's
Jury; I cannot but obferve, which was, their
{uffering’ Bomeney and Ruffel to come together, and
hear each other’s Examination; and, which was
more foolifh, to permit Bomeney, when he began
to hefitate in his Examination, (which alone gave
reafonable Grounds of Sufpicion that he was
telling a Lye; for Truth would have readily oc-
curr’d 5 but Lies were firft to be invented, before
they could be given in Evidence,) to write his own
Examination ; and not only fo, but in the Room
next the Jury, where his Tutors were ready to
inftrut him: And yet, after all, this forged Dero-
fition needed further Amendments at 27hiehal,
(s you will immediately hear) for as it was
fworn, it was not thought fit to b2 expofed. Al

Men
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MMen muft agree, That the Circumftances in which
Bomeney and Ruffel ftood related to my Lord at
the time of his Death, render’d them highly to
be fufpeéted as privy to my Lord’s Death, if not
aCting in 1t, in cale my Lord did not deftroy
himfeif: For, could Ruffel keep my Lord’s Cham-
ber-Door (as himfelf upon Oath confefles) and
be ignorant of what Violence was offered to his
Lordfhip within the Chamber, (the Room not
boing fourteen Foot Iquare? ) Or could Bomeney
be waiting on his Lord in the very Chamber, and
a Stranger to the true manner of his Death?
Whercfore, 1 common Difcretion and Juftice,
thefe Two (and Aondey, the other Warder, who
firt that Morning kept the Chamber- Door, with
the Senrinel that kept the outward Door,) fhould
upon the firft Difcovery have been feized, and fe-
parated, and kept apart, and examined apart, fo
that neicher might have been privy to the others
Examination, by which the Truth would have

cen foon detected 5 for had my Lord deftroyed
himfelf, all their Depofitions would have fo har-
monized (though feparately and crofly examined)
that the '1'ruth would the more plainly have ap-
peared ; wiereas on the other hand, in cafe his
Lordihip fell by Treachery, then fuch Proceed-
ings would have immediately difcovered it to the
Jury ; for then thefe Warders, and Servants, and
sentinel, not being able to foretell what Quefti-

5 the Jury would ask them, confequently could
not previonfly agree upon their Anfwers. And
fhould their Examinations, upon this Manage-
ment, have materially interfer’d, and thwarted
czch other, (as it ispatural to fuppole they would,
for though Truth be ftill the fame, yet Lies are
almoft infinite,) thefe Depofitions would have been
fo far from proving my Lord a Self-Murderer,
as they would bhave plainly difcovered the contra-
ry, and thefe Men guilty i a moft periidious
and barbarous Connivance,

For, admiiting that thefe Men, upon their
crofs and feparate Examination, {hould have an-
fwered the Jury as it is before reprefented (which
s according to their own Qaths, or repeated Re-
fations,) can 1t be fuppoled that any Coroner
and Jury could be fo void of common Senfe and
Honefty, asto givecredit to fuch, and {o many
Contradiftions 2 But, alas! fuch fair Practices
were not to be expected, where fuch a foul Vil-
lany was to be concealed. And therefore, in-
ficad of fecuring apart the two Warders, Ser-
vant, and Sentinel, poor }7lliam Tarner and Sa-
muel Peck (whofe Depofitions are before mention-
ed) were to be locked up clofe, (with Bomeney
for a Colour,) as though thefe two Men were
more to be fufpected than my Lord’s two Keep-
cis.  And thus in Cuftody were thefe two inno-
" cent DMen kept, whilft the two Warders and Sen-
tinel, the more-to-be-fufpeéted Criminals, were
permitted to go at large.  But this was contrary
to His then Majefty’s Command: For as {oon as
King Charles the Second (then in the Tower) had
heard of my Lord’s Death, he did immediately
{end the Lord Allizoton, Sir C——, and Thomas
Hywcard, Efgs to my ford’s Lodgings, with Or-
ders, That fuch as were attending upon my Lord
at the Time of his Death, fhould be fecured and
examined, and all Things to remain till the Co-
roner’s jury had {een the Body. In Obedience
to which Command, Sir C—— coming into the
Lodgings, began to take fome Examinations;
but was foon interrupted by one, who told
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Sir C———, His Majetty did command him im=
mediately to go to the O/d-Bailey, and give notice
to the then Attorney-General of my Lord’s Death,
and to know what was to be done therein, Sir
(—, by the fame Gentleman defired His Ma-
Jelty’s Leave to finith thofe Examinations he was
then upon; but the fame Meflenger came the fi-
cond time, with pofitive Orders (as from His
then Majefty ) for Sir C——s immediate going
in Obedience to this repeated Command, Sir
(—— went: But Sir C—— remembers not who
this Gentleman was, which thus twice came with
Orders as from His then Majefty. Itis a great
Mistertune, Sir C remembers not; for by
the Meflenger (it is ftrongly fufpected ) it wouldl
be foon found, Histhen Majefty’s Avtherity (in
this Command) was ufed by him, who 00 often
abufed it

This great haftc to the Old-Bailey, (when that
Great Patriot, but unfortunate Lord Ruffe! was
there Trying,) and the indirect ufe, by malicious
Application of this pretended Szlf-Murder to the
taking off him, of whom we were no longer wor-
tny.—This gave to an Honourable Perfon then
upon the Bench juft Grounds to fufpe&; that this
Noble Earl was murdered without Form of Law,
the more cafily to deftroy that Great Lord under
colour of Juftice.

The Coroner’s Inquifition, and the Depofiti-
ons of Bomeney and Ruffel being carried in all
halte to W#biteball, in order to their immediate
publication ; they were there perufed, and it be-
ing found that Bomeney and Ruffel had point-blank
contradiCted each other; (for the firft, as be-
fore obferved, had fworn the delivery of the
Razor the Day beforemy Lord’s Death,) andthe
fecond, that it was not delivered till the Day of
his Death: Thefe Contraditions were not
thought convenient to be expofed, lelt they
fhould give juft Ground of Sufpicion that the
whole was forged; and therefore a Reconciler
was ordered to amend the one, fo it might be
agreeable to the other, it matter’d not how in-
confitent or contradiftory they were in the Ori-
ginal, for thofe could be feen by none but the
Coroner himfelf, in whofe Cuflody they were;
and 1t was to be fuppofed, that the Coroner would
not then dare to contradi€t what Authority had
ordered fo to be printed; and hereupon was that
Alteration made, as was before obferved, in Bo-
meney’s lnformation, page 899, but this done (as
fome Years fince obferved by an Ingenious Aw-
thor upon this Occafion) without the leaft con-
gruity either to Senfe or Grammar; for nothing
can be more apparent, than that the foregoing
part of the Information relates wholly to Thur/-
day: but at laft, without any regard to what Bo-
meney had before fworn, on Friday the 13th In-
ftant, 1s foifted in, contrary to all Rules of Gram-
mar, and common Meafures of Senfe as well as
Juftice, which juftly efteems this printed Infor-
mation forged. This forged Reconciliation is
done with the greateft incongruity and abfurd-
nefs, as well as falfenefs imaginable; and I know
not whether the Folly of the Suborner (for with-
out doubt the Suborner and Reconciler in this cafe
are the fame, or of the fame Stamp) or the Pes-
jury of the fuborned in that falfe Information, be
moft confpicuous.

The Soldiers that were in the Teower that
Morning my Lord was murdered, having made
fuch Difcoveries as fatisfied them my Lord was
treacheroully
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treacheroufly taken off s they ufed too great
freedom in their Difcourfe with relation there-
unto ; and therefore (as Robert Meake declared
to iwo who have depofed it) ¢ An Officer called
¢ feveral of them together, and under fevere
¢ Threatning injoined them not to {peak one
¢ Word of what they had either feen or heard
¢ with relation to my Lord’s Death. Where-
¢ fore the faid Meake defired his Friends not to
¢ divulge what he had told them ; for fhould it
¢ be known, it would prove his Ruin:’ But
fome fhort time after, Afeake declared (as three
have depofed ) ¢ That he did believe he {hould
¢ be privately murdered for what he knew, and
¢ had faid with relation to my Lord’s Murder,
¢ and therefore he defired Bamplon or Davidfon
¢ (as they have both fworn} to keep him Com-
¢ pany that very Day, for he much feared he
¢ {hould that very Day be deftroyed., But both
¢ of them (fearing the Danger themfclves might be
¢ in) refufing, that very INight was the faid Meake
¢ thrown into the Tower-Ditch.’  As for Ruddle
before-mentioned, all the Information I can have
of what is become of him, 1s, That not long af-
ter my Lord’s Death he was drawn out of the
Tower, and lent to the Eaff-Tindies, and at Fort
St. George fhot to Death, but for what Reafon 1
cannot learn. There was one Mr. Hawley, a
Warder in the Tewer that very Morning my
Lerd was murdered, and by what he had ob-
ferved with relation thereunto, he had Realon

to declare to a Friend, 7hat it was a Piece of

Villany throushout., This Mr. Haswley being 1n
efiminfier-Hall whillt I was upon my Trial,
faid, He <woudered what made me fiir in it, <when
to bis Ricwledge I knew nothing of the Matter s
upoin which one My, B. faid, Mr. Hawley, if yon
kuow My, Braddon kuows nothing in this, what
muft you kicww? to which Mr. Hawley made #o
Reply.  But this Gentleman’s Knowledge 1n the
Matter coft him too dear; tor about Afarch next
after my Lord’s Death, being mffing, one of
the Warders, fufpected to be a Papift, faid,

N Hawley bad becen prating abeut the Earl of

Effex’s Death, and therefore was forced to fly,  But
{ix Weeks difcover’d how he fled, for he was then
found in a River by Rechefler fo changed through
the Barbarity he had met with, that neither his
Face or Body could be known by his neareft Re-
Jations ; and his Clothes were all taken off except
his Stockings and Shoes, by which he was difco-
vered to be the Man; for e wore three Stock-
ings upon one Leg, and two Stockings and a
Cere-Cloth upon the other, and (as 1 have been
informed) the Lining of the Toes of his Shoes
cut out. By thefe remarkable Circumitances his
Wite knew him. She had ufed all poflible Di-
licence for finding her Husband ; in order to
which fhe offer’d in feveral Gaze!tes an Hundred
Pound Reward to any that could difcover his
Body dead or alive, but it was fix Week before
he was found. Several of the Soldiers in the
Tower, that Morning my Lord was murdered,
I have been inquiring after, but have been told
they were killed inthe /#7¢f againft the late Duke
of Monmotith.

But confidering what Fate befel Hatwley, Rud-
dle and Neake, before-mentioned, 1 have Rea-
fon to fufpett that others may likewife have been
murdered by Way of Prevention.

Belides fuch Addition of Blood, other violent
Methods were ufed to prevent a Difcovery, by
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punithing fuch Soldiers as feemed to disbelicve
(upon very good Grounds) my Lord’s Self-Muir-
der: This appears by his Information following,

Richard Forden declareth, © That (fome time
¢ that Summer the Earl of Effex died, and not
¢ long after the faid Earl’s Death) he faw a Sol-
¢ dier tied to the Wooden-Horfe in the Zewer
¢ (by Order of Licutenant Colonel Nichels) and
¢ whipt after a very cruel Manner.” And this
Deponent heard the faid Lieutenant Colonel
tell the Soldier, he ought to be hanged. This
Deponent further declareth, ¢ That he was juft
¢ alter informed by the Marfhal that whipt the
‘ fard Soldier, that by Order of Lieutenant
¢ Colonel Nichols he gave the faid Soldier 572
¢ Stripes (tho’ the ufual Number was but 12,)
¢ and that the fuid Soldier had lain a Fortnight
“ before in clofe Coftody, and been fed with
¢ Bread and Water, and all only for the Offence
¢ following; (wiz.) Some foort Time after
the Death of the late Earl of Eflex,

a Divne coming into the Tower, D}'; ‘t{ of Nor-
the fatd Soldier wwas [eut <with bim fff;f ;f}md c
to fhew bim the Tower sy aid as the
Dolor was almoft over-againft Major Hawley’s,
the Doftor asked the faid Soldier, <which was the
Chamber wherein the late Earl of Effex did eut bis
Throat? wherenpon the faid Soldier (pointing to
the Chamber it which the Earl bad been Py ifoier)
Jaid, that 15 the Chamber i which it is faid 1z
Larl of Effex cut bis Throat, The Deffor then
asked the Soldier, wwhat be did belicve ? Ty which
the Soldicr anfwered, That he did believe in God ,
but being preft by the faid Doitor to tell him, whether
be did believe my Lord cut bis Throat ? The Soldicr
then replied, be wonld not fay be did believe it 5 for
which only faying, the Punifbment aferefaid was in-
flicted.

And the more effeCtually to prevent any Dif-
courfe that might give the leaft credit to my
Lord’s being murdered, our then Mifgovernment
took all poflible Care to punith, or rather opprefs
{luch as fhould declare their Belief thereof ; amongft
which one of the Coroner’s Jury upon the Earl's
Body, f{uffered under this Tyranny; for this
Man, {fometime after my Lord’s Death, difcour-
fing concerning the Earl’s Death, and the feve-
ral Irregularities which he obferved pradtifed
upon my Lord’s Body before they faw it, and
how they were not permitted to make that In-
quiry which was neceflary; faid to this effe@;
“ That he did believe they (wiz. the Coroner’s
¢ Jury) were all infatuated to bring my Lord in
“ Felo de fe 5 but he did fuppofe, had they not been
“ hurried into their Inquificion, they fhould have
‘ found it otherwife.” For this Difcourfe this
honeft poor Man was profecuted upon Informati-
on, and fined (at firlt have heard) g00/. but it
appearing he was very poor, his Poverty prevail-
ed for a mitigation of Lis Fine; and his Age and
great Infirmities of Body (together with the cha-
ritable Interceflion of a Gentleman of Intereft in
the then times) avoided the corporal Punithment
which he had otherwife undergone.

If fuch Practices as thefe were ufed by our then
Court to prevent my Lord’s but being fufpected
to be murdered, itcould not be fuppofed that any
Encouragement fhould be given to a full Dete&i-
on, and therefore all Propofals in order thereunto,

were to be rejected ; an Inftance whercof was as
followeth, (viz. )

About
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About fix Weeks after my Lord’s Death, there
was a Letter (unfealed) left with one Mr. Cadman,
then living in Durbam-Exchange the Letter was
directed to the Right Honourable the _Cnuntefs
Dowager of Efféx; the Subftance of this Lerter
was, That if her Honour conld prevail with the King
for the Author’s Pardon, be would ingenuoufly make
a full Difeovery, bow, by whom, and whofe Order
my Lord was Murdered : and this Lelter did affure
ber Henour, that the DUKE of YORK and
—— awere authorizing this Murder.

This Letter was fublcribed P. B.

By the Hand that writ ir, and the Letter fub-
{cribed, it was Paul Bomency before-mentioned,
(who did once blafphemoufly fay, That ke conld
as well tell bow my Lord came by bis Death, as God
Almighty bimfelf ) for the Letter was fairly writ,
in an Hand between a Roman and an Italian, and
fuch an Hand Bemeney, when he would write fair,
did write; befides, the two Letters fubfcribed,
are the Letters of his Name.

I do fuppofe it may be objefted, That this
Letter cannot be thought to be writ and fubfcri-
bed by Bomeney; for the Letter, had it been
brought in Accufation againft him, and prov’d
to be his, would have coft him his Life, feeing
herein he confefs'd himfelf Guilty of the Faét.

But, with Submiffion, 1 think Bomeney by this
Letter, could it have been proved to be his own
Writing, was in no Danger at all of being pu-
nithed ; for had they feized Bomeney, they would
have catched 2 Zartar; fhould they have pro-
ceeded againft him for this Murder, upon this
Confeffion, the World would have believed the
whole Contents of this Letter to be truey and
confequently that the Duke of York, and
authorized (or rather commanded) this moft trea-
cherous Murder. And then pray confider what
that Government could have got by fuch Profe-
cution, Conviétion and Punifhment.

This Letter was carried by Cadman to a Jul-
tice of Peace, and by him to the Secretary of
State : But this Book{eller was never fent for, nor
any Enquiry made after the Author,

The Backwardnefs of the then Government
in not examining into the Matter, gave juft
Grounds of Sufpicion they were too well fatisfied
in the Truth of the Contents; which was of
fuch a Nature, as it could not bear an Inquifiti-
on; for that would have centred in His Ruin,
who was then by Blood, and Cruelty, and other
lllegal and oppreflive Methods, endeavouring
the toral Subverfion of our Church and State ;
and this by the Removal of fome of the Chief
of thole Noble Lords and Worthy Gentlemen,
who had ever oppofed their Arbitrary Defigps.
Amongft which, this Noble Lord and the Righe
Honourable the Lord Ruffel they did efteem two
of the Chief.

Had none then in Authority and Power been
concerned 1n this barbarous Treachery, and had
our then Government had the leaft Defire to
know this Truth, in order to a juft Punifhment
of thofe bloody Villains; with what Diligence
would they have fearch’d out the Author, who
defited no other Reward than the Security of
his Life; and in order to his Indermnity (if they
could no otherwife have found him out) a Pro-
clamation of Pardon would ithmediately have
been iffued forth, by which thé Author would
have been affured of his Life ; and then, with-
out doubt, according to his Protife; would have
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laid open this bloody Deed of Darknefs ? Hath
bur Age ever {een, or known recorded, any Mur-
der (admit this one) committed within this King-
dom, that hath been (all its Circumftances con-~
fidered) attended with fuch Aggravations? We
have feen a Reward of 200/. (as well as a Par-
don) by Proclamation -offered for the Difcovery
of thofe bloody Ruffians, who barbaroufly wound-
ed (but defigr’d to have murdered) that worthy
Gentleman, Mr. Arnold, And was there not 500/
and a Pardon by Protlamation promifed to Him
or Them that fhould deteét the Murder of Sir
Edmundbury Godfrey 2 Such Means as thefe would
have been likewife in this Cafe ufed, if fuch who
then mifled Charles 11, and corrupted the State,
had not been the deepeft in this black Contri-
Vance, ~——— .

This Bomeney, {oon after my Lotd’s Deatli,
gives an eminent Divine an Account to this Effeét,
(viz.) That bis Lord did ufe 1o be taken with fudden
frenfical Paffions s and in particular, with one that
Morning be died, juft before bis Death : For (faid
this vile Fudas) as foon as my Lord faw my Lord
Ruflel go 2o bis Trial, be firuck bis Breaft, and
Jaid, Himfelf was the Caufe of my Lord Ruffel’s
Mifery, fecing be bad vouched for that Gentleman
whofe Treachery would preve my Lord Ruffel’s Ru-
in, &c. and bereupon fell almoft difiradted, — But
this Fellow’s repeated Ouaths give the Lye to this
Forgery. Before the Coroner, in the
Conclufion of his firft * Depofition,
he {wears, That on Thurfday- Night, (which <was
the Night before bis Lord’s Death) the Earl was
very merry at Supper, AND DID NOT
SEEM T0 BE DISCONTENTED
THE NEXT DAY, And when one of the
King’s Counfel at myTrial, ask’d fuch a Queftion
as feem’d either to 1mply my Lord’s being Me-
lancholy, or elfe would have had Mr. Bomeney.
—For the Queftion was thus worded, (viz.) Did
you obferve your Lord Melancholy, Mr. Bomeney ?
Bomeney anfwered, Zesy but we took no Notice of
it for be usd to be fo, and e bad #o Reafon to
fu[peét any Thing more than ordinary.

Had this Varlet refted in the general Affirma-
tive, without proceeding farcher, his Anfwer
would (1t’s probable} have better ferved the De-
fign of the Queftion : but by the latter-part of
his Anfwer, he deftroy’d that Service which the
firlt Word [2e5] might have otherwife done.
And obferve what a point-blank Contradiétion
this Evidence at the Trial is to what he depofed
(before the Coroner) the very next Day after my
Lord’s Death, when (had this been true) it would
have been freth in his Memery, and he would
(without doubt) have fworn ic. But this was ac-
cording to fome After-inftrution, not thought of
at the Time of the Coroner’s Inqueft.

In the next place, [ fhall give you fome Ac-
count of what was {worn againft one Mr, Hok~
land, fo much talk’d of in this Affair, by which
you will have fome ground to fuppofe a more
convenient Inftrument than a Razor gave this
barbarous and treacherots Wound.

The Information of Richard Davis, of the Parifh
of St. Mary Somerfes, London, School-mafter,
taken before ¥. Cardran, Efg; Juftice of the
Peace for the County of Aiddfefex.

T H1S Informant (aithy That ¢ lintle after the
late Duke of Monmouth was routed in the
Wett, one Mr. J. E. (to the beft of this Informant’s

réliiein-

*Pag. 8,
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Yemembrauce) told this Informant, That it was al-
mofp univerfally whifpered amongl the Acquain-
tance of Mr. John Holland (formerly. Servant 1o
the Earl of Sunderland,) That the fard Mr. Hol-
land bad confeffed 10 one M. D. of bis intimate Ae-
guatitance, (and afterward concerned with Hol-
land 15 the Robbery of My, Gatford, for which both
were condemned, and the faid D. executed, but Hol-
land pardoned,) That the foid Holland was con-
cerited in the Murder of Arthur late Earl of Effex,
i which be was employed by the Earl of Sunder-
Yand, upon this oecafion, (viz.) The faid Mr, Hol-
land one Day waiting on my Lord Sunderlend,
his Lordfhip feemed much difturbed with Paffi-
on; upon which, the faid Helland told his Lord-
fhip, That 1f his then coming to his Lordfhip
had fo difcompofed him, he would withdraw, and
wait on his Lordfhip fome more convenient time ;
whereupon my Lord {aid, That he fhould tarry,
lor it was not with him (the faid Holland) that
he was angry, but withi others; and that he was
concerned to think that of fo many Servants his
Lordfhip had made, and been fo very kind to,
he had not one he could truft, or would ferve
him (or Words to that Effeét ; ) upon which, the
faid Holland replied, Fle was then ready faith-
fully and punltually to obferve his Lordfhip's
Commands in any thing. My Lord then difco-
vered to the faid Folland the defigned Murder
of the faid Earl of Effx, and would have the
faid Helland therein to be engaged, to which the
faid Holland readily confented ; and that the faid
Earl’s Throat was cut with a large Knife, and not
with a Razor. Aud this Informant was then further
informed, That the faid Holland bad further decla-
red 1o the faid D, That fome People were afterwards
made away for blabbing what they kunew concerning
the faid Earl's Deaths and that the faid D. bad
charged the faid Mr, Holland, before feveral of
their Acquatntance one Day drinking together, with
what the faid Holland bad confefled to bim the faid
D. as aforefaid 5 aund that he the faid Holland be-
ino fo charged, feci:ed much dejelled, but conld not
deny i, This Informant further maketh Oathy, That
oire D. P, about three Zears fince, did give this In-
formant almoff the fame decount with relation to
Holland and D. Adid the faid D. P. did further 10l
this Informant, That when the faid Holland and D.
were committed to Newgate for robbing Mr, Gat-
ford, the faid D. P. 1wemnt to fee the faid Holland
in Newgate, fo condele bis Gondition 5 but the faid
Holland <was wery coeerfuly and told bim the faid
D. P. He was fecure of his Life, and likewife not
to want Money as long as the Earl of Sunderland
was living.  The faid D. P. did likewife then
further tell this Liformant, That the faid Holland
(as foon as be <ias committed lo Newgate for the
forefaid Robbery) fent to my Lord Sunderland for
fome Money, and 1bat bis Lordfbip fent bim the faid
Holland fixteeu Guineas. And this Informani bath
been told by feveral, That the faid Lord Sunder-
land bath many times fupplied the faid Holland with
Mouey.

"When Holland was imprifoned for Mr, Gat-
ford’s Robbery in Newgate, my Lord Sunderland
fent often thither, and took a more than ordinary
Care of him; whereupon Major Richardfon told
my Lord’s Gentleman, That he did much wonder
his Lordfhip would be fo kind to fo profligate 2
Fellow. To which 1t was anfwered, That his
Lordfhip had a very great Kindnefs for Holland,

becaufe he had been Servant to my Lord Spencer
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(my Lord Sunderland’s Sons ) but it feems fome-
what elfe was in the Matter ; for it’s depofed by

Fobn Waytis, ¢ That obferving Holland to be

¢ frequently furnifhed with Money by my Lord
¢ Sunderland, and ——, this Informant asked
‘“ Holland how his Lord{hip became {o kind to
““ him ? To which Holland replied (with his u-
< fual Phrafe) Damu bim, he bad done that for bim,
“ that HE DURST NOT DO OTHER-
“ WISE. And when this Informant was once
““ faying, It was whifper’d that the late Earl of
¢ Effes: was murdered ; Holland faid, Dams bim,
““ ttwas not g Farthing matter if Twenty fuchwere
“ taken off.”” He that fo little valued the Lives
of Twenty, would not in all probability much
boggle to be concerned in the murdering One.

Holland writ a Letter to the Earl of Feverfbam,
wherein he reprefented me as endeavouring to
iuborn him to appear an Evidence in the Cale of
the late Earl of Effex ; which Letter was read in
the Houle of Lords. But that which Holland
falfly called endeavours to fuborn, I fhall truly and
faithfully (as it can be prov’d) declare, and ap-
peal to every impartial Reader, Whether it de-
ferves that infamous Name.

Having fome reafon to believe Holland one of
the Rufhans, I did ufe all Means pofiible for his
Apprehenfion 5 but I found that Helland lay very
private, and, as I had reafon to believe, defign-
ed to fly beyond Seas, (as his own Letter before
mentioned declared.) Hereupon 1 applied my
felf to fome of Holland’s Acquaintance, and by
them being brought to Mrs. Holland, T told her,
That I had realon to believe her Husband was
concerned 1n this villainous Murder, and herein
was confirmed by Mr. Holland’s abfconding ; for
Innocence defires a Trial, but Guilt ftill flies from
Juftice, I then told her, That if her Husband
were really guilty of this Faét, and would imme-
diately furrender himfelf, ingenuoufly declaring,
bow, by whom, with whem, and for what bird to
do this barbarous Murder, her Husband thould
have a general Pardon, and both Him and Her
provided for : But if her Husband was innocent,
(notwith{tanding whatfoever was faid to the con-
trary,) and fhould take upon him a Crime (for
any Advantage whatfoever) of which he was not
ouilty, he deferv’d to be Hang’d here and Damn’d
hereafter, feeing by his Perjury he would make

Juftice an Inftrument of executing the worft of

[viurders.—-—— But if he were indeed the Man,
and fhould furrender himfelf, and difcover the
whole Matter, he muft be fure to keep within the
Limits of Truth; for fhould he be detefted in
the leaft Perjury, no Man was ever more vigo-
roufly profecuted, nor any more feverely punifh-
ed, than he (for fuch his Perjury) muft expeét
to fuffer.

Thefe were the Arguments with which I would
have fubori’d (as that Letter calls 1t} Holland to
a full Difcovery: And I do appeal to all the
World, Whether, admitting this to be true, (as
it will be proved when occafion ferves) I deferve
this villainous Charge. For the Truth of this, I
do appeal to the Confciences of Mrs, . Mr. P.
and Mr. §. with whom I feveral times treated
in this Affair,

I fhall now mention one or two more Objec-
tions againft my Lord’s being murder’d, and
then draw to a Conclufion. The firft is chis, viz.

the Right Honourable the Lady Countefs-Dow-

ager,
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ager of Effex, having heretofore declared (whe-
ther lately, | cannot fay) That fhe did believe her
Lord cut his own Throat; and being fo poflef-
fed, fome time after this Committee had feveral
times fat, fhe defired feveral Lords (amongft
which fome were of this Right Honourable
Committee) to meet at her Houle; and after
her Honour had acquainted their Lordfhips with
the occalion of her Requeft, an eminent Divine
(and now Bifhop) did inform their Lordfhips
what were the Reafons that moved her Honour
to belicve that her Lord did indeed lay violent
hands on himfelfy e Chief, if not the Ouly
whercof, was, That fome fhort time before my
Lord's Commitment to the ‘Tower, bis Lordfbip
feemed to be under a great concern of Mind 5 but then
declived, That the Trouble be was in did mot arife
Srom any Thoughts of Self-prefervation, for Himfelf
was the leaft of bis Care 5 but the Thoughts of bis
Family, what would after bis Death become of them,
was what did indeed troudle bim : As for bimfelf, be
was refolved what todos SEVERALTIMES
VERY RESOLUTELY REPEATING
THATI EXPRESSION, AS FOR MY
SELF, I AM RESOLVED WHAT TO
DO. This I was told by a Gentleman then pre-
fent, who (as I have great Reafon to believe) would
have reprefented every Thing to the beft Advan-
tage (as far as Truth would permit) on the Be-
half of fuch Objections, But, with all Submil-
fion to fuch Judgments as are fway’d with this
Objettion, 1 think it carries not that Force which
many imagine : For is there nothing to which that
Refolution of his Lordfhip might fo probably
have relation, as a Self-Deflruélion? Was that
the on/y, or the moft likely thing he was refolved
todo ? I do humbly conceive, a little Confidera-
tion may afford us both a more charitable Opi-
nion of his Lordfhip’s Refolution, and fomewhat
more probable than Self-Murder to be alligned as
what his Lordfhip was refolved to do.  For when
I confider the Time when his Lordthip was ap-
prehenfive of the like Danger as threatned him
juft before his laft Imprifonment, (wiz.) when
my Lord Shafisbury and my Lord Howard, &e.
were committed to the Zower, and a Gentleman
who had a.very great Honour for his Lordfhip,
(as all good Men had, who had the Honour to
know him) m true Zeal for his Lordfhip’s Pre-
fervation, (having heard that the Court defigned
likewife 1o commit my Lord of Effex, and to
take off many in Form of Law; or rather, that
which they falfly called fo,) went to his Lordthip,
and informed him of what he had been told, and
humbly fubmiutted it to his Lordfhip’s Judgment,
‘Wherher it were not proper for fome time to with-
draw, till the Fury of the Court by time was a
little appeafed ¢ This Geatleman told his Lord.-
fhip, He found by the Papifts, that they did de-
fign to take off feveral; and his Lordthip being
to thewr Arbitrary and Popifh Defigns as great
and profefs’d an Enemy as any, he did fear his
Lordthip might not be fafe from their pretended
Juftice, when once within their Power, My Lord
herenpon f{miled, and faid very fedately, and yet
very refolutely, That he wonld not fiir, though be
did expelt the Court wonid proeced wery far, not
only to the Imprifoning, but againft the Lives of
smany 5 and if God in b:s Providence fhonld think
St to fuffer bim to fall a Sacrifice to the Malice
and Rage of the Court, be did hope, and did not
doubt, but 1he World flould fee that he could die
Vou. III, |

for it is ™ fworn the Papifts then
faid, The Earl knew fo much of their
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withas GREAT RESOLUTION as ever
bis Father did; for be was ready at all times, and
upon all Qccafions, to lay down bis Life for bis
Country. |

Refleting therefore on my Lord’s declared.
Refolution of his not ftirring, though then under
the like Danger, as in this Cafe apprehended,
and with what Readinefs, Courage, and Chearful-
nefs be could lny down bis Life for bis Country; and
likewfe the Knowledge that he may be fuppofed to
bave of the then Court-Defigns (which thofe Villains,

nine Days before bis Death declared, R
4, L.0min's

Evidence . firf!
mentioned,
Defigns, and was fo very averfe to

their Inteieft, that they could never carry them on,
UNLESS HIS LORDSHIP WAS
TAKEN OFF; AND HIS LORD:
SHIP WdAdS THEREFORE 70 BE
MURDERED.) Ifay, when I confider
thefe Things, and that the more this Honourable
Lord knew of the black Intrigues of the Court,
the more fo good a Man, and fo true a Parriot
muft be {fuppofed to hate them ; I can’t but ima-
gine that this brave Siate-Champion, when he
had been once fatisfied, that the Court, under
Colour of Law, would have taken him off, had
RESOLVED AS TO HIMSELPF, to
lay open thofe Popith Arbitrary Court-Contri-
vances, and juftified that juft Defign of ftanding
upon their Guard ; there was no other Way (under
God) to defend what was fo grofly invaded.
Now, though his Lordfhip might {uppofe, by
dealing thus plainly, he fhould the more exafpe-
rite the Court; fo that their Malice would be
more inveterately bent in his Deftruction ; yef 1hat
be declared be FEARED NOT, but was ready
chearfully to lay down bis Life in fo juft a Canfe.
And fheuld this daring true Lover ot his Country
have thus expired, by his State-Martyrdom, he
would have given fuch Satisfa&tion in the Truth
of what he thus couragioufly, with his laft Breath,
fhoild have affirmed, as would have raifed a
general Hatred againit thofe Arbitrary and Popith
Court-Refolutions; and this might fo fuddenly
have given another fo general a Refurreion to
that juit Caufe, as would have totally routed thofe
true and only Enemies of both Church and State.
Our then Enemies, under Colour of Law, were
indultrioufly endeavouring the total Subverfion of
our Laws; and whillt in fbew they feemed to
maintain the Profefiant Church, they were fecretly
contriving its fotal Deffrutlion, by wrefting thofe
very Laws which were chicfly defigned as de-
firuflive to Popery, and making them produc-
dive of what they were enalled to defiroy : For by
a malicious and furious Profecution of all Pro-
teftant Diffenters, they did hopé to raife fo ge-
neral Animolities between the Conforming and
Non-Conforming Proteftants, that they mighe,
through fuch Divifion, have an Opportunity to
fulfll that notorious Jefuitical Maxim, Divide &
Impera. | l |
" The late Earl of Effex had the leaft Reafon
to defpair of the late King's Mercy ; for fhould
his Lordthip have been convifted through Falfe
Evidence, or Corrupt Judgment in the Coure,
by their adjudging that to be Treafon which the
Law never made, or defigned to make fo, (ac
they did in the Cafeof the Right Honourable:
the Lord Ruffel, and fome others;) no Noble-
man in England had better Grounds than his
6 C | Lord-

i
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Lordthip to prefume upon the late King’s Mercy,
feeing his Lordfhip’s Father had facrific’d his Life
in that King’s Sérvice; wherefore his then Ma-
jefty had good Reafon to declare (when His High-
nefs, not many Hours before the Earl’s Death,
faid, the Earl ought to be taken off ) that be was
vefolved to [pare bis Lordfbip for what bis Father

i bad fuffered; (this you find before
,, Hughs and  hy # rwo fworn to be declared by

Gladuwin, g5, Ruddle, who heard it that very
Morning my Lord was murder’d; ) And this
Account of Ruddle feems the more probable by
what his then Majefty is generally faid to have
declar'd {oon after he heard of that deplorable
Accident, (viz.) That be did much wonder bis
Lordfbip fbould murder bimfelf, and not truf to bis
Mercy, [ecing be ow'd bim a Life,

Confidering therefore that his Lordfhip had

fo good Caufe for Hopes of Mercy under the
Frcutc& Danger [even Conviction,] there is the

efs Reafon to believe, THAT HIS LORD-
SHIP HAD RESOLVED T0O DE-
STROY HIMS E L F.—1 find this Objetion
from the Right Honourable the Countefs Dow-
ager of Effex, hath been generally us’d as what
fhould convince every Man that the late Earl did
indecd cut his own Throat,—— But 1 would fain
ask thofe Gentlemen (who immediately run away
with this as what is {ufficient to an{wer whatfo-
ever feems to prove the contrary) Whether it is
within e Power of Belief or Disbelief of a Faél,
either 10 aller the Nalure, or deftroy the Exifience
of @ Fulf., Moft ceriainly none will be fo igno-
rant as to aflert, That any Thing becomes true
by being belicv’d, or falfe by being difcredited,

for then, according to differént Perfuafions, a

T hing would be, and not be at the fame time,
which 13 impoffible.  Wherefore no Man fhould
be smplicitly (way'd by the bare Belief, or Di:be-
lief of another; (without knowing and examin-
irg the Reafons of that Belief, or Disbelief )

for this 1s to act in the Belief of Matters of

Fall, which we jftly condemn in the Church
of Rome m Mattcrs of Faith—— But when the
Truth of a Fact is queftion’d, and Reafons given
pro & con, every Man is naturally fway’d by thofe
Teltimontes which to him feem the ftrongeft for
the Proof, or Difproof of that Faéts and no Mas
(but fuch as are eafily impos’d upon, or are wil-
ling to 1mpofe upon others) will oppofe to fuch
Evidences as naturally proves a Fall, another’s
bare Disbelief of the Faff, But before any un-
prejudic’d Perfon will be influenc’d (by another’s
Disbelief ) againft the Proof of the Faét, he will
know, and well weigh the Grounds of that Dis-
belief, and compare their Strength and natural
Efficacy with that Evidence that feems to prove
the contrary ; and having judicially weigh’d both
in an unprejudic’d Balance, which Side draws
down, MU § 7 paturally draw his Belief; for
no Man can believe what he would, but every
Man MUS T believe according as his Judg-
ment ftands inclin’d to affent upon fuch Evidence
as to. him feems fufficient, — Prejudice, I muft
confefs, naturally indifpofes and corrupts Men on
either Side according as they ftand affeted : For
as fome arve induc’d o A8 SENT upon fuch
Evidence as fsin itfelf INSUFFICIENT,
Jo others many times DISSENT upon fuch
as.is SUFFICIENY. Amonglt the. firft
of thefe (viz.) the CREDULOUS, a Re-
verend B, fome time fince rang’'d me, For the'
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his Lordfhip (herétofore) did charitably excufe
me from any Malice or ill Delign, yet (as I
have been credibly inform’d) he hath been plea-
fed to fay that 1 am of a very fromg Imapina.
tion, and poffeffed with a Fancy that a Thing is,
withont rational Grounds to believe the Thing to be.
But I dare now appeal to his Lordfhip's own
Judgment, whether Credulity is more juftly
chargeable on the Befief of the Self-Murder, o
its comtrary. ‘That is to fay, wnether fuch as be-
lieve the Jate Earl of Effex murder'd himfelf, be-
caufe his Lordfhip, fome Days before his Death,
feveral times declared, a5 for bim-

Jelf he was refolved what todo. *And  * To’an Emi-
becaufe Bomeney pretended (cortrary "¢ Diwine.
to what he twice {wore) that Morning of hijs.
Lordthip’s Death, my Lord was taken with 4 Fie
of a Frenzy; and becaufe Bomeney, Monday, Ruf-
fe! and Lioyd (the three latter being _
three of thofe * in whofe Cuftody ~ Vide before

my Lord was, and who, as Afr, %995
Atsorney 1 his Information againft Mr. Speke,

and myfelfy fets forth, were confequently charged
with my Lord’s Murder) to fave their oun
Lives, with Halters about their Necks, endeaveur
to prove his Lordfhip a Felo de fe by their Relu-
ti'oin, which in every Part is contradi®ory to cach
otaer,

For Bomeney firft © fwore hede-  © Befire 13r
livered my Lord the Razor about 6”””““""- e
Eight of the Clock in the Morning 1%, &2
the very Day of his Death, and "%~
within two Hours d depofed, ¢ He ¢ Vide s Se.
“did deliver this Razor to his @4 Depogtion,
¢ Lordthipabout Eight of the Clock  #%¢ 9°1-
“on Thurfday- Morning, the Daiyv belore hig
¢ Death, But Ruffel depoied, * That .
¢ he faw this Razor delivered by gy, $.901.
¢ Bomeney about Eight or N e of
“ the Clock on Fricgy-Morning (beir g the Day
“ my Lord dy’d) and did ever declare, and tilf
¢ afferts chat this Razor was deliversd 4 FTE R
¢ Monday the Warder had lett iny Lora’s Cham-
¢ ber-Door, and that it was deli- | R's Dosnse:
“vered f within lefs than balf an P:'gf ggﬁ"

“ Honr of the time they found his ¥\ pte.
“ Lordfhip dead in the Clcft;’ church and
both which & Monday (if Contradic- é‘:'gﬂ'": P¢

tions can) confirmed by declaring
that this Razor my Lord had, and pared his
Nails with .  When his Lorcthip’s Chamber-
Door was fi+# opened that Morning (viz.) about
Seven of the Clock, about two Hours BE FORE

Ruffel came up Stairsto ftand Warder

at the Door ;3 Bomeuey firft b {wore : EB":‘; Dzp.
that he firf} opened the Door upon 4 igB:?m.' Dep.

my Lord’s Body; in his i fecond  page gor.
Information depofed, ¢ That.he
“ did .not, bur (feeing Blood, and Part of the
¢ Razor through the Chink) he call’d Rujfe! the.
© Warder, and Ruffel pufi’d the Door open 3° and
in his third QOath declared, ¢ He knew not
‘¢ who open’d the Door” Auffd ,
% depos’d btfore the Coronery¢ That % 90!
“ he firlt open’d the Clofee-Door, the Key being
¢ on:the Outfide (and he mentions no Difficulry
“ Inthe.doing it,) but Aordaytde- , ..
“ clared, The Day my Lord dy’d.  church's zoe
(and afterwardsconfirm’d the fame)  page 918,
‘mThat my Lord’s Body lay fo ™ Jord Zf°
¢ clofe againtt the Door, fbar wej- F&¥915:
S ther Bomeney oy Ruflel conld fiiy the Door 3 ‘bur
‘ he
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“he being much ftronger than either, thrufting
¢ with all his might, broke it open.’

Thefe Mens Depofitions and Relations THU S
AGREEING in every Part in Proof of the
Self-Murder, can’t but fatisfy all Men (except fuch
as are, like my [Elf, of fvong Imaginations, and o0
eafily inclined creduloufly to believe the contrary.)

And whereas Bomeney, donday and

n Bom. Dep. Ruffel have o depofed, or often de-
p- 899- . clared, ¢ That the Razor was lock’d
Bom.Def- 9% ¢ inio the Clofer with the Body,

o Mond. and ¢ and ° no Razor thrown out of my
Rufl. intheir ¢ Lord’s Chamber-Window before
Examinaticr ¢ his Death was difcovered, m—
bifore the Lordie 150y nroved (1 do humbly con-

p Vide Page | P _ : Y
g22. ceive, to the fatisfaltion of more

than the Credulous) that there was

a-bloody Razor thrown out of my Lord’s Cham-
ber-Window (which is abour fixteen Foot from
" the Clofet where the Body lay) and the Maid who
carried up this Razor, firft difcovered my Lord’s
Death to thofe out of the Houfe (wherefore the
Razor was afterwards laid by the Body for to co-
lour the (pretended) Self-Murder) and when my
Lord’s Body was feen in the very Pofture n
which the Warders pretended 1t was firft found,
| his Lordfhip's Legs 9 lay part

q}{ﬁ‘f ”"‘;“‘jd outfide the Clofet-Door (and there-
Pect, 8320933 fore the Door could not be lock*d)
and upon his Stocking the Print of a bloody Foot
coming out of the Clofet; wherefore fomebody
before that, and after my Lord was dead, had
come out of the Clofet.

Is there not rational Grounds from the many
Contradictions before obferved, for any Man
(though not poflefled with Prejudice againft the
Self-vViurder) to believe that there was no Razor
delivered to my Lord juft before his Death, nor
the Clofet-Door lock’d upon the Body, or the
Razor firft found lying by the Body (as thefe
have {worn, whofe Intereft and Lives depend up-
on the Proof of the Self-Murder) and confequently
their Relation a Forgery throughout, by which they
wonld prove bis Lordfbip Felo de fe.

Bur farther, to excule from Partislity fuch as
disbelieve the Self-Murder upon the Evidence be-
fore oblerved in all Parts contradiftory; and
from Credulity, becaufe they are perfuaded that
his Lord(hip fell by Treachery and Violence, fee-

ing they find it f{worn to this ef-

*DS.p.91 £k (wiz.) That about nine Days

before my Lord’s Death, the Papilts declared,
That becaufe the Earl of £ffex knew fo much of
their Deligns, and was {o very averfe to their In-
tereft, he was tobetaken off; and that his HIGH-
NESSHADCONCLUDEDANDORDER’D
HISTHROAT TOBE CUT, and had promis’d
to be there when it was done; and abour three
Days after thefe Men faid that it was refolved the
Barl’s Throat fhould be cut, but they would give
it out he had done it himfelf ; and if any fhould
deny 1it, they would take them up and punith
them for 1t 3 and the very Day it was done, after
my Lord’s Murder, they feemed extremely over-
joy’d,and confefled, THEY HAD DONE THE
FEAT, AND COULD BUT LAUGH TO
THINKHOW LIKE A FOOL THE EARL
OF ESSEXLOOK’'D WHEN THEY CAME
TO CUT HIS THROAT ; and that this is not
a new-made Story, bur long fince revealed to

many who did caution this Deponent to Secrecy,
You, IIJ.
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v Mr. Rowden,

Mrs, RﬂWdEn',' ©

appears by the Teftimony
of ¢ fix or feven Witneffes; o™ Mary Rowden,
and for a farther Confirma~ 77, adams,

tion of the Truth of that az. Adams,
Confult, =three Depofitions Mr. May, and
which were made to deftroy IT““Z":)"

the Credit of that Deponent, f'i%,.if Ul ewit's

are detefted, and (by ¥ many Chrifiopher’s, and
Witneffes) proved falfe in Mr. Swan’s, p- 912
every Part; but as farther %2{1;;:;; llj';ﬂﬁ;;;w,
rational Grounds (and not gong o4 . Wellteads
Strength of Imagination ) 5 912, g13.

for this barbarous Murder, = r. Hubland,

z Bight Witneffes have pro- %’; " Ir?aﬁ:?'t}:rehem,
ved, That before the Earl’s yi, savage, and 3.
Death, or before his Death Butteo Maynoe, aw:4 at-
could be known, was it re- #f ibe fame, p.913,914-
ported in many Parts of £ngland, that the Earl
of Effex had cut his Throat in the Zower 5 all
thele feveral previous Reports agreed in the
manner how, (wiz.) cutting his Throat; and
place where, (wiz.) the Zower; (though at
fome of thofe Places when fo reported, it could
not be known that the Earl of Effex was a
Prifoner in the Tower) and one of thefe previ-
ous Reports, the next Day aiter my Lord’s
Commitment, (viz.) the /ednefday, pretended
to give the Reafon wherefore the Farl cut his
Thioat (that is to fay) becaule the King and
Duke being in the 7ower, he was afrad his
(then) Majefty would have come up into his
Chamber, and feen him; but his Guilt and
Shame was fuch, as he could not bear the Thought
of it, and therefore cut his Throat to avoid
it: This being faid abour 6o Miles off, two
Days before the King and Duke went to the
Tower, and the very nest Day after my Lord’s
Commitment ; wherefore many that are not of
too ftrong an Imagination creduloufly to belicve
without Grounds from thofe very particular pre-
vious Reports, as to Manner, Place, and pre-
tended Reafon, are apt to think that the MAN-
NER HOW, THE PLACE WHERE, AND
PRETENDED REASON (to be given out)
WHEREFORE, were all previoufly agreed
upon fome Days before my Lord’s Death ; for
they cannot perceive how my Lord’s Death,
in all its Parts (as it was afterwards pretended
to be atted) could be fo particularly related
in fo many, and far diftant Places from ecach
other.

And though thofe who had

my Lord in * clofe Cuftody, to * Benday and Ruffel

excufe themfelves from a bar- i“]g””'” before the

barous and blondy Treachery,

did declare, That no Men were let into my Lord

that Morning he died ; yet many rational Men,

not creduloully inclined to believe without Caufe,

are verily perfuaded to the

contrary, becaufe it is @ pro- 7/ady

ved, That two Soldiers, Bempronandhis Wife,

P 015

(who have been prevented

from giving their own Relation) the Day of my

Lord’s Death declared, That they faw his HIGH-

NESS fend two Men to the Earl’s Ledgings to

murder the Earl, and that his HIGHNESS

did fend two Men towards the Earl's Lodg-

ings juft before his Death, and that thefe two

Men foon after returned, and faid, Zhe Bufi-

nefs was dome, appears by

the b Teltimony of him ® Mr. Efington, p. 916,
6 C 2 whe

2 Hﬂgéfj ﬂﬂd Gﬁ?d{':!'fn,
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who faw His HIGHNESS fend thofe Men, and
their Return to His HIGHNESS :
b Liyd’s Con-  And it’s farther b proved, That
fefion, Mr.  the Sentinel who kept my Lord’s
Story, Mr. Tem- _ .
gl 3. 914, ourward Door, conteficd, by ipe-
cial Order he let 1n two or three to
my Lord, (of which Z27ebfier was one, who
that Night produced my Lord’s bloody Pocket-
Handkerchief, and the nexe Day a Purfe of Gold
of 49 Guineas and a Piftole; tho’ he was very
poor before) juft before his Death ; and that up-
on thole Mens going 1nto my Lord’s Chamber,
there was fo great a trampling and buftling, that
the S=ntinel would have forced in after them, but
could not, becaule the firlt Door was made faft;
and that wupon the Buftle, be beard fumewbat
thicwa dows like the Fall of a Man, which be did
belicve 1o be sy Lord’s Body 5 loon after which, it
was pretended my Lord cut his Throat: And
Jor what thofc Men were thus buftling, appears
by the Adurder which was feveral times very joud
and very dolefully cried out during this Buftle ;
and this heard by © one who faw
this Buftling, and foon after re-
vealed e, but was cauttoned to Se-
crecy for her Safety, by ¢ him
who in this refpect upon QOath hath
confirmed the fame : And that his Lordfhip
made ufe ot his Hand to prevent, as well as his
Tongue to difcover that Villany, which he faw
defigned his Deftruttion, is verily believed by
thofe who find 1t proved, That there were feve-
ral Cuts in my Lord’s Right-hand,
© Mr. Seullig- (wiz.) ¢ One upon his Fore-finger,
{?}‘f; f 92:-  near the Top; another onthe fame
Pt % Finger next the Hand ; f One up-
= Mr. Skerevgzd 0N the Fourth-Finger, another on
the Surgeen,  the Little-Finger, and a fifth 8 a-
T Sabugon bout two Inches long in the Palm
who finpe the . Of his Hand.  And lelt my Lord's
Bedy, confiflel Cravat, which was ® cut 1n three
tl:is Pieces, and the Print of a bloody
Juirzrand To- Foo upon my Lord’s Leg, as be-
fore obferved, (with other Circum-
ftances, which might have been
difcovered, had the Jury {een tae
Body in 1s firft Pofture, and the
Clothes 11 which his Lordfhip died) might have
occaflioned a Difcovery, [peedy Care was taken
that the Body thould bz 1 ftript
- This is fworn (though His then Majelty had ¥
vy the Corower, - ordered all Things to remain il
Toe 9T the Coroner’s Jury faw the Body)

« Alrs, Faf:
cor:h, p. Q14
dnli. Pernins,

915.

T 01T

wuld Alier Carter
{.’L’.‘CILIEJ SRL
fame,

jury :
* I Hiweard, and the Clothes carried away, and
Eiy; the Room and Clofet wafhed, be-

fore the Jury fat upon the Body.
And when k one or the Jury de-
fired to fee the Clothes in which my
Lord died, the Coroner hereupon was imnediate-
ly call'd into the next Rcom, and returning in
fome Heat, told the Jury, it was the Body, and
not the Clothes they were to fit upon ; the Body
was there, and that was {ufficient; and when it
| Mr. Fper, Was perceived that I fome of the
P 924, Jury were doubtful of my Lord’s
Scif-Murder, becavfe his Lordthip was (very
defervedly) efteemed a very good Man, and
therefore not to be thought Felo de fe: Major
Hazwwley, to remove this Obje€tion, and to corrupt
the Jury with a Lye, tells them to this eficct,
(viz.) That wholoever did believe Self-Murder

unlike my Lord of £ffax, did not know his Lord-

k Nir. Fifber,
f.523.
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thip, for every Man that was well acquainted with
the Earl, knew that it was a fixt Principle inais
Lordfhip, that any Man might cut his Throat,
or otherwifc difpofe of his Life, to avoid a dil-
honourable and infamous Death ; and therefors
this Action was according to the Lord of Z/ex*s
avowed Principles.———— But when Major Ausge-
ley was charged (before the Lords) with this
Suggeftion, he did utterly deny i1t, and profefied
that he never heard 1t faid-to be my Lord’s Prin-
ciple, tll their Lordfhips charged him with hav-
ing fuggefted 1, and therefore he could not fug-
oeft 1t: Befides, he was not nigh the Jury ac
the Victualling-houfe any time whillt they were
there upon their Inquifition: But the Major had
aiven them another reafon not to forget his being
then there 5 for (it 1s proved by onc. and ready
to be proved by many then prefent) thar feme
of the Jury were for adjourning their [nqui-
fitton, and immediately to give notice 0 my
Lord’s Relations, fo that it any thing could
be proved on my Lord’s behalf, it might be
heard : This Major Hewley fleps in and pre-
vents 1, by protefting m that his
(then) Majelty had fent an Ex-
prefs for their Inquificion 5 ard his Majelty
had declared, That he would net rie ircm
Council till it was brought, and therefore they
could not adjourn, but mult immediately dif-
patch, -—— In anfwer to this, the Major protelts
that he was not near the Jury at that Houfe, and
fo did not, or could haften them. Bu: the Ma-
jor was fo well known to the Coroner, Surgeons,
ard Jury, that it 1s highly imprebable all {hould
be miftaken.

The timing my Lord’s Death, and the {peedy
hurrying it away to the O/d-Bailey, and the im-
mediate ufe that was made thercof asan Evidence
from Heaven of his Lordfhip’s Guilt, and of the
Truth of the Charge againft the Right Honou-
rable the Lord Ruffc/, then upon his Trial, and
the corrupt Irfluence it had upon the Court,
Couafel and Jury, (fo that they did at one flroke
virtually deftroy two of as grear Patriots as this
Age or Nation cver knew, and of whom we
were 130 Jonger worthy ;) This might be uled by
Imparnality it felf as a probable Evidence of this
treacherous Cruelty.

The vnjult Methods and Violence ufed to pro-
vent any learch after, or difcovery of this unfor-
tunate Lord’s Death, are farther rational Induce-
ments for fober Men to believe this Murder,
when they find that o I was com-
mitted as foon as I came to Huite-
hail with the Perfons to be {worn with relation to
my Lord’s Death, and this before ecither my
{elf, or any Perion had been examined, and con-
fequently before any thing criminal could appear
again{t me : And afterwards Mr. Speke and my
felf profecuted, and reprefented (efpecially my
felt) as the worft of Criminals, tho’ nothing
like a Crime was proved againft me, admitting,
for true, every thing {worn at my
o Trial, where thofe in whofe Cu-
ftody my Lord was, P and confe-
quently whom we would have ac-
culed of my Lord’s Murder, were
called a CLOUD of Witacfles to prove the
Self-Murder.

The Profecution of 9 one of the
Coroner’s  Jury, for decliing, 927 Colfon,
That he believed they, (wiz.) £+ 920
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the Jurv were all infatnated to find his Lordfhip
Felo de 725 but he did fuppofe, had they not been
hurried, they might have found it otherwife, is
another Inftance of the Severity of the Govern-
ment, with relation hereunto ;5 and the cruel Ufage

of an t old Soldier, in feeding him
rAb Jordeny,  yyith Bread and Water in the Hole,
P2g£ 920 and afterwards caufing him to re-
ceive Fifty-three Stripes with great Force (tho’
the ufual Number was but Twelve,) and then
telling him, He ought to be Hanged for faying
what he did, and fo difcarded him; and all this,
only for declaring (when prefied to give his
Opinion with relation to my Lord’s Death,)
Whether he did believe his Lordfhip cut his own.
Throat? Declared, That be weuld not foy be did
believe it.  But greater Cruelues than thefe, fome
bloody Men may be fuppofed to have ufed to
prevent 2 Diftovery of my Lord’s Murder; for

Nir. Hawley, who CANLSY THAT
T KNEW NOTHING IFITH
RELATION TO MY LORD'S DEATH
and his lov freely tmparting bis owin Knowledge in
the Matter, is thousht to bave caufed bim (not to
run away, but) 1o be murder'd.

And honelt Robert Meake * pro-
tefted the very Day he was mur-
der’d, that he did fear that fame
Day he fhould be murder’d for
what he knew, and had declar’d concerning my
Lord’s Murder; and the very next Morning was
found dead in the Tower-Ditch,

And whether poor Ruddle was fhot to Death
in the [udies, (where I’ve heard he {fody’d) for
his knowing and revealing what he knew of this
Murder, Time may difcover.

To proceed no farther,

Now whether that CLOUD of (Three or

3 Vid. p. 920

¢ Bampton and
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charged with treacheroufly confenting to my

Lord’s Murder, with Halters about their Necks;

by Contradiftions endeavouring to prove the
Self-Murder, —— or that GR EAT CLOUD
of (upwards of Sixty) Witnefles (for more have
been, and will be examin’d with relation to my
Lord’s Murder) which fwear not for their own
Lives, but ftand refti in Curia, being Perfons un-
prejudic’d, deferve the moft Credit —— mult be
lefr, firft,. to the Right Honourable the Lords;
before whom this Caufe will (in convenient Time)
be reviv’d ; and afterwards to fuch other Judica-
tures before which this Matter may hereafter be
brought ; tili when it is not proper to publifh
what might be farther faid. — But I do
humbly concetve I have herein already furnith’d
you with fuffictient Grounds to fatisfy fome (who
have been deceiv’d by Mifinformation) that there
are more Arguments than they could have ex-
peéted, to clear his Lordfhip’s Innocence, and
lefs Reafon for them to believe, that § have us’d
fuch villainons Practices as my greateft Enemies
have fuggefted, or (as fome of my pretended
Friends would infinvare) am poflefs’d with fuch
heat of Imagination, as creduloufly to believe a
thing to be without rational Grounds to convince
me that 1t 1s.

Sir, As you already have, fo I doubt not but
you will (as becomes a Eriend ) endeavour to
refcue me from the Slanders of fuch as have un-
juftly accus’d me; and likewife from thofe Re-
proaches which have been uncharitably taken up

againit,

S I R,

April 135,

Yeur bighly obliged, and ever
1690,

fauhful Friend and Servant,

. Four ) » Witnefles, in whofe Cuftody L. B
u Pace p. §20. d avoid beino
$#-3% my Lord was, to avoid being
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CXXV. The Frial of S SAMUEL BARNARDISTON,
Bar. ¢r Nil1 Prius g the Guildhall of London, for 4
Mildemeanour, Feb. 14, 1683. 36 Car 1L

LE MY HERE being in Hillary-Term lait,

JI T1 - . -
@'\;JH G an Information in the Court of

i?;é T %,/—J] (ing's- Bench preferred by His Ma-

lEmdey 1elty’s Attorney-General again{t Sir
%%’Eé?{:ﬁg JSa;;};He[ Bdrfzm:'i'ﬁ/?a}z, for a t?ery great
Mifdemeanour: Upon QOach made, that he was fo
extremely indifpofed, that he could not appear in
Perfon without danger of his Life; The Court
were pleafed to refpite his Recognizance, (which
he by Order of the Lords of his Majefty’s moft
Honourable Privy-Council, entered into the laft
Vacation, to appear in Court the Firlt Day of
this Term) and to allow him the Liberty of
Pleading to the Information by Attorney, which
he did. And Tharfday the 14th of February
1682, being the Seflion of Nifi Prius, after the
Term holden for the City of Londox, and County
of the fame, was appointed for the I'rial of this
Caufe, and accordingly then the fame came on,

and was tried before the Right Honourable Sir
George Fefferies, Knight and Baroner, Lord Chief
Juftice of his Majelty's Court of King’s-Bench,
in this manner.

Clerk. Call away, Crics,

Crier. You good Men of Nifi Prius, fummon-
ed to appear here this Day between our Sovereign
Lord the King, and Sir Samuel Baruardifion,
Baronet, anfwer to your Names, and fave your
IfTues.

Cl. Thomas Vernon and his Fellows. Zous avez
plein Ingueft.  Call the Defendant Sir Samuef
Barnavdiflon.

Crier. Sir Samuel Barunardiflon, come forth,
or this Inqueft thall be taken by your Default,

My, Willhams. He appears.

Cl. Gardez voflres Challenges.
Vernon.

Cr. You fhall well and truly try this Iflue,
between

Swear Thomas
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between our Sovereign Lord the King, and Sir
Samuel Barnardiffon according to your Evidence.
So help you, Gonp.

- C. Percival Gilburn. Who was fivorn, and
fo the reft.

The Names of the Twelve were thefe.
Thomas Verion, ] " Samuel Newton,
Percival Gilbura, ' George Torriano,
Edward Bovery,  Tur? : Kenelm Smith,
William Witbers, Sen. Jur % Thomas Goddard,
Fames 27004, l Thomas Amy, and
Robert Maflers, | Richard Blackburn.

Then they were counted, and Proclamation
made for Information, in ufual manner.

My, Poultney. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury ; this Caufe is between
the King and Sir Samuel Barnardiffon, and it is
upon an Information exhibited by M. Atrerney-
General, wherein he fets forth, That there having
been lately a horrid Plot difcovered (as appears
bv the Convictions of thofe that have {uffered juftly
for it, and by the Evidence that has been given of
it, has been made fo apparent, that I do not que-
ftion, but that no Man, but who cither has a
IHand m 1t, or elfe bears a good Will to it, doth
at all fcruple the belicef of it,) Sir Samuel Bay-
nardifion, the Defendant, intending to fcandalize
and vility the Evidence, wrote a Letter, wherein
are contained thefe Sentences.

The Return of the Duke of Mlonmouth fo W hite-
hall, and bis being received ndo extracrdinary Fa-
vour of His Majefty, bath made a flrange dlteration
of Affairs at Court : For thofe that before fpake of
Lim very indecently, new court, cringey and creep 1o
bim. His Grace complained o the King of the fcan-
dalous Niifreprefentation that was made of bim in the
NMoncay’s Gazette, upon which the Gazetteer was
called to Acconnt for it, who alledged for himfelf,
That i Perfon of great Quality fent bim in Writing
the IV ds therein recited, commanding bim to put
them in the Guzette,  Yefterday being the lafl Day
of the Terim, all the Prifoners that awere in the Tower
s70 ke Lot § cam Proteltant Plot, were difcharged
yeen La, Mr. Braddon, who profecied the Mur-
der of the Larl of Eflex, the Information put in
againft Lins 1n the King’s-Berch by Nir. Attorney,
fer a pretinded Subcrnation, &c. was nct profecuted,
and bis Bail wa dijcharged.  4nd 1he pafling Sen-
tence upon the ddutbor ¢f Julian the Apoftate, and
the Prmter of the late Lord Rullel's Speech, was
paffed cucr in Silence. Great Applications are mads
1o His Majefly for the pardening Mr. Sidney in the
Tower, which is believed will be attaired, and that
be will be banifbed. The Lord Howard appears
defpicable in the Eyes of all Meny be is under Guard
at Whitchally, and *tis believed be will be fent 10 the
Tower, for that the Duke of Monmouth wif] ac-
ciife bim concerning the Teflimony be hatb given, and
the Papifts and High Tories are quite down in the
Mouth, their Pride is abated, themfelves and their
Plot confounded, but their Malice is not affwwaged,
*Tis generally faid, the Earl of Effex was murdered.
The brave Lord Ruflel s afrefb lamented.  The
Plot is loff here, except you in the Country can find
it out amongft the Addreffers and Abborrers. This
fudden Turn is an Amazement to all Men, and muft
produce fome flrange Events, which a little Time will

[fhew.
And then he goes on further, and fays in ano-
ther Letter thefe Words,

thing in the whole,
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I am to anfwer yours of the 2th and 29th paft,
and truly I cannot but with great Sorrow lament the
Lofs of our good Friend honeft Mr. John Wrigh,
but with Patieiice we muft fubmit to the Almighty,
who can as well raife up Infiruments to do bis Work,
as change Hearts, of which we have fo great an I

flance in the Bufinefs of the Duke of Monmouth,

that no Age or Hifiery can parallel. I am neww
throughly fatisfied, that what was pristed~in the
Monday’s Gazette 75 utterly falfe, and you will foe
it publickly declared fo fhortly.  The King is never
pleafed but when be is with bim, bath command:d
all the Privy-Conncil to wait upon bin, and happy
15 be that bath moft of bis Favour, His Pardon was

Jealed and deliveyed to bim lafp Wednefday, *7is
faid, he will be reflored to be Mafler of 1h: Forfe,

and be called into the Coungil-Table, and to all bis
otber Places, and ’tis reperted Le will be made Cap-
tain-General of all the Forces, and Lord High- Ad-
miral, &c.  He treats all bis cld Friends that duily
vifit bim with great Civilities, they are all [atisfied
with bis Integrity 5 and if God [pares bis Life, I
doubt not but be will be an Inflrument of much Good
to the King and Kingdem. He faid pablickly, That
be kinew my Lord Ruflel was as Loyal a Suljedt as
aiy 1n Bogland, and that His Majefty believed the

Jame now. I intend fbortly to wast on bim myfelf.

1t wonld make you langh to fee bow firangely onr
High Tories and Clergy are mortified, their Coun-
senances fpeak if.  Were my Sheforary to be moved

Jor s, # wonld be readily granted,  Sir George

s grown very bumble.  *Tis faid Mr. Sidney is re-

prieved for Forty Days, which bedes well,

And then, Gentlemen, he goes on further,
and in a third Lecter fays, . *
The late Change here in Publick Affairs is fo great
and flrange, that we are like Men in a Dream, can
bardly believe what <ce fee, and fear we ave not f1 for

Jo great a Mevcy as the prefent Junflure foems to pre-

mife.  The Sham Proteflant- Plet is grite Ieff and
coifounded.  1hs Earl of Mackensheld is brinving
Attions of Scancahs “Viagnatum againft all the Grard
Jury-Men that indicted bim at I.f} 2iffizes.

L. C. 7* Thatisthe only true  *Sir Geerge
Teeries.

LVir. Poultney reads.] ——— Aud the feveral
Gentlemen that were indifted in Chefhire and Nor-

thamptonthire will bring their feveral Aions at

Law againfl them.

And, Gentlemen, then 1n a fourth Letter are
contained thefe Expreflions. |

Contrary to all Men's Expellations, a Harrvant
is Signed at laft for Bebeading Col. Sidney at Tower-
Hill next Friday., Great Endeavours have been
ufed to obtain bis Pardony but the contrary Party
bave carried it, which much dafbeth our Hopes, but
God fill governs.

Gentlemen, All this the Information fays, he
has done againft the Peace of the XKing, his
Crown and Dignity. To this he has pleaded
Not Guilty.  We will call our Witnefies, and
if we prove it, we queftion not but you will find
him Guilry.

Mr. Recorder *. May it pleafe
your Lordfhip, and you Gentle-
men of the Jury; | am of Counfel
for the King in this Caufe. Upon the opening
of thefe Letters to you, you cannot but wonder

much

* Sir Tha-
pmas Jenner.

g
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much more than he dots that wrote them, His
Matter of Wonder was one Way, and I fuppole
your Matter of Wonder is another Way, that a
Man, fuch an one as he is, fhould have that Con-
fidence to write fuch Letters as thefe are.  Gentle-
men, 1 do not doubt but you obferve in the
Series of thefe Lerters how he hath travelled
through all the Tranfations of this horri_d Con-
{piracy, that was of late contrived again{t the
iife of the King, and the Life of his Royal
Highnefs, and for the Deftruétion of the Govérn-
ment ; and how he does endeavour to turn it all
:oto Ridicule, and to magnify the Men that have
come to Publick Juftice for being concerned 1
that horrid Confpiracy, as being very brave Men.
The brave Lord Ruffel he is lamented as a brave
Man loft ; The Eurl of Effex he forfooth was mur-
dered, and Mr. Braddon, who profecuted that
Murder, he is a brave Man, whom [ fuppofe fomé
of you have heard of, and what is becomeof him,
Low he is conviéted of one of the moft notorious
Faéks that ever was aced by Man in any Civil
Government, which was that Bradden fhould go
up and down to get Witneffts to make it appear
vo the World, as tho’ fome body had murdered
that Earl. Thus you fee he goes through the
Confpiracy from one thing to another, and calls it
~ Sham Proteftant-Plor, and all to ridicule the Dif-
covery, which by thefe very Letters you may eafi-
ly be fatisfied of the Reality and Extent of.  You
fee how he magnifies his Faulian, but he likewife is
come to condign Punifhment for that moft perni-
cious and fcandalous Libel.  In the next place he
comes to the Duke of Monsmonth, and tells you
what a brave Man they have in him to be their
Captain-General, and he did not doubt but to fce
him come to it and fets forth, that he hasdenied
all the Plot, and how he doth perfift 12 that De-
nial. And this Gentleman has raifed his Confi-
dence in thefe Letters to that Degree, that I think
any Man, that has lived any time in this Nation,
cannot but wonder, that ever there fhould bé fuch
an impudent Ation committed in it. Gentle-
men, We fhall call our Witnefles and prove it
pofitively upon him, that thefe Letters he did
write, and then I fuppofe he will give an account
how he came to write them.

M. Herbert. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, Ihave butoneWord
which I defire to obferve 3 for the opening of the
Cafe, and a right Underftanding of the Matter
will have a great Influence upon the Proofs. And
I thall not infift upon any thing that has been o-
pened at large out of the Letters, but oné thing [
would obferve to you, and that is out of the laft
Letter, Great Endeavours bave been ufed to obtais
bis Pardon, but the contrary Party bave carried i,
which much dafbeth our Hopes, So it feems by
this that the Faftion, the Party, have their Hopes
ftill, and it feems likewife the Writer of thefe
Letters hatha very great Sharein them, We have,
Gentlemen, nothing to do heré before you, but to
prove that Sir § amtiel Barnardiflon wasthe Author,
‘Writer and Publither of the Letters, which con-
tain that which is charged in the Information, and
that we queftion not but fo prove clearly without
contradition,  Call Mr. Blathwaite. [ ko was
fworn.) Pray give in the Letters. [ 77bichas done.

M. Recorder, Pray, Sir, look upon thofe Let-
ters, and give the Court and the Jury an account
where you had them.

My, Blathwaite. Gentlemen of the Jury, Thefe
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thtee Lettets Sit Sdnmuel B:@rﬂardfﬁan upon the
10th of Deiember, before the King and the Lords
of the Council, did own to be of his Hand-wri-
ting. 1 matked them at that inftant of time, and
[ am well affured they are the Letters he owned to
be of his Hand-writing,.

M. Williams. Did he own them to bé of his
Hand-wiiting

Mr. Blathwaite, Yes,

L.C.¥. * Did he own them
all three?

Mr. Blatbwaite, Yes, my Lord, he did.

g‘lfr. Williams. Pray, Sir, who are they diréted
tof

L. C. 7. Mr. Williams, He is informed dgaintt
for writing, not for fuperfcribing.

My, Williams. My Lord, I ask thar Queftion
for this reafon, He is indicted for writing and
publifhing; therefore | would know who they are
dire@ted to. Did he fay they were publithed by
him, or fent to any one #

My. Blathwaite. He did not deny but that he
had publithed and fent them.

My, Williams., Did he confefs it ?

My. Blatbwaite. He did not deny it.

L. C. 7. 1 fuppofe they on the other fide will
give an Account where they were taken.

Mr, Herbert. Yes, my Lord. Swear Mr., #-
terbury. [ Which was done.

Mr. Recorder. Heark you, Mr, Alteibury, Do
you know any thing of thefe Lerters ?
 Mr. Aterbury. 1f you pleafe to let fe fee them,;
Sir.

Mpr: Recorder. Shew him them.

Which was done, and be looked npost them,
~ and gave them in again.

M. Herbert, Did you hear Sir Samuel Barnai-
difton own them to be his Letters ?

M. Atterbury. My Lord, and yoli Gentlemen
of the Jury, 1had a Warrant from Mr. Secrefary
Fenkyns, about two Months, or ten Weeks ago; to
apprehend Siv Samuel Barnardiffon, and I did,
according to Order, by Virtue of that Wirrant;
apprehend him, dnd carfy him before his Majefty.
When he was there, thofe three Letters I Had juft
now in my Hand, were then fhewn to Sir Samitel
Baruardifton. 1 marked them; and know themto
be the fame 3 Sir Samuel Barnardifton did own he
wrote them Leetters all three.

L.C.F. Were the Superfcriptions upon them
all, asthey are now !

My, Atterbury. Yes, they wereall asthey are now.

L.C. ¥ What fay you, Mr; Blathwaite?

Mer. Blathwaite. Yes, they weré jult fo,; the
fame Super{criptions.

Mr. Atterbury. His Majefty asked himy Wha
fubfcribed them ?

L. C. ¥. Superfcribed them, thou meaneft; they
are not fublcribed.

Mr. dAtterbury. Yes, my Lord, fuperfcribed
them ; and he looked on them again, and faid,
They were fuperfcribed by oneof his Servants, and
{o ordered to be carried to the Poft- Houfe?

Mr. Recorder. W here 18 Nebemiah Ofland ¢

Yuryman. My Lord, We would ask the Wit~
nefs; Whether he did own that he fent cheni to
the Poft- Houfe.

L. C. 7. He fays, he ordered his Man to fuper-
{eribe them, and fo to carry them to the Poft-Houfé;

My, Willianis. Look you, Mr. Aiterbury, Did
he fay he direfted any of his Servants to carry
chem to the Poft-Houle, upon your Oath?

Mr.

* Sir George

j’fﬁrfér.
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My, iterbury. 1 am upon my Qath, Sir; 1
fay, thac he did fay, thar they were fuperfcribed
by fome of his Servants, he could not fay which
of his Servants it was, and then they were fent to
the Poft-Houlfe. |

Mr. Williams. Pray, Sir, mind, and anfwer
my Queftion, Did he fay, he direéted any of his
Servants to carry them to the Polt-FHoufe?

L.C. ¥. Did he take any notice to you, or did
you underftand by him, that they were fent to the
Poft-Houfe by his Confent ? |

Mr. diterbury. Yes, my Lord, 1 did under-
ftand him fo. o

L.C. ¥. Did he write thefe Letters to keep

them in his Pocket, do you think, Mr. 2Zilliams 2

Mr. ¥ lliams. [do not know what he defign’d
them for, my Lord; nor do I yet know till they
are read, what is in them : But [ ask him this Que-
ftion, Did he fay he fent them to the Poft-Houfe ?

Mr. dtserbary, With your Leave, I remember
one thing more, my Lord; while be was in my
Houfe, (for there he was in Cuftody two Days or
more) talking about thefe Letters, fays he, I won-
der how they were taken, they were fent to Sir

Skirpon, or fome fuch Name he named.
M. Recerder. Swear Nebemiah Ofland.

[ Which was done.
My, Herbert, Look upon thofe Letters, Sir.
Shew him them. [ Bhich was done.

L. C. 7. Isthis Man’s Name Offand ¢

My. Recerder. Yes, Nebemiab Ofland, Do you
know any thing of thole Superfcriptions?

Offar:l. Two of thofe Superfcriptions I writ
by his O:der as his Servant.

Mr. &ecorder. Which are thofe two : Then he
gave them into the Court.

L.C.7. Can you el whofe Hand is the other
Part ¢

Ofl:nd. 1did not fee it writy but the Hand is
fom.what like Sir Samuel Barnardiflon’s Hand.

L. C.¥. Youbelieve it to be his Hand ? |

Offsnd. Yes, 1 do.

Asr. Wiliiams. Did you ever fee the Infide of
thofe Letters that you fay you fuperlcribed ?

Offand. No, | never faw the Infide,

L. C.¥. What Directions had you about them,
after you had fuperfcribed them ?

Ofland. t had no Direttion, but to leave them
where T ufed to leave his Letters, and that was in
a Window that Sir Samuel Barnardifton always left
his Letters in, and from thence one of the Boys
ufed to carry them to the Poft-Houfe,

Mr, Williams. Sir, Did Sir Samuel order you
to fuperfcribe thofe three Letters, and fend them
to the Poft-Houfe ?

L C. 7. He faid he {uperfcribed them by his
Command, and left them in the Place that Let-
ters ufed to be laid that were to go to the Poft-
Houle.

Mr. Recorder, Pray, Sir, Look upon thofe
Letters again.

L: C. 7. Whofe Hand 1s the Superfcription 2
Is that Sir Samnels too ¢

Offand. 1 believe it Sir Samuel’s Hand.

L. C. . Shew that other Letter to Mr. Blaith-
waite : What fay you to ir, Sir ?

Mr, Blaithwaite. Gentlemen of the Jury : This
is another Lerter that was feized and brought be-
fore the King and the Lords of the Council, and
this Letter was afterwards owned by Ofland, to be
writ by him by Sir Samuel Barnardiften’s Order ?

L. C. 7. Did:Sir Samuél own this Letter to be
his Hand-writing too ?

Mr. Blaithwaite. No, he did not, but Ofand
did own it. .

My. Recorder. My Lord, We prove it other-
wife to be Sir Samuel’s Letter, becaufe it 1s not his
Hand, but his Man’s. You Qfland, Do you krow
who writ that Letter ?

Offand. I writ it.

My, Recorder. By whofe Order ?

Ofland. I tranfcribed 1t out of a Copy given me
by Sir Samuel Barnardifton, as 1 was his Servant.

L. C. 7. And did you write the Superfcription
too ? -

Ofland, Yes, I writ the Superfcription.

- L. C. 7. Inorder towhat? To go down into
the Country too?

Ofland. In order to go where it was direéted,
my Lord.

L. C. 7. Where was that?

Ofland. Into Suffolk, to Sir Philip Skippon, .

L. C. F. This Letter was written at Loidun,
was it not ¢ |

Ofland. 1nBifhop[zate-ffreet atSirSamuel’sHoule,
- Mr. Hilliams.” What 1s your Name, Sir ?

- Ofland, My Name s Offaxd.

Mr, IVilliams. Your Chnftian Name?

Oflaind. Nebemiab.

M, Williams. Then, Nebemiah Ofand, 1 ask
you this Queftion upon your Oath, when thefe
Letters were fuperfcribed by vou, did you Jay
them in that Window you fpeak of, or did you
aive them back again to Sir Samuel ¢

Ofland. Sir, lam not fo certain as to fwear to
thefe particular Letters 3 but his ufuzl Cuftom was,
He would write a Letter, and then give it me to
copy : His Clofet-door was near another Win-
dow, and there he would leave 1it. It it were but
one Letter, he would ufe 1o fiy, Direét fuch 2
Letter to fuch a Perfon, or fuch a Place, and
when it was fo dire¢ted, 1 was uled to put my
Letters there, and thence one of the Boys came
and fetched them to carry them to the Poft-
Houfe, But {fometimes he would fend me down
dire€lly with it away to the Poft-IHoufe, if he had
rot any other Bufinefs for me to do.

My, Wiliiams. But, Sir, mind the Queftion, I
ask you again: Did you deliver thele Letters, or
any of them back again to Sir Samuel Barnar-
diften, or no?

Ofland. Icannot tell for thefe particular Letters.
I tell you what the ufual Cultom was in the
Houfe.

Mi. Williams, Pray when you had fuperfcribed
them, or Sit Samuel, what became of them Let-
ters ?

Offand. They went to the Poft- Houfe, as I be-

lieve. .
Mr, Williams. How long have you ferved Sir
Samuel Barnadiffon ?

Ofland. Five Months,

Idr. Williams. Did you ferveany body before?

Cfland. No.

My, Recorder, Why, do you think he doth not

{ferve him well now, Mr. X illiams ¢

Mr. Williams. 1 know very well what I think

of it, Mr. Recorder.

L. C. 7. Well, come read them.

Glerk reads,—~—This is direfled 10 Sir Philip
Skippon, Kuight, at Ipfwich, asy dated No-
vemb. 2g, 8.

(Reads)
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(Reads) Sir, The Returis of mmreee

Mr. Filliams. That 1s not Sir Samuel’s Hand,
I think.

L. C. ¥. No, but writ by his Order,

Ofland. 1 tranfcribed 1 by bis {pecial Order
For he came to me and gave me a Letter, fays
he, Go and make a Copy of this Letrer.

My, Recorder. And you did tranferibe it exally

as it was in the Paper he gave you?
Ofland. 1 examined it after { had writ ic my
£Jf, and read i over again.
I..C. % What did you write it out of ¢
Offizind, A Copy he gave me. 3
L.C. ¥. Was that Copy his Hand-writing ?
Oflaud, 1 did not fee him write it, but 1 believe
it to be his writing.
L. C. F. Come read it.
Clerk reads me—

S1R,

HE relurn of the Duke of Monmouth 1o

Whitehall, and bis being received into exira-
ovdinary Favour of His Majefly, bath made a firange
alteration of dAffarrs at Coxit: For toofe that before
Jpake of bim wvery indecently, newy ceurty cringe, and
creep to bim. His Grace complained 1o the King of
the frandalons Mifrepre entalion Ibat was made of
bim in the Monday’s Gazettey upoir which the Ga-
zetteer was called to Acconnt for it, who alledged
for bimfelf, That a Perfon of great Quality fent
bina i B viting the Words therein recited, command-
g bim Lo put them in the Gazerie,

Teflerday being the laft Day of the Term, all the
Prifeiiers that were in the L ower upon the Lite Sham
Progettant Plot, were dfcharged upon Bal. My,
Braddon, <who profecuted the Murder of the Earl of
Effex, the Information put tn againit bin in the
King’s-B.nch by Mr. Avorney, (for a pretended
Suboiiation,) &c. was not profecuted, and bis Bail
was difcharged, Aud the paffing Sentence upon the
Adtbor of Julian the Apoftate, and the Printer
of the late Lord Rufitls Speech, was paffed cuer
i Stlznce.  Great Aoplications ave made to [His
Mayefty for the pardoning Mr. Stdney i1 the Tower,
which is believed will be altained, and that he will
be banifhad,

The Lord Howard aprears defpicable in the Eyes
of all Meny be iy wader Guard at Whitehall, and
believed be <will be feat to the Tower, for that the
Duke of Monmouth will accufe bim conceriting the
Teffimony be bath given, &e.

The Papifts aad High Tories are quite down iy
the Mouth, their Pride is abated, themfelves and
shelr Plot conforrnded, but their Malice is not af-
Swaged. *Tis generally faid the FEarl of BEffex was
attrdered, The brave Lord Ruflel is afrefh lamented,
The Plos is lot bere, except you 1 the Connliy can
jnd it ont amongft the Addreffers and dbborrers.

This fudder Turu is an Amazement to all Men,
and muft produce fome ftrange Events, wbich a little
e will fheww,

Mr. Recoider. Now, go on to the next. The
Second Letter,

Cleik Reads,———This is direted, To §ir Philip
Skippon, Knight, at Iplwich, Suffolk.

L. C F. That is onc of his own writing,

Mr. Recorder. Yes, my Lord.

Clerk. It is dated London the firlt of December
1683.

Vor. IIIL
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Dear S1r, |

E A M to anfwer yours of the 27 and 29th paft,
and trufy I cannot but with great Sorvow lament
the Lofs of our good Friend bongft My. John Wright,
but with patience we muft [ubmit fo the Almighty,
who can as well raife up Inftruments to do his Wark,
as change Hearts, of which we have fo great an In-

Jlance tn the Bufine[s of the Duke of Monmouth,

that no Age or Hiffery can paraliel, I am now
toroughly fatisfied, that what was printed in the
Monday’s Gazette is utterly folfe, and you will fee
i publickly declared fo fhortly. The King is never

pleafed but when be is with bim, bath commanded all

the Privy Council to wait upon bim, and happy is be
that bath moft of bis Favour, His Pardon was Jeal-
ed and delivered to bim laft Wednefday, *Tis faid,
be will be reflored 10 be Mafler of the Lorfe, and be
called into the Conncil Table, and to oll bis other Pla-
cesy, and *Hs reported be will be made Captain-Gane-
ral of all the Forces, and Lovd High- Admiral, &c.
He treats all bis old Friends that daily vifit bim with
oreat Civilities, they ave all fatisfied <with ks Inte-
grity, and if God fpares his Life, doubt not but he
will be an Inftsument of much Good to the King and
Kingdom. He faid publickly, That be knew my Lord
Ruffel was as Loyal a Subjedt as any in England,
and that bis Masefly believed the fame now. I intend

v

Joortly to wait on bim my ff. It wonld make you

taugh to fee bow firangely onr High Tories and
Clergy are mortified, their Conntengnce fpeak it, Were
my Sheforary fo be moved for now, it wonld be req-
dily granted,  Sir George is grown wery bumble.
Tis fmd My, Sidney s reprieved for Forty Days,
which bodes well.

Mr. Kedder fat with me fometime this Evening.

L.C. ¥. There 1s no more in the Record.
Mr. Kecorder. No, my Lord, Thengo on to
the Third.

Clerk, This is direfted For Mr, Edward Gael,
Lanen-Draper, at Ipfwich,
Mr. Williams, s it likely he thould write thefe

Letters to a Draper?

L.C. 7. It is, it feems, the ordinary riff-raff
he writes. Fe thinks it not below him to keep
a Correfpondence with all the Scoundrels of his
Party in the Country.

Mr. Recorder. Ay, all Sorts of Trades he is
acquainted with,

Clerk, It is dated the firft of December 1683.

Reads,—~Mr. Gael,

This Evening Mr, Kedder came and fat with me—

L.C. 7. Will you have it all read?
Mr. WWilliams., No, my Lord, we do not de-

fire 1L,
L.C. %, Then read what 1s in the Record.

Mr. Recorder. Look where that Paflage begins, |
The [ate Changtmwmm—

Cleik. Where 1s it, Sir? It 1s not marked.

L. C. 7. If you cannot find it out, then read

the whole.

Clerk Readse———

Mr. Gael,

HIS Evepinyg My, Xedder came aid fat

with e, when acquainted bim what you and
others writ me in vefercuce to bimfelf, as alfo of the
Death of Mr. Wright, which be was forry for,
He protefted, if could perfuade bis Wife, be would
accept of Iplwich Croice, nolwithflanding all 1he
Difecuragement be bad met with,  One more be ac-

quainted me <uith, that bad feen a Lettey from Mp.
6 D Cutlifie
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Cutlifte to Dr. Clegat, extremely difcouraging bim
from coming to Ipfwich, where if he did come, faid,
wiald find bimfelf mifichen, for that would never en-
g0y Quictiefs o Peace, notwithflanding bis Balfa-
mick Temper, &c. as be called it. Thefe Things
fraghts Mr, Kedder, who I am now perfuading [o
foon as be is up again, to go dowin for @ Month or
1wo, and then if 1t doth not like the Place and Peo-
pley way return bither again. This I refolve to
prefs bard on Monday, wbhen bhave promifed to Dine
with me, as alfp My, Hodges.
Soall thin: nothine too much to effeli this Bufinefs,
3o0ugh one or otheir fiill pulls down as faft as I build
w#p —— Here is note a Door of Enconragemeit cpencd
for fober Men to come tito publick Employment. 2vu
il undo the Tewva of Yplwich if you bring not fober
Meiinto play: For God’s fake coufider of it. Per-
fuade Mr. Snilling, or fome feber Kdeir, to come in
1heir two Ports- Mens Pluces void for other Matters,
vefer you to Sir P. the late Change bere in Publick
Affaivs 15 fo gieat aud firange.

L. C. F. 'There begins the Paflage in the Re-
cord.

Clerk reads——Tbhe [ate Change bere in Publick
Affairs is o great and flrange, that we are like Men
iit @ Drean, can bardly believe what e fee, and fear
we are uot fit for fo great a Mercy as the prefent Jun-
tture fecms to promife. The Earl of Mackensfield 1
bringing Aclions of Scandalis Magnatum againft
all the Grand Furymen that indifted bim at laft
Affizes.  And the feveral Gentlemen that were In-
dicted iz Chefhire azd Northamptonfhire, will
bring their feveral Aitions at Law apainft them. te-
guant Mr. Smilling

L. C. 7. There is all that 15 1n the Record.

Mr., Recorder, There are but two Lines more.

Clerk reads—dequatit My, Snilling we received
1te two Barrels of Oyfters, and tzeo Couple of Ducks,
aind acfive bim Lo take Money of Buckle for them,

I reft, yours.

Mr. Recorder. Now go on to the next,

Clerk. ‘This i- the Fourth Letter: It is directed
to Mr. William Cavelly av Brightzell near Ipfeich
in Suffolk, and dated London the ath of December
1683. Shall I read it all

L.C. 7. No, no: If you can find that Part
that 1s in the Record, Coatrary to moft Mew’s Ex-
pebations, there 1t begins.

Clerk reads------Goutrary to mofp Mew’s Expeda-
ions, a Warrant is Signed at laft for Bebeading Co-
lonel Sidney at Tower-Hill next Friday. Great
Endeavours bave been ufed 1o obtain bis Pardon, but
the contiary Party bave carried it which much dafb-
eth our Hopes, but God fitll governs. Aequaint
Buckle

L. C. . There 15 all.

Clerk. Here isbut a Line more (reads) Aequaint
Buckle, bere is no News of Crafton Hoy, soswith-
fanding the Wind is fair, ’lis bis Pralice always
o loiter Dy the I ay.

I reft,
Your loving Friend.

Mr, illiams, Pray let me fee that Letter.

Mr. Recorder. We have done, my Lord, we
leave 1t here.

L. C. 7. Well, What fay you to it that are
for the Defendant ?

Mr. Williams. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, 1 am of Coun-
fel here for the Defendant, Sir Sawmel Barnar-

125, fhe Trial of Sir S. Barnardiflon

Be confident, 1

¢ 6 Car. 11

diffon, ana the Queflion now-before you is, W he-
ther this Gentleman be knowingly guilty of the
writing and publithing thefe four Letters that
have been read here to you, and which of them
he 1s guilty of writing, and which not? 1 do not
fee that his Name 1s put to any of them; nay,
the Letters are not iobfcribed by any body,
and that, Gentlemen, you may fee by looking
upon the Letters. For the Evidence that hath
been given, 1 befeech your Lordihip to obferve
whatitis. Asto his publithing of them, I fee
no luvidence at all to prove him any way con-
cerned 1n that: Some of them, indeed, are his own
FHand- writing, and proved to be his Letters, by
his own Confeffion before the King and Coun-
cil 5 that Mr. Blathwaite and Mr. Atterbury the
Meflenger fwear directly, that Sir Sameel Bay-
nairdifton did own the Letters, but for the Fourth
they fay he did difown that to be his Letter, and
it 1s not fo much as his Hand; but what Proof
1s it they have brought to apply this to him? You
fee what a Sort of Proof i1s made: They pro-
duce you here a young Man that was (as it hap-
pened ) his Servant at chis time, and lived in his
Famuly with him in the Nature of a Secretary, it
feems; and how fir he was to be entertained in
that Quality, you, I queftion not, obferve, He
fays, he did copy this Letter by the Direétion of
his Mafter. It is well if he did not keep a
Copy himfelf by him of fuch a Letter as this for
a particular Ulfe, as fome honeft Servants have
done before now, that have deligned fomewhat
of Advantage to themfelves: Bur that is his Evi-
dence about this Fourth Letter. That then Gen-
tlemen which we would offer on behalt of the
Detendant, s this, Whether there be any Evi-
dence of the publifhing of thefe Letters by Sir
Samuel 3 wnardifon, either of all, or any, and
which of them? All the Proof that I hear, comes
from Alterbury, and the Clerk of the Council
Mr, Blatbwaite, which is but this: Abterbury
fays, That Sir Sumuel fhould fay, They were
fent to the Poft-Houfe; and Mr. Blathwaise
fays, he did not deny the publifhing of them, but
he does not fay, he confefled it.  As to the fend-
ing to the Poft- Houfe, if it betrue, I thall leave
it to your Lordfhip, how far that, my Lord, can
be a publithing of a Libel; Whether that be
a publithing within the Information, or no? A
Gentleman writes a Letter to a private Friend,
and fends 1t to the Poft-FHoufe; Whether that
be a publifhing of a Libel, I leave it to you? For
the Fourth Letter, this fame trufty Secretary can-
not tell you, whether he delivered it back again
to Sir Samucl, or no; or whether he put it in the
Window; or whether he delivered it in ar the
Poft-Houfe, only, as he believes, he laid it in
the Window as he ufed to do other Letters. But
whatever he believes muft not pafs for Eyi-
aence, efpecially in Marters of this Nature, it
being a great Crime, as the Information has fet
it forth, If then there is no Proof (as with
Submiffion I hope there is not) of the Publica-
tion of thefe Letters, I fuppofe, Gentlemen, you
will not take it upon your Oaths, that he is
Guilty of what he 15 here accufed of without
Evidence. This Information, Gentlemen, doth
mention feveral Things, which do very much ag-
gravate the Matter, if they were proved. Many
Things are are laid in it to Induce the Information,
and which may nmuch enhance the Crime, but of
which I {ee no manner of Proof at all.
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'Things are mentioned as Facts leading to the
main Fa&t, which is the greatr Offence; but thele
not being proved upon him, I defire he may be
acquirted of that Part.

L. C. F. What do you mean, Mr. Williams ¢

AMr, Filliams. Of all your Preamble,

L. C. . What Preamble do you mean ?

My, Williams., That he being a Perfon of a
turbulent and unquiet Spirit -

L.C. 7. Why, Mr. /Viliams : Would you
have the Jury find that he s not fo?

Mr. Willieans. My Lord, There 1s no Proof of
it 3 or that he did do 1t with a Defign feditioufly
to difturb the Peace, that he did it with a fedi-
tious [ntent.

L.C. ¥ You would have the Jury find, I
warrant, that he did it pioufly, and with a good
Intent.

My, Williams. My Lord, There Isa middle
wiy ———-

g. C. 7. No, no, Mr. Zilliams, Let us have
none of that Doctrine, we muft have a care of
that, and your middle Ways. Ior certainly the
Law fupplies the Proof, i the thing 1t {elf fpeaks
Malice and Sedition. As it is in Murder, we
fay alwaysin the Indictment, He did it by the In-
ftigation of the Devil: Can the Jury, if they
find the Faét, find he did it not by fuch Inftiga
tion ? No, that do=s neceflarily attend the very
Nature of fuch an Action, or Thing, So, in In-
formations for Offences of this nature, we fay,
He did it falfly, malicionfly, and feditioufly,
which are the tormal Words 3 but, if the na-
ture ol the Thing be {uch as neceflarily imports
Malice, Reproach, and Scandal to the Govern-
m:at, there needs no Proof buat of the Fa& done,
the Law fupplies thereft, 1f the Fact were indif-
ferent in it (elf, then to make a Crime of it, the
accidental Circumftances muft be proved, but it
needs not where the Thing implies Malice in its
own Nature. You would have the Jury find he
had no ill Defign in it ; he did it with 2 good
Intent, | warrant you,

Mr Williams. All [ would ask, my Lord, is
but this ~— ‘

L.C. 7. Do vou think he did it to ferve the
Crown¢ If the Jury will take it upon their Qaths,
that Sir Samucel Baruardiffon wrote thefe Letters to
ferve the Crown, you fay fomething. Pray ask
them that Queftion. Ty if you can makethem
believe that, Mr. #illiams.

Mr. Williams. There is no Evidence given
about his Malice.

o FL C. 7. Yes, the very thing is Evidence of it-
elf.

Mr. Williams. Pray, my Lord, let the Fa&
lie upon its own weigh: : There is no Praof given
of any of thefe aggravaring things.

L. C. 7. How fhall any Man prove another
Man’s Malice, which is a thing that lies only in
a Man’s Mind ? How thould any Man know that
T'am malicious againft the Government, but by
my Actions.

Mr. Williams. 1 lay it before your Lordfhip
and the Jury.

L. C. 7. No Proof can be expeéted, but what
the Nature of every thing will bear.

Mr, Williams. Then I pray this, my Lord, that
I may be at Liberty next Term, if we be con-
victed, to urge this, and obferve in mitigation of

the Punithment, that there was nothing of thefe
things proved,

VouL; I,
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L. C. }. Urge what you can in 1ts proper time,
}?“5 C?ﬂ"er nothing here but what is fic to be of:’
ered.

Mr. Williams. Here are mentioned in this In-
formation, (tho’ it be by way of Inducement, yer
they muft be proved) things that are Matters of
Record, but they have proved none of them.

L.C.7. Have youany of thofe Records here,
the Convictions of my Lord Rufe! and Colonc]
Sidney ?

Mpr. Recorder. Thofe things are fo well known,
I {uppofe they will not contelt them,

Mr. Wiihams. Sir, 1 muft Jay hold on all Ad-
vantages for my Client,  You have made them
Part of your Cafe, pray prove them.

Mr. Recorder. ‘Truly, my Lord, we did not
think they would have mude that any Queftion,
and we have them not here.  They know it well
enough to be true.

L, C. 7 If you have them not here, go and
find them 3 if they infift upon it, you muft prove
them., I will ftay till you fetch them.

Myr. Williamns. Ny Lord, we would ot hinder
your Lordlhip’s Bufinefs.——

L. C.7. No, no, it will be no Hindrance, I
will do fomething ¢lfe in the mean time. This
is 2 Caule of publick Example and Confequence,
and I will give it all the fair Hearing I can,

Mr, IWilliains, My Lord, if you pleafe, chere
15, 1 fuppole, no fuch hafte of trying this Caufe
now, to hinder Bufinefs, and keep you here
longer than needs. This Caufe may as well be
tried the beginning of next Term,

L, C. #. No, no, I wiil make an end of it
now, if I ftay never fo long forit; indeed the
Defendant fays, I am down in the Mouth: *Tis
true, [ have got a little Hoearfenefs, buc I thank
God my Heart is not down, nor I hope never will
be to ferve the Government.

Mr. Williams. If they will, they fhall find the
Letters without the Records,

My, Fones, No, no, We muft have the Re-
cords, tho’ it is true it is but Matter of Form, yet
we mufl prove our whele Cafe,

L.C.F. Well, T will ftay till they arc fetched.
Let the Jury ftand by, and I will go on and try
another Caufe, and inthe mean time fetch thefe Re-
cords. Do not make two Journies, but bring all
that are mentioned in the Record.

Their the Fury were fet by, and the Cosrt went o
in fome other Caufes, and abont an [onr and
an balf after the Records <oeve bronght, and

this Cayfe was refumed, and proceeded 1045,

L. C. ¥. Well, come, have you thofe Records
now ¢

My, Recorder. Yes, fwear Mr. Tindal, [FVhich
was done.} Is that a true Copy ?

Mr. Tindal. Yes, it is a true Copy of the In-
di¢tment, Conviction and Attainder of my L.ord
Ruffel, 1 examined it with Mr. Zanner,

L.C. ¥ Well, put ivin. [4nd ther alVord
of it was read by the Clerk.]

Mr. Recorder. And here is the Record 1t felf
of the Attainder of Colonel Siduey.

[ W hich was feme part of it read alfo,

L.C.¥ What fay you now to ir, Gentlemen,
for the Defendant ¢

Myr. Thompfon. My Lord, I have nothing more
to fay than has been faid.

L. C. 7. All this was well enough known,

6 D 2 Mr: Fones.
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Mr. Joues. Ay, but they would give the Court
all the Trouble they could by muking them fend
for that which they could not deny.

L. C. J. Gentlemen of the Jury, Here 1s an
Information exhibited againft Sir Samuel Darnar-
difton, and the Information {ets forch this Matter,
It doth take notice of a. horrid Confpiracy, a
camnable Con{piracy, lately hatched and fet on
foot for the Deftrufion of the King, and for the
Subverfion of the Government, That there were
divers Perfons who were Indicted, and ftood con-
vited, and were afterwards executed for this hor-
rid Confpiracy. Among the refl, there is notice
taken of my Lord Reffel for one, and Colonel
Stdicy ( he went by that Name, Algeriien Siduey 1
mean) for another, to be two of thole Confpira-
tors that were engaged in that damnable Confpi-
racy for the Deftruction of the King, and Subver-
fion of the Government.

Now, Gentlemen, That thefe Perfons accord-
ing to the Inducement of this Information, were
{o indicted, {o attainted and executed (as far forth
as Is reciied 1n the Information) is proved to you
by the two Records, which the Counfel on the o-
ther fide infifted to have fhewn, and which have
been now produced. The one is fworn to be a
true Copy of the Conviction and Attainder of my
Lord Raffel, and the other which they produced,
was the Record 1t felf of the Conviction and
Attainder of Sideey,  So that, asto that part itis
plain, they were conviéted and atiamnted, both
the onc and the other, as Aétors 1n that Hellith
Plot.

The next thing, Gentlemen, and which was
{o much infifted upon by the Defendant’s Coun-
fel, 1s this : The Information takes notice, that
the Defendant Sir Samuel Baruardifion, being a
Man of a factious, feditious, difaficéted Temper
towards the Government, a Man of il Principles,
in order to difturb, difquiet, and difcompofe the
Government, he did caule {feveral Letters, IFour
in Number, to be writ and publifhed, waich Let-
ters have been read unto you.

It hath been ¢ octed, That in as much as the
Words, Falfly, Seditioufly, Malicioufly, Facti-
oufly, and the like Words are in the Information,
they would have you believe, That there being
no Evidence of any fuch Thing as Fa&ion, Ma-
lice, and Sedition, or that the Man did it Mali-
cioufly, and Advifedly, and Seditioufly, (which
are the Words in the Premifes, as I may cll
them, or the Preamble of the Information) there-
fore they muft be acquitted of that part.  Now
as to that, I told them then, and tell you now,
Gentlemen, That no Man living can difcover
the malictous evil Defigns and Intentions of any
other Man, {o as to give Evidence of them, but
by their Words and Actiens.  No Man can prove
what I intend, but by my Words and Actions.
Therefore if one doth compafs and imagine the
Death of the King, that by cur Law is High-
Treafon 5 but whether or no he be guilty of
this Treafon, fo as to be convicted of it by ano-
ther, is not proveable, or difcoverable, but by
fome Words or Actions, whereby the Imagina-
tion may be manifefted. And therefore my Ima.
gining, my Compafling, which is private in my
own Mind, muft be fubmitted to the Judgment
that Reafon and the Law paffeth upon my
Words or Aétions, and then the Aétion it felf
being proved, that difcovers with what Mind
the Thing was done; as in the Cale I put before
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to the Counfel.  Suppofe any Man without Pro-
vocation kill another, the Words of the Indiét-
ment are, That he did it Malicioufly, Feloni-
oufly, not having the Fear of God before his I yes,
but being moved and feduced by the Inftigation of
the Devil.  Now all thele things, whether he had
the Fear of God before his Eyes, or not ; or whe-
ther Lie were moved by the Inftigation of the Devil,
and of his Malice foretliought, or no; thefe can-
not be known, till they come to be proved by the
Action that is done.

So that in cafe any Perfon doth write Libels,
or publith any Exprefiions which in themfelves
carry Szdition and Faétion, and IIl-Will towards
the Government ; I cannot tell well how to ex-
prefs it otherwife In his Accufation, than by fuch
Words, that he did 1t Scairioudly, Fadtioulfly, and
Malicioufly. And the Proaf of the thing it flf
proves the evil Mind it was done with,  If then,
Gentlemen, you believe the Didendant, Sir Sa-
muel Barsardiffen, did write and pubiith thefe
Letters, that is Proof enough of the Words, ia-
liciaully, Seditioufly, and Factioufly, laid in the
Information.

The Letters are Faftious, Seditious, and Ma-
licious Letters, and as bafe as the worlt of Man-
kind (tho’ he had had all the Provocation that ever
could be given a Man to libel another) could ever
have invented. And let St Samuel Rarnard:icn
put 1t under the Countenance, or under the Um-
brage, or under the Enamel of his Zeal for the
true Proteftant Religion, If he will; or if he
have a mind to it, to give him{tif any fine Name,
by calling himfelf one of the Sober Party, or God-
ly Party, or the Upright Party 5 let him gild him-
felf, and paint bimfelf as he pleafeth, yer the [n-
fide is rotten, and ’tis Factious and Seditious at
the bottom to all Intents and Purpofes what{o-
ever, And if he be guilty of i, as you Gentle-
men are to oy and confider 5 the greater the
Man 1s, the greater the Crime ; and the more
Underftanding he has, the more malicious ke
feems to be: For your little ordinary fort of
People, that are of common mean Underftand-
ing, they may be wheedled and drawn in, and
furprized into fuch things; but Men of a pub-
lick Figure, and of fome Value in the World,
that have been taken to be Men of the greateft
Intereft and Reputation n a Party, it cannot be
thought a fudden Surprize upon them ; no, ’tisa
Work of Time and Thought, ’tis a thing fixed
mm his very Nature, and 1t fhews fo muchVenom,
as would make one think the whole Mafs of his
Blood were corrupted. I had thought the At of
Oblivion might have put Sir Samuel Barnardiffon
in mind, That it was not fit any more to go down
to Whitehall, to make Uproars, and Tumuits,
and Hubbubs.

But here is the Matter that he now is accufed
of, and here isin it Malice againft the King,
Malice againft the Government, Malice againik
both Church and State, Malice againft any
Man that bears any Share in the Government,
indeed Malice againft all Mankind that arc not
of the fame Perfuafion with thofe bloody Mif-
creants, (I cannot give them a milder Name)
I mean the Confpirators in the late damnable
Confpiracy, fome of whom have been attainted
and executed for it, Here is the Sanctifying of
T'raitors, that were juftly fentenced to Execus
tion according to the Law of the Land, and
at the fame time there is joined with 1t the

moft
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moft inveterate Infinuation againft the Govern-
ment that can be, as though the King was pre-
vailed with, upon a Sham VProteftant Plot, to do
- Things in order to deftroy the Government it
{elf, and every one of the Saber Party, as they call
themfelves. For thele Perfons could not have
fuffered, but as Condemned according to the
Rules of Law, but thefe Letters carry an [nfinu-
ation as if they were cur off by a Sham Trick
and Defign. For after the good News of the
Xeprieve of Sidugy was contradited, the War-
rant for his Execution is taken notice of, and you
{fee the manner of Expreflion that is uied, zbeir
Party bas prevail’d, as tho’ the putting the Laws
in Exccution, and hanging of Traitors, were
fuch a Thing that a Party mult be fet up to pre-
vail to do it, and Mankind muft be divided into
Parties, their Party and our Party, and the con-
trary Party, they have prevailed ; and truly now
our Party, the Sober Paity as he calls it, are in
a very fad Condition.

‘Then here is, as I faid, the Sainting of Two
horrid Confpirators, here 13 the Lord Ruffel
Sainted, that blefled Martyr, my Lord Ruffel,
that good Man, that excellent Proteftant, he is
lamented, and what an extraordinary Man he
was, who was fairly Tried, and jultly Conviét-
ed and Attainted, for having a Hand in this
horrid Confpiracy againft the Life of the King,
and his deareft Brother IHis Royal Highnefs,
and for the Subverfion of the Government.
And here is Mr, Siduey Sainted, what an extra-
ordinary Man he was¢  Yes furely, he was a
very good Man, becaufe you may fome of you
remember, or have read the Hiftory of thofe
Times, and know what Share Mr. Siduey had in
that black and horrid Villany, that curfed Trea-
fon and Murder, the Murder, I mean of King
Charles 1. of Blefled Memory, a Shame to Reli-
oion itfelf, a perpetual Reproach to the Ifland
we live 1n, to think that a Prince fhould be
brought by pretended Methods of Law and Juf-
tice to fuch an End at his own Palace. And
’tis a Shame to think, that fuch bloody Mifcre-
ants fhould be Sainted and Lamented, who had
any Hand in that horrid Murder and Treafon,
and who to their dying Minutes, when they
were upon the Brink of Eternity, and juft {tep-
ping into another World, could confidently blefs
God for their being engaged 1n that Good
Caufe, (as they call 1t) which was the Rebel-
lion which brought that Blefled Martyr to His
Death, It is high tme for all Mankind, that
have any Chriftianity, or Senf¢ of Heaven or

Hell, to beftir themfelves, to rid the Nation of

fuch Caterpillers, fuch Monfters of Villany as
thefe are.

Nay, In thefe very Letters is contained the
very Language of that curfed Murderer and
Traitor Walcot amfelf, That God dlmighty in bis
own Time would raife up Infrumenis. 1 know,
Gentlemen, you have heard and read what that
bloody Traitor faid to that effeft; and you hear
what Expreflions like it are in thefe Letters, 7
am forry for the Death of our Fyiend, houneft M.
John Wright, but God can eafily raife up Inftra-
ments to do bis own Work ; the very Language of
IWalcot. And I would have you take notice of 1t,
Mr, Blackerby, for 1 would have you take Warn-
ing by thefe Things.

(Speaking ta 6 Gentleman that was taking Notes.

~ Jjor a Mildemeanous.
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Mr. Blackerly, My Lord, T have neither faid

nor done any thing that fhould give you occafion
to {peak thus to me,

L. C. 7. Thefe Letters tell you, God will be
Jure to vasfe up Infiruments, but what Inftrunzents
do they mean? In{truments of Rebellion, and
Iattion, and Seditton, which they moft falfly
cally bis own Werk. Tor it 1s that monftrous Sin
Rebellion that they mean by it, Inftruments of
Treafon, under pretence of fighting for God Al-
mighty they would fzin be highting again{t the
Government. It was the Language of the former
Times, wherewith they deftroyed the beft of
Kimngs, and fubverted the beflt of Governments
for a Time, and were very ncar having totally
deftroyed Three Kingdoms, under pretence of do-
ing God good Service, And when once a Peopie
purfue {uch Principles, and, under the pretence of
Religion, endeavour to deftroy Monarchy and
Government 1tfelf, ic is high time for all honeft
Men to look abour them.

Nay, and you may obfcrve, Gentlemen, ano-
ther thing in thefe Letters, it is not only the De-
ftruction of the Civil Government, the King, and
thofe that are in Authority pear Him that arc
aimed at 3 but all Perfons that come with humbie
Reprefentations of their Loyalty to Him, all that
Adarefs themielves to the King to fhew their
Duty, and their Diflike of that damnable Defign
and Confpiracy againft Him, For mow (fays Sir
Samuel Bariardifion) all the Sham Plot is guite
blown off, aind we cannot find any here, *tis loft ex-
cept you can find it among the Addreffers aund Ab-
borrers in the Conntiy, or ameng @ Parcel of Cler-
FYmeit, — — So that all Mankind, that ever
thought themfelves obliged to congratulate that
blefled and happy Deliverance, either to own
our Thankfulnefs to God for it, to whom we
owe more than we are able to pay for His great
Mercy to us thereln, or to exprefs our Joy to
the King, 1n humble Addrefles, Congratulating
His Deliverance from the horrid Confpiracy
lately deligned againft Him, IHis Brother and the
Government ; theie Gentlemen, becaufe they are
Loyal Subjects, and defire to fhew themielves fo,
muft be branded with the Names of Abborrcss,
Tories, Addreffersy Sham-Plotters, and all the Ig-
nominy they can lay upon them. This fhews 1t
was not only aimed at the Civil Magiftracy, but
at all that dare be honelt and oppole Faction and
Rebellion,

As for any thing that he has faid of me, Sir
Samuel Bariardiffor fhzll write and fpeak of me
as long as he pleafes, But though he fays, /
an dowir in the Mouth 1t is true, [ have a little
loft my Tongue by my Cold, yet I hope I fhall
never lofe my Heart nor Spirit to ferve the Go-
vernment, nor forbear to ufe my utmoft Dili-
gence to {ee that fuch Offenders as thefe Per-
fons, that entertamn Principles fo deftructive to
the Government, be brought to condign Puntih-
ment. And be they who they will, were they
my own Brothers, 1 {hould be of the fame mind,
and in that mind I hope in God [ fhall live and
die.

Gentlemen, the Queftion before you is, Whe-
ther the Defendant be guiliy of writing thefe
Malicious, Seditious Letters; for that they are
Malicious and Faftious, no honeflt Man can
doubt in the leaft, and I do not find that the
Counfel for the Defendant do offer to fay any

thing in Defence of the Letters, or can fay, but
that
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that they are as venomous, malicicus, feditious,
faltious, tumaliuous Letters, as can be wrizen,
and I mult tell you, tread very near upon the Bor-
ders of [digh-Treafon nfeif. I am furc I nmay
venture to Call it Cozen Geriarn wo [lizh-Tieafun.

Now that he did write and pubhih them, you
have this Proof before you: Mir, Blathwaite tells
yert, That Sir Samae! did cvn Three of them,
aclrowledge them w b2 his own Writing, be-
fore Ris Sacred Majelly in Counlel,  alterouiy
the Meffenger fays, He was by too when he did
before the King acknowledge the VWriting of thole
Tlree Letters,  As to the Superfeription to one
of thofe Three Letters, you have the Teftimo-
ny of Offand, the young Man thar lived wich
Sir Semuel Barnardifion, he fwears he writ it by
his Direétion, being his Servant.  And as to the
Fourth Lewer, this young Man does diretily
fwear, That the Original he copied it by (for
it 1s his Writing) he had from Sir Samuc! Bar-
nardiffor;, and it was of Sir Samuel’s own Wri-
ting ( which he knows well, being acquainted
wich his Hand ) and that Sir Sanuel exprefly di-
rected him to Copy it out, which he did by his
Command, and this is the fame Letter; and fo
though it is not under his Hand, yet 1t 15 under
his Man’s, and written by his Diretion.  And
he fays, he docs believe the other Three to be his
Hand-Writing,  So as to the Ditating and Wri-
ting of thefe Letters, you have as full and as
plain a Proof as can be made.

And as to his Publifhing of them, which is
another Part of the Information, and of which
Mr 7Zilliams faid there was ne Proof, I would fay
but this to you. Is it not very prepolterous, ab-
furd and fenfelefs, to think that ever it thould en-
ter into any Man’s Imagination, That Sir Samuel
Baruardiflon would take fuch a wonderful deal of
Pains and Care to write thefle Letters to Sir Phi-
fip Skippsit, and to the other two Men, to tell
them of his Endeavours to take off Mr, Kedder's
Scruples, and perfuade him to go down to Jp/-
wich, and to def e them to take care of the Sober
Party, and endeavour to get Sober Mer 1nto play,
and all will do wc/l, and that the Duke of Aou-
mouth had dexied all the Ploty, and fo given the
Lye to the King and the Courts of Juftice, and
now there was a Door opencd for Scber Aen to
come in, and God would raife #p Iuffruments, and
the Sobcr Periy will up again? Do you think, I
fay, he would write all this Fuftian Stuff, (for I
can call it no better than Stuf, though it be very
malicious Stufi’) and carry to his Man to Copy
out, and Superfcribe them and Seal them, only
to put them in his Pocket? If you can believe
this, upon my Word you have a Faith able to re-
move great Mountains ; but I affure you my
Faith cannot get to that Strength.

But for further Proof of the Publithing, you
hear what the young Man that was the Defendant’s
Servant fays. He tells you, the ufual Way of
dealing wicth Sir Samuel’s Letters was this, There
was 2 Window near Sir Samuc’s Clofer, and
when the Letters were Sealed up, they were ufed
to be put there, 11 order that the Boy, according
to the ufual Courfe, might carry them to the
Poft-Houfe. And he doth believe thefe Letters
(though he cannot particularly and pofitively fpeak
to them ) were fo ufed,

Befides all this, you have it by Atterbury pofi-
tively Sworn, thar about the fame time thar Sir
Samuecl Barnardijlon did acknowledge before the
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King, that he writ thofe Letters, being in his
Cultody, he did fay they were fent to the Poft-
Houfe, and he wondered how they came by them.
That proves it was done by his Privity. And
beyond all there is this Circumftance, that the
Thing {peaks 1t felf, they are dire€ted to Men
at Ipfwich, where Sir Samuel Barnardiffon is
known to have a Correfpondence ; they take no-
tice of the Receipt of Letters from thence, and
of the Dzath of Mr. Zright, mentioned in thofe
Letters, which fhews them to be Anfwers to
Leters recetved 5 and mufl not thefe think you
be fent, but kept ftill in his Pocket? There is
notice alfo taken in them, of their Country Af-
fairs: Though they {eemed t have mer with
fome Difappointment in fuch a Bufinefs about
Mr. Kedder, yet they were refolved 1o go en,
and defires them to communicare this Bufinefs of
Mr. Kedder and Dr. Cleggit, to fuch and fuch of
our fiiends, and defire them ro beifir themfelves,
and get in Sober Aden, fuch as Mr. Kedder, among
them. Ior it 1s mightily for our 4dvaintage, that
there thould be Sober Aien brought into play at
Ipfiwich, and pray be fure to keep the Sober Par-
fy up. Thefe Things in their own nature fpeak,
that thefe Letters were intended and written, in
order to preferve a Correfpondence between thofe
of the Svber Party in Ipfwich, and their Friends
here, and therefore you may cafily conclude what
was to be done with them,

So that, Gentlemen, this Information furely (if
ever any was) is fully proved, as it is laid in all
the Parts of it,

I would not have given you fo much Trouble
at this Time, in an Affair of this Nature, that
has been fo evidently proved, becaufe your Quef-
tion that you are to Try, is only, Whether the
Defendant be Guilty of this Offence, or not Guil-
ty? (You are not to infli& che Penalty, that is
the Province of the Court above;) but only be-
caufe I fee it is a Matter of great Expellation
and Confequence. I would not we fhould be gul-
led twice in one Age, by the felf-fame Men, and
the felf-fame Way, into the fame Treafon and
Rebellion, and all thofe other Mifchiefs that
dreadful Chaos and State of Confulion, Mifery
and Deftrution, that we were brought into in
the late Times., And that has made me take
fo much notice now in this Place of the Ten-
dency of Things of this Nature, that we may
learn to beware of, and know thefe Men that
carry oSheep’s Clothing, pretend Zeal and Reli-
gion, but their Infides are Wolves. They are
Trautors 1n their Minds, whatfoever they are in
their outward Pretences.

Then the Ju R Y laid their Heads together in the
Place where they flood, and being prefently af~

ter agreed npon theiy Verdifl, the Foreman gave
i i,

That the Defendant Sir Samuel Barnardifton
was Guilty of the Offence and Mifdemea-
noury Charged on bim by the Information.

Which Verdi? was Recorded by the Clerk.

Afterwards Sir Samnel Barnardiffon received
Sentence, That be foonld pay 10,0001l Fine, be
imprifoned till paid, and find Sureties for bis Good
Bebavionr for Life.
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CXXVL Proceedings aganfl JAMEs HoLLoway™® 7z
‘the King’s-Bench, on an Outlawry for High-'Trealony

April 21, 1684. Palche. 36 Car. 1l

IS Majelty’s Attorney General hav-
X2 ing on [riday ]a[’cf H]DVCdIf t;c Court
£ of Aing’s-Bench tor an Haveas Cor-
b _E;é;;g‘.,,‘* pus Riturnable this Day, direéted
218598 T the Keeper of His Majefty’s Goal
of Newgate, to bring thither the Body ot Fames
Holloway, then in his Cultody, o fhew Caufe
why Execution fhould not be awarded upon an
Outlawry for High-Treafon againlt him. The
Keeper of Newgate, according to the Command
of the Writ, brought him this Day to the Bar of
the faid Court, where he was proceeded againtt in
this Manner.

The Return of the Writ of Habeas Corpus
was firft Read.

Cl. of Cr. Fames Holioway, Hold up thy Hand.
[Whicb be did.
Thou haft been Indifted in London, by the Name
of Fames Hollsway, late of Lendon, Merchant,
for High-Tieafon by thee committed, touching
the King's Majelty’s Perfon, and the Govern-
ment of this His Kingdom of England, and for
not appearing and anfwering that Indittment, by
due Procefs of Law, upon the Indiftment thou
ftandeft Qutlawed, and upon that Outlawry thou
ftandeft Attainted of the fame High-Treafon;
W hat haft thou to fay for thy felf why Executi-
on fhould not be awarded againft thee upon that
Attainder by this Court according to Law ¢

Hollpway. My Lord, I have beena great while
Abfent, and know not what hath been done 1n
this Matter, or proved againit me.

. L.C. ¥. Yes, you have been abfent

Sir George o long it feems, that you now fland
Jferies Outlawed, and thereby Attainted of
High-Treafon; there is nothing now remains
with the Court, butonly to make a Rule for your
Execution.

Hellsway. If an ingenuous Confeflion of the
Truth will merit the King’s Pardon, then fure I
have done it.

L. C. 7. For that Matter we are not to dif-
pofe of the King’s Mercy, he will difpofe of his
own Mercy as he fhall think fic. Is Mr. Actorney
in the Hall?

Crier. Yes, my Lord, he is.

L. C.}. Then pray fend for him.

IV bich was done, and in a little time after be
came tnto Court,

L.C. ¥. Mr. Auorney, here is the Prifoner at
the Bar, Holloway.

Mr. 4t Geir. Yes, my Lord, T fee
18, Sir Samuel Affry, have youthe
Record there?

Cl. of Cr. Yes, Sir.

Sir Robert
Sawuyer, he

L.C. #. It has been read to him, Mr. Attorney ?

Mr. 4t Gen. My Lord, I would know what
he faith that Execution Thould not be A warded.

L. C. F. He talks of Difcoveries and Confef-
fions which we, you know, cannot take any no-
tice of ; Ask him again.

C/l. of Cr. Haft thou any thing to fay for thy
felf why HExecution fhould not be awarded againit
thee, according to Law?

Holloway. My Lord, I know not what hath
been proved againit me, but I have made fuch an
ingenuous Confeflion to His Majefty of what I
Know——

L.C. 7. Proved again{t you? You are Out-
lawed upon an Indictment for High-Treafon;
what can you fay againft the Court’s awarding
Execution? |

Mr. At Gen, My Lord, has he heard the Indict-
ment upon which the Outlawry was grounded ?

Cl. ¢f Cr. No, Sir, only the Subftance was told
him, That he was Indicted of High-Treafon,
and Outlawed for it, and ftands Attainted by thac
Qutlawry. _

Mr. 4t. Gein, It your Lordfhip pleafe, the In-
diétment may be read to him, that he may under-
ftand what it 1s, and may not go blind to Execu-
tion.

L. C. 7. Ay, Mr. Attorney, if you pleafe,
fet it be lo. -

Cl. of Cr, Reads. The Jurors being Sworn to
enquire for our Sovereign Lord the King, aad
the Body of the Couuty of the City of Lendon,
upon their QOaths prefent, That ——w——{_4d /5

the whole Indittnent was read.

Cl. of Cr. Thart isthe Indiétment, Mr, Attor-
ney, and upon this he i1s Outlawed.

Mr, 4. Gen, And fo ftands Attainted.
hath he to fay to ic?

L.C.%# Ay, why fiould not we award Exe-
cution againft him according to Law?

Cl of Cr. Have you any Thingto fav ¢

Holloway, I have faid what I have to fay.

Mr. 4t Gen, Pray what 15 that, my Lord,
that he has faid, for I was not here?

Holloway, 1 beg his Majelty’s Mercy.

Mr, At Gey, 1f the King be fo gracious as to
admit you to your Trial, can you makea Defence
againtt the Indi¢tment? Have you any Thing ro
fay that you can defend your felf by, if the King
do admit you to be tried, and that is a Mercy and
a Grace, for at Law you are gone.

L. C. 7. Itis o, indeed, Mr. Atiotney; 1f you
will on the King’s Behalf indulge bim fo far, as
[ fuppole you have Authority from the King to
Confent unto, that if he has 2 mind to try the
Fa@, and can defend himfelf, he fhall have that
Iiberty, thatis a great Mercy, 1aflure you.

What

* Burnet's Hiffory of bis oavn Times Vol. 1. p. 576, He had fled to the Wed-Indics, avbere bz avas taken, and fent cver 1o England,
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